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CORPORATE INFORMATION
EXEH
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Mr. Leung Man Man (Chairman)
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Mr. Tse Ting Kwan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Luk Chi Keung
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Bermuda
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BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA
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(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House,

2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
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Hong Kong
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Hang Seng Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communication Department.

Website: www.superactive.com.hk

Email: info@superactive.com.hk
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFEMBEE

RESULTS eS|

Years ended 31 December

BE+-B=+—ALEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C “ET-F “ETEE “T-HE “E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET TEx FTET FTER

Revenue e 88,730 132,217 101,129 184,812 237,525
Gross profit EH 33,316 49,002 42,267 51,157 42,069
Reversal of impairment/ BEREED,/ (RE)
(impairment) of assets 1,329 (8,225) (9,629 (10,758) (107,859
Net impairment loss on BREERAHEZ
financial assets at amortised ~ & RIE EREEE
cost 38 (5208) (85203 (63525  (20916)  (35,157)
Share of results of an associate (L —FK & ATz
EY 25,337 (5,513) 60 (10,533) 11,929
Loss before tax BIAEE (96,266)  (122,342)  (104,561) (86,124)  (193,173)
Income tax credit/(expense)  Fri3iRIER,/ i) 940 (21,345) (1,588) (8,963) 11,167
Loss for the year ENEE (95,326)  (143,687)  (106,149)  (95087)  (182,006)
Attributable to: L& IBMER
Owners of the Company KABHEE A (93,426) (144,126) (108,257) (94,285) (174,334)
Non-controlling interests JEE RS (1,900) 439 2,108 (802) (7,672)
(95326)  (143,687)  (106,149)  (95087)  (182,006)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B IR

BEEKRER

At 31 December

BK+=ZB=+—H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

balet- M T “T-FFE “T-HhE “T-N\E

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TERT TET TExT TET

Total assets BEBE 1,101,550 1,255,417 1,360,944 1,389,722 1,485,203

Total liabilities BB 805,189 828,267 802,364 772,758 762,965

Net assets BEFE 296,361 427,150 558,580 616,964 722,238
Equity attributable to owners ~ ZAT#E A

of the Company FE(L R 286,403 415,964 547,601 625,467 717,640

Non-controling interests RS 9,958 11,186 10,979 (8,503) 4,598

Total equity TR 4A%E 296,361 427,150 558,580 616,964 722,238
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Superactive Group Company Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

2022 is a year full of challenges. Over the past three years,
prolonged and repeated outbreaks of COVID-19 and the related
control restrictions have disrupted business activities and supply
chains in various industries, and weakened consumption capacity.
Under the influence of the epidemic, the economies of the PRC and
Hong Kong have been severely affected, and the Group will inevitably
be implicated.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group
decreased to approximately HK$88.73 million as compared to
approximately HK$132.22 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, representing a decrease of approximately 32.89%. The
Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately HK$15.68
million from approximately HK$49.00 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$33.32 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The gross profit margin slightly increased
from approximately 37.06% for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately 37.55% for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$95.33 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 compared to a loss of approximately
HK$143.69 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Since December 2022, the Chinese and Hong Kong governments
have gradually lifted various COVID control restrictions and social
and economic activities in the Mainland China and Hong Kong have
been returning to normal and there is a clear recovery trend in all
industries. While the Group expected the Chinese and Hong Kong
economies to take some time to recover to pre-pandemic levels, the
Group remain positive on the outlook. In the coming year, the Group
will focus on property development and management. The Group’s
stock shops in Lijiang are already ready for sale. As long as the PRC
economy returns to normal, the market’s demand for shops will
increase, and the Group will launch to sell the shops in due course.

Finally, 1 would like to thank our employees for their dedication,
independent directors for their guidance and suggestions, and
shareholders for their confidence in the management and their
support. | am grateful to everyone who contributes to the success of
the Group.

Yeung So Lai
Chairman

31 March 2023

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEwAD R

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit: Revenue comprised of sales of
electronics products, services income from the provision of
nursery education service, interest income from the provision
of money lending, management fee received from property
management services provided and services income from the
provision of regulated financial services. However, since the
Chengdu Kindergarten was sold in 2020 and owing to the revised
“Implementation Regulations of the Private Education Promotion Law
of the People’s Republic of China” came into effect on 1 September
2021, the Group no longer provides kindergarten management
services. Therefore, the segment of nursery education did not
provide any income to the Group in 2022.

The revenue in 2022 decreased by approximately HK$43,487,000
(representing a decrease of approximately 32.89% when compared
with 2021) from HK$132,217,000 in 2021 to HK$88,730,000 in
2022. The revenue of each business segment in 2022 decreased
due to different reasons and will be discussed in “Business Review”
below.

The gross profit decreased by approximately HK$15,686,000
(representing a decrease of approximately 32.01% when compared
with 2021) from approximately HK$49,002,000 in 2021 to
approximately HK$33,316,000 in 2022. However, the gross profit
margin has slightly increased by approximately 0.49%, from 37.06%
in 2021 to 37.55% in 2022.

Other net gains: The other net gains in 2022 were mainly
attributable to the rental income of approximately HK$3,211,000
(2021: approximately HK$5,082,000), the government grant of
approximately HK$6,925,000 (2021: approximately HK$2,392,000)
and fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$2,671,000 (2021: gain on approximately
HK$1,700,000). The fair value loss on financial assets was on
the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer on 18% equity interest in ORBiz International
Limited.
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Finance costs: Part of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group
are calculated at floating rates. The increase in finance cost was
mainly due to the increase in interest rate in 2022 and increased in
interest rate due to the default of the bond payable.

Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of assets: The reversal
of impairment of assets in 2022 was the reversal of the impairment
loss of HK$1,329,000 made in 2021 for the licenses of the regulated
activities. The reversal of impairment was based on the result of the
assessment from the Board at the CGU level. The impairment of
assets in 2021 was mainly attributable to the impairment loss on the
licence of HK$1,329,000 and goodwill of HK$3,481,000 related to
the regulated financial service business and the impairment loss on
the interest in an associate HK$3,415,000.

Net impairment loss on financial assets: The net impairment loss
on financial assets in 2022 includes the net reversal of impairment
loss on trade receivables of approximately HK$5,860,000, the net
impairment loss on other receivables of approximately HK$7,563,000
and the net impairment loss on loans receivable of approximately
HK$3,590,000. A net reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss)
is recognised by comparing the decrease or increase in expected
credit losses between the current period and the prior period.
Expected credit losses are recognised based on expected credit
loss rates depending on actual loss experience over the past few
years and adjusted for forward-looking information that is readily
available to the Group without undue cost and effort. Since the gross
balances of trade receivables at the end of 2022 have decreased by
HK$33,493,000 when compared with 2021 due to the recovery of
certain long outstanding debts, the expected credit losses at the end
of the reporting period are therefore less than that in 2021 and the
overprovision are reversed and recognised in the statement of profit
and loss accordingly.

Share of results of an associate: The amount represented the
Group’s share of the results of the associate, IT City Development
Fund LP, on an equity basis.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEsRR 2R

Properties held for sale: The properties held for sale are the
shop properties held by the Group as stock in Lijiang Underground
Walkway (the “Lijiang Project”). The Lijiang Project are the unfinished
construction project acquired by the Group in 2017. The Group
started the finishing and rectification work for the Lijiang Project
after acquisition. The finishing work and the rectification work were
completed before the end of 2018 and in 2019 respectively. After the
finishing work was completed, the Group began to deliver the shops
to some buyers who had purchased the pre-sold before the Group’s
acquisition and made preparations for the sales of the unsold shops.
Due to the broke out of COVID-19, the sales plan of the Group
has been hindered and cannot be carried out normally in these few
years. In order to increase the value of the Lijiang Project and as part
of the sales plan, the Group rent out shops in the form of short-term
leases to increase the number of visitors and customers. Since the
Lijiang Project has been acquired by the Group, the intention of the
Group has never changed, which is to sell the shops for profit and
the shops can be launched for sale at any time when the time is ripe.
Therefore, the shops in Lijiang Underground Walkway are classified
as stock properties. The decrease in value in 2022 was due to the
exchange difference arising in translating the Renminbi into Hong
Kong dollars.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of money lending
services and provision of regulated financial services in Hong Kong;
and manufacturing of electronics products, provision of nursery
education services and property development and management in
the PRC. As disclosed above, the segment of nursery education did
not provide any income to the Group in 2022. In 2022, the income
from the manufacturing of electronics products, interest income
from money lending services, services income from the provision
of regulated financial services, income from nursery education and
property development and management income accounted for
approximately 75.24% (2021: 68.05%), 11.97% (2021: 16.64%),
6.32% (2021: 5.24%), 0.00% (2021: 0.51%) and 6.47% (2021:
9.56%) of total revenue respectively.
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Manufacturing Electronics Products

During the year, the segment of manufacturing electronics products
includes the manufacturing of transformers. The manufacturing of
electronics products contributed approximately HK$66,763,000 to
revenue (2021: HK$89,969,000 representing a decrease of 25.79%
when compared with 2021). The main market for the business
of manufacturing transformers is the PRC. During 2022, two
major customers reduced their orders by a total of approximately
HK$24,317,000 or 44.81% to reduce their inventories in anticipation
of their product design changes in the coming year.

As per the announcement of the Company dated 21 September
2022, the profit guarantee given by the vendor in relation to
the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Jiaxian
Enterprises Management Company Limited has been fulfilled.

Provision of Nursery Education Services

During the year, the segment of the provision of nursery education
services did not contribute any revenue (2021: HK$672,000) to the
Group. The decrease when compared with 2021 was mainly due
to the Group no longer providing nursery education management
services.

In order to implement the “Certain Opinions on In-Depth Reform
and Regulated the Development of Pre-school Education” which
was issued in 2018, the State Council of the PRC revised the
“Regulations on the Implementation of the Law of the PRC on the
Promotion of Private Education” in 2021, which came into force on
1 September of the same year. After the revision, the regulations
strengthen the control of private schools, establish the systems for
asset and financial management, and require private schools not to
damage the interests of the state, schools, teachers and students.
To avoid violating the relevant provisions, the Group no longer
charges the kindergarten management fees. Therefore, the Group
had no service income from the provision of nursery education
services in 2022.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEA R

Provision of Money Lending Services

The provision of money lending services of the Group focuses
on conducting money lending business by providing secured or
guaranteed loans to a variety of customers, including individuals and
corporations. The source of customers is mainly past customers
or referrals by third parties. Loans are mainly large amounts of
guaranteed loans. The source of funds for the lending business is
funded by the internal resources of the Group.

During the year, the segment of the provision of money lending
services contributed approximately HK$10,617,000 to revenue
(2021: HK$22,005,000, representing a decrease of 51.75%
when compared with 2021). The decrease in interest income
on money lending was due to the net decrease in loan principal
in 2022 (there were no new loans in 2022, but the principal of
approximately HK$83 million has been recovered). Besides, for the
sake of prudence, the principal amount of HK$111,313,000 that
the repayment performance was not in line with the management’s
expectation, has been transferred to stage 3 of ECL, and no loan
interest income of relevant principal has been recognised in 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the total principal amount was
HK$164,300,000 (2021: HK$247,300,000) and gross interest
receivables of HK$26,074,000 (2021: HK$27,570,000) were due
from ten (2021: thirteen) independent third parties. The interest rates
of the loan receivables range from 6% to 15% per annum (2021:
6% to 15% per annum.) on the principals from HK$500,000 to
HK$24,500,000 (2021: from HK$5,000,000 to HK$47,000,000). Two
(2021: three) of the loan receivables are secured by share charges
of the borrowers, and ten (2021: twelve) of the loan receivables are
guaranteed by individuals. The Group does not have the right to sell
or re-pledge the shares held as collateral in the absence of default
by the borrowers. All loan receivables were repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
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The loan receivables can be classified into secured loans and
unsecured loans. As at 31 December 2022, total principal
amount of the secured loans and the unsecured loans were
HK$10,500,000 (2021: HK$84,000,000) and HK$153,800,000
(2021: HK$163,300,000) respectively. The secured loans with loan
principals ranging from HK$500,000 to HK$10,000,000, of which
the aggregated principals of loans lent in 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021
and 2022 were HKS$nil, HK$5,000,000, HK$5,000,000, HK$500,000
and HK$nil respectively, with interest rates ranging from 8% to 15%
per annum and was repayable within 12 months from the end of 31
December 2022. The unsecured loans with loan principals ranging
from HK$14,700,000 to HK$24,500,000, of which the aggregated
principals of loans lent in 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 were
HK$83,600,000, HK$37,500,000, HK$32,700,000, HK$nil and
HK$nil respectively, with interest rates ranging from 6% to 10% per
annum and was repayable within 12 months from the end of 31
December 2022. The unsecured loans were personally guaranteed
by their borrowers.

The amount of loans receivables due from the largest borrower
and the five largest borrowers accounted for HK$24,500,000,
representing 14.91% (2021: HK$48,000,000 and 17.61%) and
HK$103,700,000, representing 63.12% (2021: HK$150,000,000 or
54.58%), respectively, of loan receivables of the Company as at 31
December 2022.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEsRR 2R

The Group has its credit risk strategy and policy and credit review
and risk assessment for the money lending business. It is required to
perform an independent assessment on loan applications before the
loans are granted. The independent assessment included but was
not limited to background checkings, such as the identity documents
(identity card or business registration certificate, latest annual return
or certificate of incumbency if an overseas company) and income or
asset proof of the borrower and guarantor, such as share certificates
or bank statements, the evaluation of the value of the collateral and
the verification of the authenticity of the information provided, to
ensure the recovery ability of the loan. If necessary, the Group will
also engage an independent valuer to assist in assessing the value
of the collateral. After the loan is granted, the Group will still conduct
checks on the value of the collateral from time to time. Besides, the
Group will conduct a value check on the collateral when the Group
perceives that there is a huge fluctuation in the relevant market of the
collateral, to ensure that there is no material deterioration in value.

All loans are renewed at the request of the borrowers. The Company
has carried out ongoing credit assessments on renewing loans.
Leveraging on the extensive experience of the executive Directors in
the money lending business, coupled with the credit risk assessment
on the loans for loan recoverability, the Directors believe that even
though some loans are unsecured, personal guarantees have been
provided, the actual risk of default is not high.

The interest rate of the loans are independent of each other and
has been set after considering credit risk, which in turn includes
the possibility of default and the loss given default. The probability
of default and default losses are affected by different factors,
including but not limited to the referrer of the loans, the reputation
of the borrowers and their guarantors, the guarantees provided by
the borrowers, the repayment ability and repayment history of the
borrowers and guarantors and their assets held, the purpose of the
loans, and changes in the economic environment, etc.
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The impairment made on the loan receivables is provided and
recognised according to the requirement of HKFRS 9 issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. It is a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation of the assets’ original effective
interest rate. In respect of loan receivables, credit risk arises from a
customer’s inability and unwillingness to meet its financial obligations
to make timely payments under the loans the Group provided.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment, to
calculate the provision of the impairment. The impairment loss is a
non-cash item.

No loan receivables have been recognised as bad debts during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEA R

Property Development and Management

Lijiang Underground Walkway: The Lijiang Underground Walkway
is located at the underground on Minzhu Road and Fuhui Road,
Lijiang City, Yunan Province, the PRC. The construction and the final
acceptance were completed in 2018 and those shops that have
been pre-sold before the Group’s acquisition have been delivered
to the respective buyers. The gross floor area of the underground
walkway project is approximately 36,583 square metres (“sg. m.”),
comprising a civil air defence work structure of approximately 13,730
sg. m., 741 units of the saleable shop premises with a total gross
floor area of approximately 19,923 sg. m., a non-saleable property
utility room of approximately 15 sq. m. and a commercial function
room of approximately 2,915 sg.m. The Lijiang Underground
Walkway is now held-for-sales purposes but in the meantime,
the shop premises will be leased to generate rental income and
management fee income. A subsidiary of the Group is providing
property management services for the Lijiang Underground Walkway.

During the year, there is still no (2021: HK$nil) property sales revenue
and the management fee income generated was approximately
HK$5,740,000 (2021: HK$12,641,000).

Provision of Regulated Financial Services

During the year, the segment of the provision of regulated financial
services contributed approximately HK$5,610,000 to revenue (2021:
HK$6,930,000, representing a decrease of 19.05% when compared
with 2021). The revenue from the provision of regulated financial
services was generated from asset management services. The
decrease in service income was mainly due to the reduction of the
management fee charged to one of the asset funds managed by the
financial company from 1% to 0.5% per annum since May 2021.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$8,365,000 (2021: HK$5,686,000) which
included approximately HK$3,003,000 and RMB4,731,000.

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings of approximately
HK$487,067,000 (2021: HK$498,584,000) of which approximately
HK$399,392,000 (2021: HK$267,529,000) were repayable on
demand or within one year; approximately HK$7,977,000 (2021:
HK$143,396,000) were repayable in the second year; approximately
HK$78,208,000 (2021: HK$86,199,000) were repayable in the
third to fifth years, inclusive; and approximately HK$1,490,000
(2021:HK$1,460,000) were repayable after five years. The Group’s
total bank and other borrowings divided by total assets as at 31
December 2022 was 44.22% (2021: 39.71%). As at 31 December
2022, the gearing ratio of the Group was 1.62 (2021: 1.15). This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. With the cash and bank balances available, and other
current assets could be converted to cash within a year, the Group
has sufficient financial resources to finance its operations and to
meet the financial obligations of its business.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a net asset value of
HK$296,361,000 (2021: HK$427,150,000), with a liquidity ratio (ratio
of current assets to current liabilities) of 0.88 (2021: 1.32).
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREMN R
CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the share equity of (i) Superactive Financial
Group Company Limited, the operating company of the regulated
financial services; (i) Link Complex Limited, a company which held
the 18% unlisted equity shares of a company which is for provision
of real-time kinematic solution; (ii) Shenzhen Jiaxin Enterprise
Management Company Limited, the holding company of a group
operating the manufacturing of transformers; (iv) Edisoft Investment
Limited, the holding companies of a group operating Lijiang Project,
and its subsidiaries; (v) Shenzhen Baike Enterprise Management Co.,
Ltd., the holding company of a subsidiary operating Lijiang Project;
and (vi) Next Millions Limited, the holding company of a subsidiary
operating the money lending services, were pledged to secure the
Company’s bond issued on 29 December 2017. In addition, the
office properties included in Land and Buildings under Property, Plant
and Equipment and Restricted Bank Deposits were pledged to a
bank to secure the Group’s loans.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in HK$ and RMB. All the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK$ and RMB. The Group did not engage in any
derivative activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to
hedge its financial position exposure as at 31 December 2022.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a staff force of
approximately 300 employees (2021: approximately 300 employees).
Of this, most were stationed in the PRC. The remuneration of
employees was in line with the market trend and commensurable
to the level of pay in the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s
employees includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives
(such as a share option scheme). Total staff costs incurred for
2022 were approximately HK$35,675,000 (2021: approximately
HK$35,943,000).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yeung So Lai (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 45, joined the Company
on 25 January 2017 as an executive Director and acted as the
Chairman of the Company on 8 February 2017. Ms. Yeung has
been appointed as director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. Yeung is presently a director of a number of private companies
engaged in the business of investment holding and is experienced in
corporate management.

Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar (“Mr. Lee”), aged 59, joined the
Company on 25 January 2017 as an executive Director and acted
as the Deputy Chairman of the Company on 8 February 2017. Mr.
Lee has been appointed as director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
Hong Kong Polytechnic) in 1985 and a Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly known as
the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in 1994. He had worked in the
Inland Revenue Department for over 15 years after his graduation.
In 2000, he joined Ernst and Young, an international accounting
firm, as a senior manager. He later obtained a Master degree in
International Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
in 2001. He was the executive director of Newtree Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1323) and Crown International Corporation
Limited (stock code: 0727), both companies are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) from 4 October 2011 to 31 January 2020 and from 23
August 2022 to 1 October 2022, respectively. He is experienced in
corporate management and internal control. He is a fellow member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, he is
a member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EFRREEFR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William (“Mr. Chow”), aged 50, joined the
Company on 8 February 2017 as an independent non-executive
Director, chairman of the nominating and corporate governance
committee, a member of each of the audit and risk committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chow is a certified
public accountant and an executive of an accounting firm in Hong
Kong and has various years of experience in auditing, taxation and
company secretarial practice in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (Hons.) from Hong
Kong Baptist University in 1996. Mr. Chow is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung Man Man (“Mr. Leung”), aged 55, joined the Company
on 17 April 2019 as an independent non-executive Director, a
member of each of the audit and risk committee, nominating and
corporate governance committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Leung has been re-designated as chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 1 June 2022. Mr. Leung
is currently a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and China-Appointed
Attesting Officer. Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor of Laws in the
University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom and passed the
Solicitors’ Final Examination pursuant to the Training Regulations,
1989 in England and Wales. He was admitted as a solicitor of the
High Court in 1997. He is now a partner of Messrs. K M Lai & Lj,
Solicitors.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Continueq)

Mr. Tse Ting Kwan (“Mr. Tse”), aged 47, joined the Company on
1 June 2022 as an independent non-executive Director, chairman
of the audit and risk committee and a member of each of the
nominating and corporate governance committee and remuneration
committee. Mr. Tse has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting. He was the financial controller of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0681)
from December 2006 to September 2020, and he was responsible
for all accounting, finance and tax matters. Mr. Tse has been an
independent non-executive director of Imperium Technology Group
Limited (stock code: 0776) and Thelloy Development Group Limited
(stock code: 1546) since October 2012 and September 2015
respectively, and both companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from Lingnan College (now renamed as Lingnan
University) in November 1997. He is currently a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFERE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a diversified investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review is set out on page 8 to page 18 under Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS
Sales to the largest customer and the five largest customers
accounted for 24.82% and 72.53%, respectively, of total revenues
for the year.

Purchases from the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 6.71% and 31.12%, respectively, of total purchases
for the year.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company'’s total issued shares)
has any interest in the customers or suppliers of the Company
disclosed above.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 110 and the accompanying notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

To enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate the
shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board adopted a
dividend policy on 21 January 2019 (“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to
declare any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to
be declared, the Company shall consider the Company’s financial
results, prospects and other factors, and subject to:

the Company’s Bye-laws;

— the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Bermuda;

— any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

— the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

— any other factors that have a material impact on the Company.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment
and amount of dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion.
The Board has the right to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time as it deems fit according to the financial and business
development requirements of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ISSUANCE OF BONDS

On 29 December 2017, the Company has issued bonds to an
independent third party for a principal amount of HK$300 million. The
bonds are interest-bearing at 8% per annum at issue and interest is
payable quarterly in arrears and matured on 28 December 2019. The
first instalment of interest was payable on 20 March 2018. According
to the subscription agreement, the bonds are non-callable until 29
December 2018. The purpose of the bonds is to satisfy the funding
needs of the money lending operation, the capital expenditures for
the development of nursery education business and the general
working capital of the Group. The proceeds of the bonds were
received on 2 January 2018.

On 28 July 2018, the Group partially repaid the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000.

On 24 December 2019, the Group further partially repaid the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 and the bondholder granted
an extension of the maturity date for the remaining outstanding
principal amount of HK$260,000,000 from 28 December 2019 to 28
December 2020.

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the third
supplemental deed (the “Third Supplemental Deed”) with the
supplemental. Pursuant to the Third Supplemental Deed, the
bond’s interest rate has been raised from 8% per annum to 10%
per annum; the bond’s final maturity date has been extended to
28 June 2022 and to be redeemed by phases. According to the
Third Supplemental Deed, the Company should redeem a bond
with a principal of HK$10,000,000 on 28 December 2020 which
have been settled on 7 January 2021. On or before 28 June 2021,
together with the aggregate principal amount for the redemptions
made after 28 December 2020, the Company shall redeem not less
than principal of HK$20,000,000; On or before 28 December 2021,
together with the aggregate principal amount for the redemptions
made after 28 December 2020, the Company shall redeem not less
than HK$160,000,000. On or before 28 June 2022, the Company
shall redeem all remaining outstanding principal amount of the
bonds.
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DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donation during
the year (2021: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital as at 31 December 2022 are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during 2022 or subsisted at the end of 2022.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 114.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company did not have any distributable reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Yeung So Lai
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (retired on 1 June 2022)

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William
Mr. Leung Man Man
M. Tse Ting Kwan (appointed on 1 June 2022)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the current directors are set out on page
19 to page 21 of this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
ROTATION

The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with Bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws and Code Provision
B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. All of the independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for a specific term.

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
Yeung So Lai and Mr. Chow Wai Leung William shall retire from the
Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, and offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not expiring or determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS
Details of Director's emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The executive Directors, Ms. Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi
Shing Caesar have waived part of their salaries of approximately
HK$6,600,000 and HK$5,400,000 respectively during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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PROFIT GUARANTEE

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 4 July 2018
entered into amongst Sino Worldwide Electronic (Shenzhen)
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the Purchaser, Mr. Zhuang Juewei, as the Vendor, in
relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interest of Shenzhen
Jiaxin Enterprise Management Company Limited (“Shenzhen Jiaxin”)
and the loan owing by Shenzhen Jiaxin to the Vendor, the Vendor
has warranted and guaranteed to the Purchaser that the audited
profit of Shenzhen Dowis Electronics Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Dowis”) and Zhaoging Shengxiang Electronic Technology Company
Limited (“Zhaoging Shengxiang”) for three full financial years following
the completion of the said acquisition (the “Profit Guaranteed
Period”) in aggregate shall not be less than the total amount of
RMB15,000,000.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21
September 2022, the aggregate audited profit of Shenzhen Dowis
and Zhaoqing Shengxiang after adjustment for the Profit Guaranteed
Period was not less than RMB15,000,000. Therefore, the Profit
Guarantee has been fulfiled.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they have taken or are
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continueq)

EFENE2FREMBEEBE
SFZm (#

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company RERATRNZEFE
Number of shares
R &E
Percentage
of aggregate
interest to total
number of
Name of director Corporate Interest shares in issue*
Harew
HEHITRDBEH
EEns ZER
Ms. Yeung So Lai 1,152,731,9971 1,152,731,997 56.71%
BEREXL
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar 1,152,731,997@ 1,152,731,997 56.71%
Notes: fsE -

(1)

This represents interest hold by Ms. Yeung So Lai through Super Fame Holdings
Limited (“Super Fame”) which holds 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company. Ms.
Yeung So Lai has 55% interest in Super Fame, and she is therefore deemed to
be interested in 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company.

This represents interest held by Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar through Super Fame
which holds 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company. Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar
has 45% interest in Super Fame, and he is therefore deemed to be interested in
1,152,731,997 shares of the Company.

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 2,082,571,385 shares).

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Directors nor any of
their associates, had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
headed “Related Party Transactions”, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors is considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE REATIREPZEFEES
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of those R _ZT__HF+_HB=+—H REF
persons (other than Directors whose interests disclosed above) in the 5 R EAE R BIEI36HF AR B BFEZ
ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares of the Company as &I EE’ ZZE AL (FEEEER
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 N ENXEBEZEER) RA AR EER KX
of the SFO were as follows: MEEERTE CERIUEATT !

Long Positions e

Percentage

of aggregate

interest to total

Capacity in which Number of number of

shares were held shares shares in issue*
HatEm

HEEITRH

FERGNEH &R Y A= g

Super Fame! Beneficial owner 1,152,731,997 (L) 56.71%
By BEmEAA
Jade Treasure Global Limited Security interest 1,152,731,997 (L) 56.71%

(“Jade Treasure”)?
RERIKAERAR (MB3E)) 2 IR S

Ms. Lee Kelly® Interest in controlled 199,467,500 (L) 9.81%
corporation
Lee Kellyzz 12 SEEBE Z m
L:  Long position L. A
Notes: MI5E -

1. Super Fame is owned as to 55% by Ms. Yeung So Lai and 45% by Mr. Lee 1. BLEBEEZIREIEREEDNES

Chi Shing Caesar. As such, Ms. Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar 55% K 45% o At B RB R T REEM
were deemed to be interested in 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company held by AR ARBARFEN,152,731,997 K&
Super Fame. REIRIDPEE
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Long Positions (Continuea)
Notes: (Continued)

2. Jade Treasure is wholly-owned by Wise Prismatic Limited (“Wise Prismatic”).
Wise Prismatic is wholly-owned by China Huarong Overseas Investment
Holdings Co., Limited (“Huarong Overseas Investment”), which in turn is
wholly-owned by Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset Management”). Huarong Overseas Chinese
Asset Management is owned as to 91% by Huarong Zhiyan Investment &
Management Co. Ltd (“Huarong Zhiyan”) which in turn wholly-owned by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong”). Thus, each Wise
Prismatic, Huarong Overseas Investment, Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset
Management, Huarong Zhiyan and China Huarong is deemed to be interested in
1,152,731,997 Shares in which Jade Treasure has a security interest.

3. Mega Success Holding Limited (“Mega Success”) beneficially owned
100,475,000 Shares and Mercy Way Limited (“Mercy Way”) beneficially owned
98,992,500 Shares. Both Mega Success and Mercy Way are solely owned by
Ms. Lee Kelly. Therefore, Ms. Lee Kelly was deemed to be interested in Shares
held by each of Mega Success and Mercy Way.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 2,032,571,385 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
has not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the
ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors throughout the year and
up to the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float of
not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in the form of
contributions to Hong Kong’s Mandatory Provident Fund and the
PRC statutory public welfare fund, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to requirements of the Listing Rules.
Other transactions which were exempted from the requirements of
the Listing Rules are also disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements as related party transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they are or any of them shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report.

SHARE OPTION

On 6 June 2017, a resolution was passed in the 2017 annual general
meeting of the Company to adopt a new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has granted the listing
of, and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may
fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which was
granted and/or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2022, no share options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)

(A) Share Option Scheme
Purpose

To attract and retain the grantees and to promote the success

of the business of the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@) any director, employee, consultant or advisor, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest

or a subsidiary of such company (the “Affiliate”)

(b) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant or advisor, substantial shareholder, distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or

service provider to the Group or an Affiliate

Exercise price

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher

of:

(@) the closing price of one (1) share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets at the offer date, which

must be a business day;

(o) the average closing price of one (1) share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five (5)
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of the share on the offer date,

provided that in case of fractional prices, the exercise price per
share shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cents.
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)

(A) Share Option Scheme (Continuea)

Total number of shares available for issue and the
percentage of the issued share capital that it represents
as at the date of this annual report

203,257,138 shares, being approximately 10% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up
under the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date
on which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of the
offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$1.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 5 June 2027, after
which no further options will be granted, but the provisions
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme
and remain unexercised immediately prior to 5 June 2027 shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of the
grant, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Continueq)

(B) Movements of the Share Option Scheme
No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since the date of the adoption of the scheme.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Confucius International CPA Limited which will retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Superactive Group Company Limited

Yeung So Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Superactive Group Company Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), is committed to maintaining
good corporate governance standards and procedures to ensure the
integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure, thereby enhancing
shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of The Corporate
Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of corporate
governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code except
for the deviation from code provision C.2.1.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The office of the chief executive
is currently vacant as explained under the section “CHAIRMAN AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR”.

Save as aforesaid and in the opinion of the directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company recognise the importance of stakeholders at the
Board level and throughout the Group, the Company strive to
create value for the stakeholders through sustainable growth and
continuous development.

The Board of the Company has set out the following values to
provide guidance on employees’ conduct and behaviours as well as
the business activities, and to ensure they are embedded throughout
the Company’s vision, mission, policies and business strategies:

(i)  Integrity. The Company strive to do what is right. The Board
promote the desired culture to instil and continually reinforce
across the Group the values of acting lawfully, ethically and
responsibly. The Group has adopted the whistleblowing
policy and the anti-fraud and counter-corruption policy to
provide reporting channel for the issues and concerns on any
misconduct and to uphold business integrity in its operations.
and

(i) Sustainability. The Company are committed to a sustainable
future. The Group will continuously review and adjust, if
necessary, its business strategies and keep track of the
changing market conditions to ensure prompt and proactive
measures will be taken to respond to the changes and meet the
market needs to foster the sustainability of the Group.

A healthy corporate culture is important to good corporate
governance, which is crucial for achieving sustainable long-term
success of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transactions by Directors as set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

T EXER R

RABREFNENEFTERAEKRE A
EEEENER sREEIEBBAF
BRERNFELER BNAFNHEAE
BlE-

ARBEFEEHIE TIEER »E
BEZBRTROTAUREREEHRMIE
5 WHERZSEBERBARTAT ZE
B BURKREFFRES

) FE-ERABNMERNSE-ER
SHFPARENXE mAEEE
TEBMAEMBUTE BT E
BREEEINEETSENEES-
B B R B IRER K D 5ER K
REFSHER BBEBEATETS
WEEMEERHBRRERE T
ERRANENCEES &

(i) AIRFEER HMARNGENTE
HRRK - FEBRFERSH
EBRBUEAXEZRMLUBE
TR BRSBTS LU
fRIDVER & T BN R EVE i FE B B E
MEMBBR EMESHTER
PIFTEE R

BENEEXTCHRENEEEARAER
B2 BEYAEEERRENINSE
fifFe

EFZERFTRSB

AT B EHRA MR+ z £
TETAZEFETREST RS ZIRET
A (MEETR)) FIAIEFETESRRS
BRARZ 2 HERE-

PREERF O ONEBEE_SE__F+_
BZ4+—HIEEEEFER #E—HE
STIZESTRIFR & 2 FRENEE



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of Directors is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
investment and strategic decisions and performance. The Board
delegated authority and responsibility for the daily management of
the Group to the manager while reserving certain key matters for
approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report. As at
the date of this annual report, the Board consists of five Directors
including two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Executive Directors
Ms. Yeung So Lai (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chow Wai Leung William

Mr. Leung Man Man

Mr. Tse Ting Kwan

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, and they are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company (“‘Bye-Laws”) and the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board and has met the recommended practice under the
CG Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. The biographical
information of the Directors is set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 19 to 21 of this annual
report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group
in respect of relevant actions against the Directors and officers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The office of the chief executive is currently vacant that the roles and
duties of which are assumed by the Board. The executive Directors
are responsible for the daily management of the business. Therefore,
a clear division of responsibilities is in place and a balance of power
and authority is ensured.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high calibre, with academic and professional qualifications, and
extensive experience in several fields including accounting, financial,
management, etc. With their extensive experience, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have given their annual
confirmation of independence to the Company, and the Company
considered that they are independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term, and they are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Bye-Laws and the Listing Rules. None of the independent
non-executive Directors has served more than nine years during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms
will be reviewed annually by the Board. The Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the following mechanisms at the
Board meeting:

(@) Three out of the five Directors are INEDs, which exceeds the

requirement of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the
Board are independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE (Continued)

)

Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by
the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain Board
committees, INEDs will be appointed to all Board committees as
far as possible to ensure independent views are available.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will
assess the independence of a candidate who is nominated
to be a new INED before the appointment and the continued
independence of the current long-serving INEDs on an annual
basis.

Each INED is also required to inform the Company as soon
as practicable if there is any change in his/her own personal
particulars that may materially affect his/her independence.

All INEDs are required to submit a written confirmation to the
Company annually to confirm the independence of each of them
and their immediate family members, and their compliance with
the requirements as set out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be
discussed at board meetings. They can also seek assistance
from the Company’s company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”) and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open
and candid manner during the Board/Board Committees
meetings.

A Director (including INED) who has a material interest in any
contract, transaction or arrangement shall abstain from voting
and not be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution
approving the same.

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to INEDs.
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ERERNS

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has held
6 meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to include any
matters in the agenda for all Board meetings and are given sufficient
time to review documents and information relating to matters to be
discussed during the Board meetings in advance. For all regular
Board meetings, the Board reviewed the operation and financial
performance, and reviewed and approved the annual and interim
results. And in order to ensure all Directors could plan in advance
their availability, a notice of at least 14 days is given for the regular
meeting. Details of the attendance of each director are listed under
the section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and
has the right to seek external professional advice if so required.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction covering
the Group’s business operations, policies and procedures and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company.
The Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Company
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to
Directors and senior management where appropriate, to ensure
awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

According to the records provided by the Directors, during the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, the Directors

participated in the following training:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HITEE

Ms. Yeung So Lai mERBELL

Mr. Lee Chig Shing Caesar =ERSE
Independent Non-executive Director 15__2 FEMITEE
Ms. Hu Gin Ing' BA SR 2 L
Mr. Chow Wai Leung William BERLE
Mr. Lee Man Man RBR&E

Mr. Tse Ting Kwan? HE S E?

A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to directors’
duties

B:  reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy general
business or directors’ duties etc.

! Ms. Hu Gin Ing retired on 1 June 2022.
2 Mr. Tse Ting Kwan was appointed on 1 June 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established the following committees to assist the
Company in the implementation of its functions:

Audit and Risk Committee

The Company established the Audit and Risk Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules and currently
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tse Ting Kwan (chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee), Mr.
Chow Wai Leung William and Mr. Leung Man Man.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit and Risk Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference adopted by the Audit and Risk Committee are
aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The terms
of reference setting out the Audit and Risk Committee’s authority,
duties and responsibilities are available on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit and Risk Committee shall meet the external auditor to
discuss any area of concern during the audit or review. The Audit
and Risk Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit and Committee focus not only
on the impact of standards but also on the Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Group’s interim and annual
reports.

During the year, the Audit and Risk Committee held 3 meetings and
reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021 together with the auditor of the Group. Details
of the attendance of each director are listed under the section
“‘MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report. In the opinion
of the Audit and Risk Committee, the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules.

Major work completed by the Audit and Risk Committee during the
year include:

—  reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim financial information
and annual financial statements;

—  reviewed significant accounting and audit issues;

—  reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications, independence and
performance;

— assisted the Board to evaluate on the effectiveness of financial
reporting procedures and internal control system;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit and Risk Committee (Continued)
— advised on the material event or drawing the attention of the
management on related risks; and

- reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management, internal control and related
policies.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
The Company established the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Listing Rules currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Wai Leung
William (chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee), Mr. Leung Man Man and Mr. Tse Ting Kwan.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is mainly
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board, identifying qualified individuals to become members of
the Board, assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. Moreover, the
committee will ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance.

During the year, the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee held 1 meeting. Details of the attendance of each
director are listed under the section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The terms of reference setting out the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules and currently
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Leung Man Man (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Chow Wai Leung William and Mr. Tse Ting Kwan.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all Directors
and senior management (including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments), making recommendations to the
Board on matters relating to the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to
discuss remuneration-related matters, and review the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and INEDs. No Directors was
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration at the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the attendance of each
director are listed under the section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s

authority, duties and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD AND WORKFORCE

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age (eighteen years old or
above), cultural and educational background, qualification, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. Al
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Company value gender
diversity and the Board currently has directors of different genders.
The Board will consider amending the Board diversity policy to
include the appointment of at least a director of a different gender
so that the potential successors of the board can maintain gender
diversity.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee monitors
the implementation of the Board diversity policy to ensure its
effectiveness of the Board diversity policy. The Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee reviewed the Nomination Policy
and the Board Diversity Policy and considered that the said policies
were appropriate and effective. Further, it reviewed the biographies
of the Directors, assessed the continued independence of each
INED and recommended Ms. Yeung So Lai and Mr. Chow Wai
Leung William (“Retiring Directors”) to the Board for considering
their re-election at the forthcoming AGM based on the Bye-Laws,
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee believed that
the Retiring Directors will continue to contribute to the Board with
their skills, experience and knowledge. It also noted that none of the
INEDs of the Company is a long serving INED.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender diversity)
across all levels of the Group. The employee gender ratio of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 is approximately 50:50. The Group
when hiring employees considers a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service, and the Group will make sure achieving gender
diversity across the workforce.
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 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELRS

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit and Risk Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor and approving the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures.
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Confucius International CPA Limited, is set out
below:

ZBRTS
FEZBARTS

Audit services
Non-audit services

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company Secretary
duly complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company commits to place shareholders’ interests as the
top priority and protect their rights as provided in the Bye-Laws.
Shareholders can visit the Company’s website (www.superactive.
com.hk) to gain access to the Company’s up-to-date information.
They are entitled to be given due notice to attend all the general
meetings of the Company, vote on all the resolutions (except for
those on which shareholders may have a conflict of interest and
are required to abstain from voting) and raise questions to the
management on the Group’s status and development plans.

Shareholders as duly registered holders of the ordinary shares of the
Company (“Members”) are also entitled to the requisition to convene
an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
Details of the requirements and procedures are as follows:

(i)  Any one or more Members holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company may send a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to convene a
general meeting;

(i)  The requisition must be duly signed by the requisitionist,
specifying the requisitionist's name, contact details and the
number of ordinary shares of the Company that the requisitionist
is holding and the matters proposed to be discussed and
transacted in the general meeting. The requisition must be
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 1510, 15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong;

(iiy The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed
with the necessary procedures including the convening of a
general meeting; and

(iv) The general meeting shall be held within three (3) months after
the deposit of the requisition.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a general
meeting, the requisitionist himself may convene a general meeting in
the same manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders so that they can exercise their rights in an informed
manner. Information about the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders through:

(i)

delivery of interim and annual results and reports to all
shareholders;

publication of announcements on interim and annual results on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and
issuance of other announcements and shareholders’ circulars in
accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations under the
Listing Rules; and

the general meeting of the Company is an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.
As such, the Board members attended the 2022 annual general
meeting and other extraordinary general meetings during the
year to provide shareholders with opportunities to understand
the latest development of the Group and raise questions.

The 2022 annual general meeting was held on 1 June 2022. Details
of the attendance of each director are listed under the section
“MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report.

There were no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERNS

MEETINGS g&

The Board meets on a regular and ad hoc basis, as required by ZEEEEHRKBREBMEFAKRITE
business needs. The attendance of each Director at the Board #H BFEEFERBE_ZT__F+8
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings during the year =+T—HBLEFELHFEETEITZ L8
ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the following table: BEEAREAGHERHNTE

Attendance/Number of meetings
HERY B

Nominating
and
Audit Corporate

and Risk  Governance Remuneration

Board  Committee = Committee = Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

RE&R

tEER
Exgg3 # ZR9E9R : REAE

Executive Directors HITEE

Ms. Yeung So Lai BEELT 66 NATERA NATER NATER 11
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar FERRE 66 NATER NARER NATER 1/1

Inclependent non-executive BUFRITEE

Directors
Ms. Hu Gin Ing' MREL L 2/2 2/2 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chow Wai Leung Willam ~ BERLAE 6/6 3/3 11 11 11
Mr. Leung Man Man REREE 6/6 3/3 11 11 11
Mr. Tse Ting Kwan? HELE? 4/4 171 NATER NATER NATEA
L Ms. Hu Gin Ing retired on 1 June 2022. g PRET TR S —F A —HAREe
2 Mr. Tse Ting Kwan was appointed on 1 June 2022. 2 HHEHEENR S _FB—BESME
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
accounts for each financial period and to ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the
timely publication of the consolidated financial statements. The
Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$93,426,000 and as at the same date its cash
and cash equivalents amount to approximately HK$8,365,000.
In addition, as at 31 December 2022, the principal amount and
the interest of bond payables of approximately HK$367,268,000
were not repaid in accordance with the terms of the agreements.
Such default entitled the bondholder a right to demand immediate
repayment from the Group. Save as disclosed, the Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any
other material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing corporate
governance duties and is annually reviewed by the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee, including:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and the Audit and
Risk Committee reviewing their effectiveness at least annually.

As a part of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established by the Group to ensure that assets are safeguarded
against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that
may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately identified
and managed.

The Audit and Risk Committee performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, including but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope with
its business transformation and changing external environment; the
scope and quality of management’s review on risk management
and internal control systems; result of internal audit work; the
extent and frequency of communication with the Board in relation
to the result of risk and internal control review; significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems in place for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this Annual Report
to be effective and adequate.

However, the risk management and internal control systems can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERNS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continueq)

The Group does not have an internal audit function and is currently of
the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the Group’s business. The Company has engaged an external
professional internal control consultant firm, Ammo Group Corporate
Service Limited, to provide internal audit services to the Group on an
annual basis.

During the year, the Board reviewed the report issued by the external
internal control consultant firm and discussed the risk management
and internal control systems and no material internal control failings,
weaknesses or deficiencies have been identified during the course of
the review.

Based on the above, the Board were not aware of any areas
of concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally
effective and adequate including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
accounting, internal control and financial reporting functions.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has formulated its guidelines, with an aim to ensure that
the insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement and fulfil the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy. It provides employees and the
relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers,
suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting
channels for reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters
related to the Group directly addressed to the designated person.

An email account (internalaudit@superactive.com.hk) has been
set up for this purpose. All reported matters will be investigated
independently and, in the meantime, all information received from a
whistleblower and its identity will be kept confidential.

The Board and the Audit and Risk Committee will review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism from time to time as
appropriate and as needed to improve its effectiveness.

ANTI-FRAUD AND COUNTER-CORRUPTION
POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted an Anti-Fraud and Counter-Corruption Policy.
It outlines guidelines and the standards of conduct, all applicable
laws and regulations in relation to the counter-corruption and anti-
bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the
Group defend against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably
suspected cases of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to
the management or through an appropriate reporting channel. The
Group would not tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption among all
employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on
behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing with third parties.

The Board and the Audit and Risk Committee will review the
Anti-Fraud and Counter-Corruption Policy from time to time as
appropriate and as needed to ensure its effectiveness and enforce
the commitment of the Group to the prevention, deterrence,
detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIG-HIERELRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

REPORT OVERVIEW

This report is the annual environmental, social and governance
report (the “Report” or “ESG Report”) published by Superactive
Group Company (the “Superactive” or “We”, and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the disclosure of relevant information
of the Group from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”, “FY2022”, or “2022”). This report is available
on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report discloses the ESG performance of the Group’s business
activities in Hong Kong and PRC, including regulated financial
services and consumer electronics business. Since the data
collection system for the KPIs of the transformer manufacturing
facility has not yet been established, the focus is on the operation
activities mentioned in Hong Kong.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This Report has been prepared in compliance with all the applicable
provisions outlined in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the ESG Reporting Guide) as set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange.

CONTACT AND FEEDBACK

Your feedback is valuable to our continuous improvement, and we
welcome any comments and suggestions you may have on this ESG
Report. You are welcome to provide valuable feedback on this report
or our sustainability performance by email at info@superactive.com.
hk.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains forward-looking statements based on
the current expectations, estimates, projections, beliefs, and
assumptions of the Group about the businesses and the markets in
which it and its subsidiaries operate. The forward-looking statement
is not a guarantee of future performance and is subject to market
risk, uncertainties, and factors beyond the control of the Group.
Therefore, actual outcomes and returns may differ materially from the
assumptions and statements in this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

In the process of preparation of this Report, the Group have adhered
to the reporting principles stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide as
the following:

Materiality: The Group has commenced materiality assessment
to identify material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby
adopting the confirmed material issues as the focus for preparing
the ESG Report. The board and the ESG Working Group reviewed
and approved the materiality of issues. Please refer to the sections
headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” for
further details.

Quantitative: Each department of the Group coordinates to collect
and record the key performance data regarding the environment
and society, thereby presenting the Group’s performance in the
environmental and social key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
through quantified data disclosed in the ESG Report to explain any
standards, methodologies, and sources of conversion factors used in
calculating emissions and energy consumption.

Balance: The Group describes each issue in an accurate, unbiased,
and fair manner and discloses both positive and negative information
about the Group during the Reporting Period to ensure the content
balance and help readers reasonably assess the overall performance
of the Group.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this ESG Report is
substantially consistent with the previous year, and explanations are
provided regarding data with changes in the scope of disclosure and
calculation methodologies to ensure a year-to-year data comparison.
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BOARD STATEMENT AND ESG GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

o O

EFERARRE -HERE

BAEREE

Q .
,’T\“’Y\\ The Board EE €

e Oversee all the Group’s ESG issues s EEAREEFMBRE - HEREAEHE
e Provide ESG management approaches and strategies o RBMIRE - HEREAEEHEKREKE
e Review ESG-related goals and targets s BFRIRE - EREAEMERKIER j
7~ \
0 9.0
ESG Working Group
% RIE-HtEREBITIEIE
e  Collect, and analyse ESG data and evaluate o WEUDWERE - HEREAHEK
the effectiveness of policies and procedures TEB R MR A BT
e Ensure the implementation of the plan to reach e MBRFAZBHLULUERERE T
the ESG goals ERERE
e Ensure compliance with ESG-related laws o EET%Lﬁiai% g REBERE
and regulation EEER
e Report to the Board and compile the annual e MEUMEFERETFERE -HE
9 ESG report MRERKRE \
BOARD’S OVERSIGHT OF ESG ISSUES EFEHRIR-HEREBRFEZ
B
While striving to create value for its shareholders, the Group also MRENAKREBRAIGSEBENRE  AEER
endeavours to fulfil its corporate social responsibility. We view our 7N NIEITHEFEHEEE - HMEIR

ESG commitment as part of our corporate social responsibility
and are committed to incorporating ESG considerations into our
decision-making process. To achieve this goal, we have developed
a core governance framework to ensure that ESG is aligned with
our strategic growth while advocating the integration of ESG into our
business operations. The corporate social responsibility structure
is divided into the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the ESG
Working Group.

The Board has ultimate oversight responsibility for the Group’s ESG
matters, including ESG approach, strategies, and policies. To better
manage the Group’s ESG performance and identify potential risks,
the Board of Directors, with the assistance of the ESG Working
Group, conducts regular materiality assessments concerning the
opinions of different stakeholders to assess and prioritise important
ESG-related matters.
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THE ESG WORKING GROUP

Under the leadership of the Board, the ESG work has been
carried out by a designated ESG Working Group of core personnel
from different departments to facilitate the Board’s oversight of
ESG matters. During the Reporting Period, the Working Group
undertook all-around ESG-related issues, including briefing ESG
targets, strategies, and initiatives to the Board, collecting ESG
data, overseeing and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance and
assisting in the preparation of ESG reports.

The ESG Working Group also arranges regular meetings to assess
the effectiveness of current policies and procedures and develop
appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance of ESG
policies. At the meeting, the ESG Working Group discusses existing
and plans, reduces potential risks and minimises disruption to
its business operations. The ESG Working Group will report to
the Board on a regular basis to evaluate the implementation and
effectiveness of the internal control mechanism and to review the
progress of established goals and targets. The ESG Working Group
will also be involved in enterprise risk management to assist in
the assessment and identification of the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved this Report.
To the best of its knowledge, this Report fairly addresses the
identified material issues and presents the ESG management
approach and performance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding
its business and ESG aspects. To understand their concerns
and opinions in this respect, the Group regularly communicates
with its stakeholders. Based on the industry background and
sustainable development, our key stakeholders are included but
not limited to shareholders and investors, customers, employees,
suppliers, communities and NGOs, media, and the public, as well
as government and regulatory authorities. We aim to collaborate
with our stakeholders to improve our ESG performance and create
greater value for the broader community continuously.
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f"*‘ HEREARE

The Group has put in place a variety of communication channels,
timely disclosing information on its operations and ESG performance
and other aspects to stakeholders. In this way, we increase
stakeholders’ understanding and recognition of the Group and
integrate the collected stakeholder expectations into our operations
to protect the stakeholders’ right to information and participation.
The following table provides an overview of the Group’s main
stakeholders and various platforms and communication channels to

reach and respond.

Major Stakeholders Engagement Channels
FERFHE BiRRE
Shareholders and Investors o

REKRKEE .

Customers o

Employees °

B& .

FEBRYZEBERERE  KERAFN
ERBAERSERRE - HERER
RFEEHEVER -BBILTF 0 LUEM
RMENFTERN T BKREE FUlE
ARFNENHERALERZESR R
(BRI BN ZEE - TR A
EEXERMERSEEBEROENTS
ESER

Annual General meetings and other shareholders’ meetings

Financial reports
Announcements and circles
Company websites
RERBFEREREMBEREE
MBRE

NERIBE

NGIE DA

Customer service hotline
Customer complaint mechanism
Social media

Questionnaires

X P IRFSEAR

SR ol

R

HES

Training, seminars, and briefing sessions

Performance reviews

Employee complaint mechanism
Al ERERENE
RIFEZ

1B B sl
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Major Stakeholders
FERNE

Suppliers

e

Communities and NGOs

& K IR BUM 4B 4

Media and the Public

REE R AR

Government and

Regulatory Authorities
BT Be E 118
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Engagement Channels
EERE

Supplier evaluation meeting
Supplier audit

Tender selection
HER T T

AR ER

RIRERE

Community activities
Employees volunteer activities
Sponsor and donation
H&EE

EBERIEE

B KIR0E

ESG Report

Company website
RE-HEKREARRS
NEIAFIL

Written or electronic correspondence

Phone meetings
EERETER

o =
==RE gu&
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Through continuous communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns of stakeholders. Material
issues of FY2022 are identified and evaluated based on the global
sustainability agenda and international best practices, the Group’s
operation risks and strategies, and stakeholder opinions. The Group
discussed with key stakeholders on critical ESG issues to ensure
all essential aspects were covered. Through internal discussion,
the validated ESG issues are approved for adoption. A materiality
assessment in the form of a survey has been compiled by the identified
material ESG topics to solicit views and feedback from stakeholders.
The Group has analysed the survey results and presented them in a
materiality matrix. The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s
material ESG issues during the Reporting Period:

High =
FMEEMER

Impact on Stakeholders %1155 & Ky 82 2

EEHETMH
BBEFHERFERR AEETRE
HENBRE REEE- *Eﬁﬁiﬂijﬁﬁg
BREEMEFRREER -AEEEE
A&%%u&%fﬁ%ﬁ@%%%ﬁff&ﬂ
BZE I _HMFEREEH - AEEET
ERMENmEARRIE LT RERSE
I8 R HEPI B RS E BB A
i KBRFIRE -T2 MEAMEE]R
ERB - —EHEREEARIRE - HEK
EREENBEEMTIHEMUBAELRE
T UERFNENERERE - AEEH
EHAESERETON TUEEME
R E2 - U TEEAREHAANLRE
EEXRRE - HERERAZERE .

Superactive Materiaility Matrix

0 (1)
0009
0® ©
® o

Low &
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No. Material Issues

WIREELEE

®© o0 NN OO OO AR WD

Privacy Protection
ThIRIRIE
Anti-corruption

k&5

Labour Standards
HITRE

Employment Practices
%155

Product Responsibility
EmaE

Occupational Health and Safety
BkEREEZS
Training and Development
Eoll s 3

Energy Management
SEREE
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No. Material Issues

WIREEMSEE

g,
9.

10.
10.
11.
11.
12.
12.
13.
13.
14.
14.
15.
15.
16.
16.

Use of Resources

BRER

Customer Services

B RIR

Supply Chain Management
HEHEEIE

Community Investment
HERE

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
N GH ERERIE

Green Purchasing

KR EERRE

Emissions and Waste Control
P s B E

Climate Change

RIZE1E
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group values the importance of sound environmental
management and is committed to fulfilling its commitment to the
well-being of society. The Group understands that its business
activities and operations may pose different levels of impact on
the environment. The Group strives to protect the environment
by implementing control activities and monitoring measures in its
business activities and workplace. We are committed to promoting
a green environment by introducing environmentally friendly business
practices, educating our employees to raise their environmental
protection awareness, and complying with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations.

A1. Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with environmental-related laws
and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that
would have a significant impact on the Group. Such laws
and regulations include but are not limited to the Waste
Disposal Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control Ordinance,
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC and the
Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC.

Air Emissions

The principal source of emissions arising from the Group’s
operation was fuel consumed by vehicles. In response to the
above source, the following emission reduction measures are
actively adopted:

e  Seek prior approval from the department head for vehicle

use to ensure a well-planned transportation route to
minimise unnecessary transportation needs;

e Ensure all the Group’s vehicles function in the optimum
conditions through regular maintenance;
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e Prioritise the local vendors for product and service supplies
selection to shorten the distance transportation; and

e Arrange regular examinations for business vehicles on
exhaust gas emissions.

During the Reporting Period, exhaust gas emissions declined
compared to 2021 due to decreased vehicle usage. The
Group’s air emissions performances were as follows:

Type of Air Emissions Unit
REHIRYER B
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg
KA 164(NOX) /NS
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg
BREE¥(SOX) N
Particulate matter (PM) kg
FERL(PM) /N

IRt - HERERRS

s RNREZEMKRFHERESL
ERAMBE R LUiEREERIE
B &

s RHIBFEEWEMMETER
AR ©

REEHAN > BN EWERRL B
REMBR B _—FBA T ER
ERRESFRYERRAOT

Air Emissions

REEHERY

5.86 7.76
0.14 0.16
0.43 0.57

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Greenhouse gas is considered one of the significant
contributors to climate change and global warming. The
primary sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are generated
from diesel consumed by vehicles (Scope 1) and purchased
electricity (Scope 2). We have adopted the following measures
to reduce GHG emissions during operation:

e Plan routes ahead of time to optimise fuel consumption;

e  Switch off the engine whenever the vehicle is idling;

e Conduct regular vehicle maintenance to ensure optimal
engine performance and fuel use.

BERE (TCRERAR) B
BEREBHRBAEERRIGEEEK
ERERNEERRZ —F&H
BEREHREEZRRISEMER
pySom (BE1) RINEE (BE
2) - RASEHARE > HAIB R
FE B DR E RS HFI

o IRRIARBNERAR > UECHKE
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During the Reporting Period, the total GHG emissions of the
Group equalled 39.44 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

RBREHRN *EBRERETK
MENMENRIMUMBE_ALIRES

(“tCO2e”), representing a decrease compared to 2021 due to (M| EREE)) » AR B
SMEEEN BT " —FRL
BRI TR AEEERENR 2=
TERBEERBHNE ERE5%H
B> wHEEBEH AR E RS
BB N EEEUEIREZ

efficient energy-saving measures. The Group has set a target
of lowering the GHG emissions intensity by 5% in 2030 and
expects to achieve this through continuous review of the above

GHG reduction measures.

Indicator!

TN

Direct GHG Emissions (Scope 1)
BEREAEREBEIK (BEN)
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)
BRAEREHNR EE2)

Unit Greenhouse Gas
B (GHG) Emission
AERE (CRERE)) HEK
FY2022
—EME
tCO2e 23.23 28.1
WS EIRE 2
tCO2e 16.21 16.43

Hin

M — &R E

Total GHG emissions

tCOze 39.44 44.63

BERBBEERE W—RIEREE
GHG emissions intensity? tCOze/employee 1.58 1.59
BERBEBEREE? WStk E=E
B8
Notes: Bt -
1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent 1. BERBHENEELE_SCRE=S

and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World

2 RER (BRER) R E R
PREERETHBEERTHEETRM

Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable HORERBZETEE | bxItHERSE

Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix II: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX and the
Sustainability Report 2021 published by Hong Kong Electric Investments

1RHEE) ~ BB Z FraME (N AE AR
B HEREARE M R
BEBEVIERERES ) R(ZFZ—F

Limited. BEENREERATAIFELER
&)o
2. The intensity data is calculated based on the number of employees on 31 2. BEHERBZIZ__£+°=A

December 2022 (a total of 25 employees). The data is also used for other

intensity calculations.

—t+t—HNEEAH H25ES) 5t
H-ZBBETARAEMEEAE-
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Sewage Discharge

Due to its business nature, the Group does not consume a
significant volume of water in its daily operation. The data on
water consumption and corresponding water conservation
measures are described in the section headed “Water
Management” under aspect A2.

Waste Management

Hazardous Waste

Given its business nature, the headquarter office in Hong Kong
did not generate a significant amount of hazardous waste
during the Reporting Period. Even though the Group did not
generate hazardous waste during the Reporting Period, the
Group nevertheless has established guidelines governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes. In case of
any generation of hazardous wastes, the Group must engage
a qualified chemical waste collector to handle such wastes and
comply with relevant environmental rules and regulations.

Non-hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s business
activities are mainly paper. The Group upholds its high
standards in waste reduction and is committed to handling and
disposing of all wastes generated by our business activities by
the principle of sustainability and the methodology of the 4R
Policy (‘Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace”). Employees in
the Group have been encouraged to sort recycled wastes into
appropriate containers

At the same time, the Group has adopted the following
practices to reduce paper consumption at source:

e  Minimise paper usage at the workplace by recycling used
papers regularly and using double-sided printing; and

e Recycle and reuse papers, carton boxes, envelopes and
folders which have been used, including all non-confidential
documents from the Group.
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A2,

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated a total of
0.36 tonnes of non-hazardous waste.

MNERSHARE » REBE £ ZE40.36M
EEREEY) o

Type of Waste Disposal Unit Waste Management

EE =Y R BT B BEEYEIR
Non-hazardous waste tonnes 0.36 0.59
mEBEEY U

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee 0.01 0.02
BREBEEVMEE =]

Use of Resources A2. BR{EH

The Group actively promotes the effective use of resources,
monitors the potential impacts that its business operations
bring to the environment, and instils awareness of resource
conservation and environmental protection into the work and
life of each employee. As stated in aspect A1, the Group has
formulated relevant environmental management policies and
procedures to manage water, electricity, diesel, and petrol use.
The Group also focus on the management of the major energy-
consuming equipment and standardises the operational flow
and process to consume energy fully and effectively.

Energy Management

The Group aims to minimise the environmental impacts resulting
from our operations by identifying and adopting appropriate
measures. Energy policies, measures, and practices have been
developed to show our commitment to energy efficiency. All
employees are required to adopt such measures and practices,
including purchasing energy-efficient products, and assume
responsibility for the Group’s overall energy efficiency.
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The energy consumption of the Group was mainly contributed
by the electricity consumed in operation and diesel consumed
by vehicles. The Group has introduced various measures and
initiatives to achieve the goal of energy saving and efficient
consumption. Such measures and initiatives include but not
limited to:

e Install energy-efficient Light-emitting Diode (“LED”) lights;
e  Replace old models of machines with high consumption of
electricity;

e  Prioritise higher energy-efficient models when purchasing
new office appliances;

e Encourage employees to turn off idling equipment,
computers, and lighting when not in use or after working
hours;

e Utilise natural lighting and natural ventilation in the
workplace; and

e  Maintain comfortable room temperature at 25 degrees
Celsius.

IRt - HERERRS
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During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed a total of
116.83 MWh, with an energy consumption intensity of 4.7
MWh per employee. The Group has set a target of lowering
energy consumption by 3% in 2030 and expects to achieve
this through continuous review of the above energy-saving
measures. The Group’s performance of energy consumption
was as follows:

NEREHR > RER L IHFE116.83

%Eﬁ% BLEIEREETRES

47EF -AEEBHE_E=F

FHERHFEMRES% B » THIE
PPN

BEEE FMEBEREETFESS
UEBIRBEEZE - AEBMERHER

WAT -

Type of Energy Consumption Unit Energy Consumption
RERHFERRE B AEIRIEAE

Direct Energy Consumption MWh

BEEREIRHFE JEEBF

e Diesel MWh 93.99 102.78
o LB JKFUBF

Indirect Energy Consumption MWh

FE 45 RE R H #E JE B

Purchased Electricity MWh 22.84 23.13
SMEBES JKFU B

Total Energy Consumption MWh 116.83 125.91
RERHFER S JEERBF

Energy Consumption Intensity MWh/employee 4.7 4.5
RERHERE kKEER EE

Water Management KEFEEE

The Group’s offices are situated in commercial buildings where
water usage is covered by the tenancy fee. Hence, it is not
feasible for the Group to provide water consumption data as no
sub-meter records water usage. Given our operating locations,
the Group does not encounter any significant issues in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose.

Despite this, the Group strives to reduce unnecessary water
consumption. Any leakage and damage to the water supply
facilities will be reported to the maintenance team immediately
for replacement or repair to avoid water wastage. Water-saving
posters are placed in the workplace to increase the employees’
awareness of water conservation.
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Packaging materials

Due to its business nature, we do not consume significant
amount of package materials. The use of it is not considered a
material ESG issue to the Group.

The Environmental and Natural Resources
Although the core business of the Group has a remote
impact on the environment and natural resources, the Group
recognises the responsibility of minimising the negative
environmental effects of our business operations to achieve
sustainable development for generating long-term value for
our stakeholders and the community as a whole. We regularly
assess the environmental risks of our business and adopt
preventive measures as necessary to reduce the risks and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. For more
detailed policies on the efficient use of resources, please refer
to the section headed “Emissions Control” under Aspect Af.
Emissions.

Indoor Air Quality

Indoor air quality in our workplace is regularly monitored
and measured. We maintain indoor air quality by installing
air purification equipment in the workplace and cleaning air-
conditioning systems regularly to filter pollutants and dust.
Green plants are also placed in offices to improve the overall air
quality.

Green Working Environment

During the Reporting Period, the Group sticks to green
environmental protection in the operation of office areas,
to reduce the emissions of its own office operations and
improve the efficiency of the use of resources and energy.
The Group introduces energy-saving equipment in its office,
such as multi-functional photocopiers (with printing, scanning
and fax functions) that meet efficiency standards. The Group
considers the products’ life cycle and selects the raw materials,
sub-assemblies and parts that are eco-friendly, hazardous
substance free or emitting smaller toxic substances during
installation, use or upon disposal for manufacture.
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A4. Climate Change

The public’s awareness regarding climate change continues to
increase, and climate change is also one of the most frequently
discussed topics internationally. Given the severity and urgency
of the climate crisis, governments recently have accelerated
their action pace in coping with the climate. Hong Kong has
committed to achieving net-zero carbon emissions by 2050.

The Group understands the importance of identifying and
mitigating major climate-related issues, pays close attention to
the potential impact of climate change on the Group’s business
and operations, and is committed to managing potential
climate-related risks that may affect the Group’s business
activities. Our ESG Working Group regularly oversees climate-
related issues and risks, ensuring our strategies incorporate
these critical factors.

According to the reporting framework developed by the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), climate-
related risks are divided into physical and transition risks. The
Group has incorporated climate change-related risks into
enterprise risk management to identify and mitigate potential
risks related to climate change. The Group also formulated
emergency plan to handle the below risks.

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather events
such as typhoons, storms, heavy rains, and extreme cold or
heat pose acute and chronic physical risks to the Group’s
business. The Group’s capacity and productivity will be reduced
under extreme weather events as the safety of our employees is
threatened, and the operational sites might be damaged, which
leads to a direct negative impact on the Group’s revenue.

The Group has established mitigation plans to minimise
potential risks and hazards, including flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad or
extreme weather conditions such as typhoons, floods, and
black rainstorms. The Group will explore an emergency plan
to further reduce the vulnerability of our office in Shenzhen to
extreme weather events to enhance business stability.
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Transition Risks

To achieve the global vision of carbon neutrality, the Group
expects the evolution of the regulatory, technological and
market landscape due to climate change, including the
tightening of national policies, the emergence of environmentally
related taxes, and the shifting of customer preference to an eco-
friendlier operation.

In response to the policy, legal, and reputation risks, the Group
constantly monitors the updates of environmental regulations
and global trends on climate change to avoid cost increments,
non-compliance fines or reputational risks due to the violation
of laws. In addition, the Group has been taking comprehensive
environmental protection measures, including GHG reduction,
carbon trading and adoption of clean energy. The Group has
set targets to gradually reduce the Group’s energy consumption
and GHG emissions in the future.

SOCIAL

Superactive believes human resource is the Group’s most
valuable asset and core competitive advantage and serves
as the basis for the sustainable development of the Group.
Therefore, the Group is committed to refining its employment
policies to attract, develop and retain employees. The Group
adheres to the people-oriented principle, respects and protects
each employee’s legitimate rights and interests and regulates
labour employment management to safeguard employees’
occupational health and safety.

Employment

Recruitment, promotion, and dismissal

Superactive has stipulated key human resources management
practices in the Employee Handbook. The Group adheres to
the principles of transparency and fairness to adopt a robust
recruitment process. The Group promises to provide all
candidates fair access to information and resources and adhere
to a robust recruitment process. Factors such as capabilities,
academic qualification, practical working requirements,
functional knowledge and language proficiency are considered
recruitment standards under a transparent and friendly
recruitment atmosphere.
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The Group offers promotion and development opportunities for
outperforming employees through an open and fair assessment
system to explore their capability, assist them in career
development and contribute to the Group’s sustainable growth.
Staff performance reviews are carried out regularly to assess
employees’ work performance based on meritocracy, talents,
and competitiveness on an open and fair basis.

The Group respects and protects the rights and interests
of employees following the Employee Handbook. We have
no tolerance for unfair dismissal and ensure the dismissal
procedure is fair and open. The procedures and conditions
of dismissal and contract termination have been formulated
in the Employee Handbook. Exit interviews are required to be
conducted with the resigned employees to collect opinions for
any possible improvement on the Group’s policies in this regard.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group has specified the arrangement regarding employees’
working days and hours in the Employee Contract and resists
all forms of forced labour. All overtime work is on a voluntary
basis and is subject to appropriate overtime compensation. The
Group advocates work and life balance culture by organising
activities such as sports activities, fun days and festive
celebrations to inspire a healthy lifestyle and boost their well-
being.

Apart from annual leaves, the Group has provided employees
with all kinds of holidays, including statutory holidays and other
paid leaves such as marriage leaves, maternity leaves, paternity
leaves, compassionate leaves, etc.

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining an
inclusive and collaborative workplace culture. Superactive
treats employees of different nationalities, races, ages, genders,
religious beliefs, and cultural backgrounds fairly and equitably
and protects female employees’ legitimate rights and interests.
The Group shall not tolerate any forms of discrimination
and harassment in work and is committed to preventing it.
We let employees equally enjoy their legal rights to labour
remuneration, rest and leave, access to labour safety and health
protection, social insurance, welfare, etc.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FEBEBARAFHFEFIES
REBENESRHEBEA REREK
o DU MFIRYEE D ~ BN th IRy
BELERISAEENDFELRE
FEERM -HPIEEHEREER
FoRBEAEE - FEREFET
ERAMRAFHER L FEES
M IIERIR-

AEBEBBREIFM EEARIE
BTN kM LB IrEI3TR
DR WHEFREREREFATA
foBEREILEGHRERRFHE
REIFMAEE SEBERA
BERESETRERES NWEY
REE N %7 E BRI BT e
EER-

TR R RHA

FEBNEESNTIEHRERES
TEFARIRZHE WIEG—)HE
NBSREBHE B - FRA MM HEN B R
BEREET TEBEMRHEE T
EEEEIFRLEETHEXIL 8
BEBEE LY HEOKRBHHE
HELH HEEERELE ES
BI=@Re

BRERIN AEBTHSETRMS
ERE R EERE REM®EH
BRE IR ER FBEER M

EEE

FERE  ZERRIKR
FEBR A EREZEDEHIFR
TSR XE o et R TR IEME
FAREME Bk Fi Mh =R
BEMRXTEEENEE  REX
MEENGZED FEEFET
ERERNN TR RERE > 1K
N ERR K 5T - R FIRES T
FEXHFHMIN KRB ERFS
I EREBEFRE LSRR EBHF
T ER G IEER]



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group Is devoted to building a diversified working team.
Anyone who is intimidated, humiliated, bullied, or harassed,
including sexual harassment, may report to the employee’s
representative or file complaints directly to the management
representative or the general manager, and we will take serious
approaches to resolve the issues upon receiving the said
complaints.

Remuneration and benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable, competitive
employee remuneration system. All qualified employees are
entitled to competitive wages and comprehensive insurance
coverage. In accordance with the Social Insurance Law of
the PRC, the Group pays “five social insurance and one
housing fund” for all Mainland employees, namely, endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, and housing
provident fund. The Group also pays Mandatory Provident
Fund for employees in Hong Kong in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong.
The Group reviews the remuneration packages annually to
ensure they meet the market standards to attract and retain
talent. The Group offers its employees comprehensive health
care coverage, including medical and dental benefits.

Communication channels

To enhance employees’ work experiences and safeguard
their interests and rights, the Group has established various
communication channels such as suggestion boxes or letters
and direct reports to supervisors or the Human Resources
Department. A designated team is responsible for resolving
the received complaints and grievances, and the results will
be distributed to complainants and the management. All the
information received from employees is kept confidential. For
employees in PRC, a two-way communication channel with
the senior management is provided to express opinions on the
existing management approaches and make recommmendations
for improvement.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with employment-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group.
Such laws and regulations include but not limited Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC, and the

Labour Contract Law of the PRC.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 25 full-time
employees based in Hong Kong. The employee breakdown and

employee turnover rate are as follows:
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Employee Size Breakdown BEEAESEE
Total Number of Employees EEHEAH
By Gender ¥R
Male Bt
Female %

By Age HaEe

Age below 30 30B% AT
Age 30-50 30508
Age 51 or above 51m MU £
By Employment Type HEEER
Full-time S
Part-time FI

By Geographic Region it &
Hong Kong 58

RSB ~EBMEZRIEM
EHAEBRELEEATERANEM
BRERERERERTR -ZF
FRERBEEANRR(EERER
EBIY (P EARKMBEISEE) K
(PEARHAMBESFEFHERE)

BE_ZTZ_—_F+-A=+—H
b AEBREBEH2LEHE
E-RBENDBEREERERE RN
RS

Fy2021

o8

28

60% 54%
40% 46%
4% 4%
72% 71%
24% 25%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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During the Reporting Period, Superactive’s overall employee
turnover rate was approximately 12%. Figures below present
details:

IRt - HERERRS

REIREHIRE AN EREERKX
SHAIZ12% - 5F 1B R T &R

FY2022 Fy2021
Employment Turnover Rate BEMEE el e TR T O
By Gender 2 qe il
Male Bt 13% -
Female pegis 10% 33%
By Age Group e AR
Age below 30 0% AT - 100%
Age 30-50 30E505% 11% 11%
Age 51 or above 51U L 17% 8%
Health and Safety B2. @FEH%Z R

The Group recognise the importance of providing a healthy and
safe work environment and cares deeply about our employees’
well-being and comfort. To achieve zero-accident in the
workplace, the safety and health management system was
implemented to effectively control potential safety hazards and
risks posed to the employees and the premises.

The Group has designated a Health and Safety Committee
to regularly conduct safety risk identification assessments,
including risk levels and hazard exposure evaluations. Relevant
safety procedures, working instructions, machines and
equipment maintenance safety guidelines, in-house safety rules
and suitable personal protective equipment provisions have
been implemented and updated to ensure the safety and health
of our employees during their daily operations.

FEBBPIRHERERZENIIF
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UAEMESHEE RIZAEREE
ZE2REBKRERK-

FEECEERERZEZEEE
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BF TIFET MRk EEER
25 -ABZE2RAREEEA
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Creating a safe working environment requires substantial
collaboration with all employees. The Group provides
compulsory pre-job safety and health training to new hirers
to raise employees’ safety awareness. Internal OHS training
courses on specific topics are also offered to all employees
regularly to convey information relating to health and safety to
its employees. The Group offers its employees comprehensive
health care coverage, including medical and dental benefits.
The Group has also continued to organise work-life balancing
activities for employees and other activities to promote healthy
living practices. The Group also conveys information relating to
health and safety to its employees to raise their awareness of
occupational health and safety.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
complied with government public health and safety measures
and promptly implemented new prevention, such as making
remote work arrangements and distributing adequate surgical
masks and hand sanitiser in the offices. All personnel entering
the Group’s premises must have their temperature recorded to
prevent the potential spread of the virus. Clear guidelines are
also in place to respond to situations where employees or their
family members are found to have contracted the virus.

The Group has achieved zero work-related fatalities for 3
consecutive years (including the Reporting Period). During the
Reporting Period, there were no work injury cases (2021: nil,
2020: nil), and the Group had not lost any working days due to
work injury (2021: nil, 2020: nil). The Group was also not aware
of any material noncompliance with employment-related laws
and regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Such laws and regulations include but not limited to the
Occupational Safety and the Health Ordinance of Hong Kong,
the Labour Law of the PRC, and the Production Safety Law of
the PRC.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group regards its employees as the most important
resource. The Group is committed to inspiring its human
capital towards excellence and strives to create an intellectually
stimulating environment within which employees develop basic
skills and knowledge and specific talents and abilities.

The Group aims to meet employees’ different needs through
various training modes, such as induction and on-the-
job training, to improve their expertise and support their
competency. All new hires are offered to join an orientation
training programme within three months, which covers the
topics of the Group’s business profile and organisation,
employees’ welfare, and obligations, and OHS knowledge. The
Group regularly provides regular internal on-the-job training
with an assessment of all existing employees at different levels
or departments to suit the operation needs. According to the
Group’s Training Management Procedure, based on employees’
positions and career levels, the Group tailor-made an annual
training programme for staff skills and knowledge advancement
and regularly adjusts and improvements for further training
opportunities where necessary.

The Group will draft the training plan for the following year
according to business requirements at the end of each year. The
Group will also evaluate the effectiveness of training courses
based on training requirements and training’s target audience.
Evaluation results may be considered as part of the employee
performance assessment results. The Group will constantly
improve the quality of trainings through the employees’
evaluation of trainers, effectiveness, and structure. To encourage
lifelong learning, the Group offers financial subsidiaries to eligible
employees and attends external training courses to pursue
professional development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has organised internal
and external training courses for employees. Such training
courses cover topics including but not limited to industrial
updates, compliance matters, occupational health and safety,
etc. During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted
a total of approximately 85 hours of training, with the average
training hour being about 3.4 hours per trained employee.
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The composition of the average training hours completed by R EFEREES D SREE
each employee by gender and employment category are as SEAL I SIS R AR U T
follows:

Composition of Employee FY2022 Fy2021
Received Training BERIENIESEBR CEC RS iy
Gender 51

Male B4 100% 86%
Female pegis - 14%
Employment Category EfEsEs

Management BIEAB 50% 71%
General Staff —REBT 50% 29%
And the average training hours by gender and employee MR RSB 2R R EEEE
category during the Reporting Period were as follows: 2D FHEEIIRBLT
Average Training Hours FY2022 Fy2021
Received per Employee FREFHEHZIEIIEH a7 p: ol T —AfF
Overall B 85 143
Gender 45

Male B 5.7 1
Female g 0 10
Employment Category EfEsEs

Management BIEAB 5.9 10
General Staff —MmET 2 2
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B4. Labour Standards

Superactive respects human rights and prohibits using
child labour and forced labour in its operations. During the
recruitment, personal data are collected during the recruitment
process to assist in selecting suitable candidates. A person
under 16 is not allowed to work in the Group. The Human
Resource and Administration Department ensures that identity
documents are carefully checked. If any child or forced labour is
discovered, the Group will immediately stop all the work of the
identified child or forced labour and offer medical checks and
treatment where appropriate. An investigation will be carried out
to find out the root cause of child or forced labour employment
and revise the employment management procedure whenever
possible to plug the loophole.

In addition, the employment contract specifies the employee’s
working hours, location, and primary work duties to avoid
executing work outside their terms of reference. All employees
can exercise their freedom to decide their careers and terminate
employment with proper notifications or pay in lieu of notice.
The Group also ensures its staff works consensually, including
overtime work, disapproves of any forced labour behaviour
in the workplace, and protects their freedom and rights of
association and collective bargaining.

Any punishments, management methods and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, oppression and sexual harassment
against employees are prohibited for any reason. Anyone
who violates the regulations will be subject to dismissal or
termination of the probationary period.

In addition, the Group requests its suppliers maintain the same
labour standards when conducting business with the Group.
Regular assessments will be carried out to evaluate whether the
suppliers meet the abovementioned labour requirements. The
Group will refuse to have business partnerships with suppliers
who violate labour standards.
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B5.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material noncompliance with child and forced labour-related
laws and regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Such laws and regulations include but not limited to the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC,
and the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Supply Chain Management

The Group treats every supplier as a vital business partner.
According to our Supplier Code of Business Conduct,
Superactive specifies its commercial, environmental, and social
requirements on suppliers, which include legal compliance,
human rights, child labour, environmental protection, health
and safety, etc. Superactive evaluates all suppliers every year.
All suppliers are required to complete a self-assessment survey
of Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) performance. The
Group’s procurement team evaluates the assessment annually
to identify environmental and social risks along the supply chain.

Regular performance assessments with all suppliers, including
on-site inspections, are implemented to monitor and evaluate
their continuous performances to ensure suppliers’ performance
meet required standards; when any non-conformities are
identified by the Group based on the assessment findings, the
Group will issue related areas-for-improvement reports to the
suppliers and request rectifications or taking corrective actions
for improvement under the grace period. Those suppliers who
consecutively failed to fulfil the requirements will contribute to
the disqualification from the Group’s approved supplier list.

New suppliers are required to fill in the pre-qualified
questionnaire to reveal their competency in the following areas:
1) Production capability; 2) Management of quality assurance,
safety, and environmental compliance; 3) Partnerships; 4)
Process on materials procurement; and 5) Practices on
corporate social responsibility for our assessment. Only those
suppliers fulfilling all the above requirements can be qualified as
approved suppliers.
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The Group also considers anti-corruption as a vital issue
throughout the procurement process. The Group conducts
procurement in an open, fair, and equitable manner without
any discrimination or special treatment against any suppliers.
Employees and related personnel interested in the suppliers are
prohibited from participating in relevant procurement activities.
The Group stresses the integrity of its suppliers heavily. It will
only select suppliers who have a good track record in the past
and have no severe violations of business ethics. The Group
has zero tolerance for acts of bribery and corruption and strictly
prohibits suppliers from acquiring procurement contracts or
partnerships through any form of benefit transmission or gift.

Green Procurement

The Group is committed to having local sourcing to carry
out sustainable development into the Group’s operating
model. During the procurement process, the Group prioritises
local suppliers and environmentally friendly products and
services, hoping to reduce the carbon footprint caused by
procurement via local procurement while supporting local
economic development and creating employment opportunities
for local communities. Factors including the products’ life
cycle, the raw materials, sub-assemblies and parts are taken
into consideration to ensure that they are eco-friendly and
hazardous substance free or emitting smaller toxic substances
during installation, use or upon disposal for manufacture.

Vendors are required to provide proof (e.g. laboratory testing
reports and product specifications etc.) or evidence showing
the supplies are all in compliance with the national regulations
and international industry standards such as Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment (“WEEE”), Restriction of Hazardous
Substances (“RoHS”) and Registration Evaluation Authorisation
and Restriction of Chemicals (‘REACH”).

In addition to environmental factors, the Group will also adopt
measures to monitor whether its suppliers or contractors
comply with relevant laws and regulations or meet other
standards in terms of health, safety, forced labour and child
labour, etc. and visit suppliers’ operating locations if possible to
ensure that suppliers can meet all aspects of the standard, and
as a consideration when evaluating suppliers.

IRt - HERERRS

FEBTEREBRABEXRBRE
THEZFHE - AEENAR A
FAREMNBNETHRE > THEWR
HEBEEMUREIRHGB-F
IHEEREMHEMAN A ARG
HAS2EERARELTE ~EH
FERBHMEEENME HRE
EBEERESHR BEREERD
FEENHED AEEHBERKR
EETARNEAVRE BEM

BEEEEaRANAN mmEsiE
VERSHRBSONSF

KREIREE
rEBROWBAMKXBREIRE
ERMAESEBEEBR - NRBE
BRED AEBBLERBAMMERE
BRIBREMKRERS  HEBBE
Hh 1R 5 R L BR BB T SR BY ik B B 0 [F)
RS2 R ARt E S R BAMILE
REMERG -ZREAEEER
BES B RA - B RTH
uﬁﬁHmEJmﬁgwmﬁﬁfﬁ

K -EHANEEREBREPBRER
&ﬁ%%ﬁ°

HERHRRMHER WEREREHR
EREMREE) BT HEERT
GRIZUERR(BEREF B ﬁh
<?>(FVVEEEJ) (BN IRBIEE
RETEREEASEHNIBIE »
(rRoHSJ) MR (RATSAE R St
&~ FFRIMIBRANEZE) (TREACH )
FEIRITHEIREREH

PRIBIBEER RS 0 A& B 7R RIS
W EEHEEdAEREREST
HEREARZER AR EE 22
RIBEEFNET S HEEDEME
2 WA RERY B R N ah B R
&S E MR FREEERES
B E AR ZEE > A E 2 5T A (4 FE 7 B
HNEREZE

FREEEMMBRAT | 2022543k

83



84

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IRIR - HERERES

B6.

Through the above practices, the Group aims to reduce its
environmental and social risks throughout the supply chain
and build a sustainable relationship with our business partners.
During the year, the Group had 245 suppliers in China, all
supporting the segment of manufacturing electronics products.

Product Responsibility

Responsible corporate practices are the key to business
resilience. The Group believes quality products and customer
services are crucial to building stable and healthy customer
relationships. With the customer-centric business philosophy at
all levels, the Group strives to continuously optimise the service
quality based on customers’ requirements to respond to the
industry’s ever-changing competitive environment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with any laws and regulations in
relation to the quality of products and services provided that
would have a significant impact on the Group. Such laws and
regulations include but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests of the PRC, the Product Quality Law of the PRC,
the Patent Law of the PRC, and the Advertising Law of the
PRC.

Product Quality

The Group has established comprehensive quality control
procedures to address the potential risks of product quality
and safety issues along the production chain. The Group has
also arranged on-the-job and external training related to quality
management for its workers to build up their capability and
ensure they understand our requirements on quality assurance
to resolve the quality and technical problems in work.
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The Group has implemented various standardised management
procedures to carry out stringent quality assurance inspections
along the production cycle, ranging from incoming materials
checks and manufacturing process inspections to final
products examination based on the latest national regulations
and international industrial standards. The effective in-house
quality control system and regular sampling checks allow the
Group to identify quality problems immediately and take prompt
corrections and preventive actions to maintain the product
quality and prevent severe defects of final products during the
manufacturing processes. The Group’s final product quality
assurance examination ascertained the goods are free from
defects and with proper safety labelling and packing and meet
the required product specifications before delivery.

Customer Service

To enhance customer satisfaction, the Group solicits customer
feedback through an annual customer satisfaction survey to
understand their needs and expectations. Based on the survey
results and the comments or suggestions from respondents, a
customer satisfaction analysis report is prepared to identify root
causes and address customer needs.

The Group has established different complaint and feedback
channels, such as customer opinion cards, hotlines, social
media platforms, email, and websites to collect customers’
opinions and suggestions. The Group has also set up a
complaints-related function for handling complaints through
our Customer Complaint Handling Procedure, for which it
is responsible for explaining the complaint procedures to
complainants, conduct a detailed analysis of root causes, carry
out in-depth fact investigations, actively monitor and managing
complaint procedures, coordinating, and communicating
with all parties involved, accurately record all relevant results
confidentially, and properly reply to complainants.
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The Group requires each complaint to be dealt with and
reported properly by the Marketing Department and prohibits
employees to reach a private settlement with complainants
to ensure that the Group can accurately receive feedback
from customers, which they serve as an important basis for
improving the quality of business operations. It is expected to
reply to the complainants within three working days per the
Group’s performance pledge. The Group considers customer
complaint management an important element of continuous
quality improvement. During the Reporting Period, no products
and services-related complaints were received.

Privacy Protection

The Group will store all customers’ tangible and intangible
assets and information (e.g., sample raw materials, sub-
assemblies, mould etc.) in the designated area with proper
labelling and kept confidential. All the assets and information
can only be accessed and handled by the Group’s authorised
personnel for operational purposes, and staff members are
forbidden to copy, transfer and disclose any information,
particularly intellectual property and customers’ personal data,
to any third parties without prior consent from the customers.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group consults legal advice from solicitors for drafting
patent licence agreements or service contracts to prevent any
infringement of intellectual property rights (i.e., trademarks,
patents and designs). It also ensures all business activities are
in compliance with all the national laws and regulations such
as the Patent Law of the PRC and the Implementation Rules of
Patent Law of the PRC.

Regarding intellectual property protection, the Group stipulates
that when cooperation with an external organisation, the
terms of the contract shall be set to ensure that products or
services provided by the partner are free from infringement of
any intellectual property right. In addition, the Group avoids
infringing the intellectual property rights of other companies and
individuals and conducts regular research and tracking of patent
information of its peers. There is no infringement on intellectual
property rights during the Reporting Period.
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Investor Protection and Education

The Group has established procedures relating to the services
and products provided. We conduct the “Know Your Clients”
(“KYC”) procedures and assessment processes to understand
and evaluate clients’ financial backgrounds, trading experience
and risk tolerance levels prior to providing clients with the type
of financial services or products that suit their needs.

The Group is committed to providing clear and balanced
information to clients. The Group has established a classification
system that classifies the capability and intentions of investors.
The Group categorises clients into professional investors
and retail investors based on the standard of their financial
knowledge. We will protect retail investors by conducting risk
evaluations and classifying and grading the investors based on
the risk tolerance evaluation results.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a corporate culture of high integrity
is the key to its continuing success. We forbid any form of
corruption in daily operations, including bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering. The Code of Conduct stipulates
the daily behaviours of employees. It specifies that employees
must not engage in acts or activities revolving around conflicts
of interest, receive or accept any benefits, or misuse of official
positions. The Group strives to achieve a high standard of
ethics in our business operations. Employees are prohibited
from offering or asking for any forms of benefits such as gifts,
coupons and money for any advantages and favours in the
business, and consult the management if they suspect any
professional misconduct.

To further strengthen employees’ working ethics, anti-corruption
training is provided to identify proper actions and prevent
unnecessary misunderstandings. Directors of the training
program are also trained to ensure their professionalism and the
quality of the program contents. During the Reporting Period,
all directors received 1.5-hour anti-corruption training where
all participants shared the investigation experience of anti-
corruption, internal control, and business ethics.
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The Group has established a transparent whistle-blowing
mechanism for reporting any potential fraudulent cases or
reasonably suspected corruption to relevant departments. The
Board and the Audit and Risk Committee is designated to
handle the investigation and resolution of the cases to ensure
the independence and reliability of the investigation results. An
email account (internalaudit@superactive.com.hk) has been
set up for this purpose. All reported cases will be handled
confidentially to protect the identity of the whistle-blower and
his/her privacy. They will not be subjected to unfair dismissal
or unreasonable disciplinary action and protect other legal
rights of the whistle-blowers. The whistle-blower will receive the
result of the investigation within two months. If the person was
suspected of violating any laws in corruption or participating
in other unlawful activities upon the internal investigation, the
cases would be further handed over to the relevant justice
authorities for relevant legal actions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that no
concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices were brought
against the Group and the employees. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with related laws and
regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
that would have a significant impact on the Group. Such laws
and regulations include but are not limited to the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Company Law of
the PRC, the Criminal Law of the PRC, and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the PRC.
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B8. Community Investment
In pursuit of business development, the Group spares no effort
in contributing to the community to demonstrate its corporate
citizenship. Superactive strives to nurture a corporate citizen’s
corporate culture and practices in daily work life.

The Group has formulated a community investment policy linked
to local concerned issues and leverages the Group’s business
competency and resources to support our communities. The
Group hopes to foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable activities
during their work and spare time to make greater contributions
to the community.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX BERAMARBAAERAQA (KR

OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG R-HERERBREEIIIRE
LIMITED ]

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

FTEHR-BE-—K #E =3 Ll

B RARENIER

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : B

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

— AR 8 ERBRRRERBHB - RKRLIHMBES -BE Y
REEEEYELRN

(@) the policies; and

@ KX

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

b)) BTFTHETABERZENERENRREM

ko
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions  Emissions
A SR AR B ARA 1 data. B
BE YR EA R AR R HR I B ©
KPI' A1.2 GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity Emissions — GHG Emissions
RASR AR RE1RAT .2 BERBHREE UM E) REE- PEY) — R E RAS RN
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Subject Areas, Section/Declaration
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

TERB EEm-—MR #HL
B KRR E IR

Description

- L]

KPI A1.3
RIS 1RAL3

KPI A1.4
RIS 1RAL.4

KPI A1.5
R AR IE1RAL5

KPI' A1.6
RSB AE IS IRA1.6

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
intensity

FRELXBESREEYRE CIMEEE) KBE-

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
intensity.

FRELBEEEYEE QIR E) REE -

Description of reduction initiatives and results
achieved.

HHUREELE ERVIERPIISHR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEIEEERBERRYN G Z - BERELEN
Bt R PTG A SR o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[BEA2 . BRER

General Disclosure

—ARINER

KPI A2.1
RSB A5 1RA2.1

KPI A2.2
R IE1RA2.2

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BERERER (BIEETR KEEMEM ) B -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity

RENRDHNERK, NEREREERTE

Water consumption in total and intensity
MIEKERBE-

Emissions -
Waste Management

By —BEEYERE

(Not applicable — Explained)
(NBER—ER%E)

Emissions —
Waste Management

Y —-BEEYERE

Emissions

HERH)

Emissions —
Waste Management

Y —-BERYER

Use of Resources
BRER

Use of Resources —
Energy Management
BREA-EIREE

Use of Resources —
Water Management

BEREA-—KEREE

(Not applicable — Explained)
(NBER—ERE)
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEHR-BE - —K
B R B R A S 1R
KPI A2.3
RARAENIETRA2.3

KPI A2.4
R 5 1RA2.4

KPI A2.5
R R AR IS 1RA2.5

Description

it

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

B AERERM R RPAISRR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

M SR BB A 7KOR S P BRI AR mB0HE
Tt R 1§ Al SR ©

Total packaging material used for finished products
(in tonnes) and with reference to per unit produced
RGP BEEMNINEE UETE) KESEE
BhE-

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEAS : RIERRAER

General Disclosure
— AR B2

KPI A3.1
B SR AR RS 1RAS. 1

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.
BIRETAHRERRAERGEHNERTZERIK
o

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

BB EHHRRERRABERNEATERE
KINEERRTENITE
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BERER-EREE
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Use of Resources —
Use of Packaging Materials

EREA-ERYEHER

(Not applicable — Explained)
(NBER—EH%E)

The Environment and Natural
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEGR--BE-—K
B R B R AA e 1R
Aspect A4 :Climate Change
[EEA4 . mIRE(L

General Disclosure

Description

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant

— RN ER climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.
B MEHERRAEGHETAEERENERR
1EABRA B IBAVEER ©

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues

RE R B IS EAS 1 which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
B REHERL RO EEHETAELELENS

ARIEAERISFHAYEER

Aspect B1: Employment
[EmB1 : EfE

General Disclosure
—RRIGEE

Information on:
BRI R E N RREREA  TIERFE R F
EHE 2o REEUREMFBRREND

S

the policies; and

R &

=

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

b) BWFHITABEALENEMEGREH
BYER o

KPI B1.1
B AR IS 1EB 1

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region

BRI BESE  FRAFNRMEEDHNE T
B o

IRt - HERERRS

Section/Declaration

- L]

Climate Change
RIREE

Climate Change — Physical risk,
Transitional risk
REZC—SRRAMR FBIRE

IZA
o0
AN

Employment

=

Employment

=
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Section/Declaration

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Description

Disclosures and KPIs

o

FEHGR-BE-—K HEit =3:0p 8- 1
B R B R A S 1R

KPI B1.2 Description of occupational health and safety  Employment
RS EMIEEB1.2 measures adopted, and how they are implemented  {&{%

and monitored.
WAL FTER AN BV B 2 (R R B 2 2 HE I WU AR R RAT
KBS 5k o

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[BEB2 : @FEEAEZE

General Disclosure
— AR B2

Information on:
ERRAZETFFRIENGREREESREBEMET
ESls N

(@) the policies; and

@ BEK; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

b) MFEETAEEALENAR LG RIRG
By o

Health and Safety
REHEZ R

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and Safety
A A 5 1RB2.1 AT THOANB =R REEZE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RA A IEEB2.2 RIEERIIERH- Rz S
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety
BRI 4 W IS1ER2.3 measures adopted, and how they are implemented g %2

and monitored.
WP IR B X R R 215 U BB EIT
K BEZR 57k o
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Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

FEGR--BE-—K =30 1
B R B R AA e 1R

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : % ERKiE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and  Development and Training
— eI ER skills for discharging duties at work. Description of 2% 2 R iz

training activities.

BRARAEEREIT TFBE SR #H ki

R MM IFNEF -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender  Development and Training
BA R4S WIS 1ER3.1 and employee category (e.g. senior management, 2% R 1z

middle management).

BRI REERSR BN REERRE - PREER)

oMz IEER DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee  Development and Training
R A IEEB3.2 by gender and employee category. R R IE

BRI kEELERNE D BREETHZIINNTS

BFE o

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : T #8|

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
— R E BRAB LS TRARGISTH 5T

(@) the policies; and

@ ;&

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

b) BTHETABERZENERBEN KRG

MR o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Labour Standards
RE S 45 S5 1EB4 1 practices to avoid child and forced labour. &5 T #A|]

MR B E AR ETELUB R B T K Hlzs T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such  Labour Standards
RA SRS WISIEBA .2 practices when discovered. 24T AER|

M TE B IR B AR 1B R R H PR A RR B LT R EXRY
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IRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 HERERES

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEHGR-BE-—K HEit
B R B R A S 1R

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : (HFEHEEIE

Description

General Disclosure

— iR BE
KPI B5.1

B SR AR L5 1%B5. 1

KPI B5.2
R AR 1518B5.2

KPI B5.3
AR IE1EB5.3

KPI B5.4
R A SN 15 1%B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.

EIRMHEEAIRIE Rt T RERER -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

@B D HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB RS A EENIES mMERITERIERN
HEBHME - URBREANRITRER T A

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

i A RA oA Bl (R S S IR BN N IR IR R it & R ki
BER) > DU BRI T RER G A

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

EM T BEHER SR ES BREE R RRBHN
B LU BRI T R Ba R 75 7% ©
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Supply Chain Management
HEHEEE

Supply Chain Management
HEEREIER

Supply Chain Management
HpEREIR

Supply Chain Management —
Green Procurement

HEREE -G EBRE

Supply Chain Management —
Green Procurement

HAEREIE - BRE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IR« B RERRS

Subject Areas, Section/Declaration
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEGR--BE-—K
B R B R AA e 1R

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Description

- L]

[BEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

— RN EE

KPI B6.1
RASR SIS 1%B6.1

KPI B6.2
RSB AEI51%B6.2

KPI B6.3
RASRAE N I51%B6.3

KPI B6.4
R A SN 15 1RB6.4

Information on:
BREMREHERMRRENERRZZ " BES - 12H
KFARBREE MU R GED

=

the policies; and
BER &

5

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

b) BT BITABE B AL BB R RH)
By o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EERCEXERBHPRLZLERERIERMA
BB AL

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

RERNE R R IRF R FEE UL 75 7%

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
3t £ 4 o8 o (R PR 00 o8 EE A R RARYV 1B 461

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HWilE EmERERERLBIWRER

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Responsibility —
Customer Services

EmBE-FRRE

Product Responsibility —
Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights
EmBE—HHERRE

Product Responsibility
Em=E
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Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

FEHGR-BE-—K HEit =3:0p 8- 1
B R B R A S 1R
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and  Product Responsibility —
B AEIE1EB6.5 privacy policies, and how they are implemented and  Privacy Protection

monitored. ERETE—FERE

HUH B & BRMRE R FAREBER » URERRITR

BERFE
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
— AR EE BRI LEFRRR ~ 81 ~ BREF AR B ERAY ¢ R&E5

(@) the policies; and

@ K&

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

b) BEBFHETABEASENMEREO KRG

B o

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt  Anti-corruption
e SR A& 5 1EBT A practices brought against the issuer or its employees K &35

during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the

cases.

RERARNEZETANHESRETESEENE

TSR AR R BB KafrehtE R
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-  Anti-corruption
R RRARWIE1EBT .2 blowing procedures, and how they are implemented KR &75

and monitored.

B EIE M R B REF > URBRIITRERES

VA o
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption trainting provided to  Anti-corruption
RER AR MIE1EBT.3 directors and staff. RES

HHRESEMETRHNKREFEC
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
FEHR--BE - —K
B R B R AA e 1R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Description

st

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EMEBS : #tEIRE

General Disclosure

— RN EE

KPI B8.1
R AR SN 15 1RB8. 1

KPI B8.2
RN 1515B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
ERMHE2HERTREEMTHLEENER
HEBITHEERLEBIHABER -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

ETIEMEE WHE - BREE-FIER &
B Xt f8H) o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

AEIHRBFABAER WEBNFR) -

IRt - HERERRS

Section/Declaration

- L]

Community Investment

|

Community Investment

Heks&

Community Investment

Hek®
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
WAL HETRE

SAN-C/IVA

RRERETENFBAARSTS

Confucius International CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUPERACTIVE GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Superactive Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (herein referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
110 to 220, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared assuming that the
Group will continue as a going concern. We draw attention to note
1 to the consolidated financial statements which indicated that the
Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$93,426,000 and as at the same date its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$8,365,000.
In addition, as at 31 December 2022, the principal amount and
the interest of bond payables of approximately HK$367,268,000
were not repaid in accordance with the terms of agreements.
Such default entitled the bondholder a right to demand immediate
repayment from the Group. Based on the cashflow forecast up to
31 March 2024, it indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. As explained in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, these consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Our opinion is not qualified in
respect of these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of licenses and goodwiill
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”)

(Refer to note 17 and the Group’s accounting policies set out in note
3 Goodwill, note 3 Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill) and critical accounting estimates and judgements set out in
note 4)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had licenses and goodwill of
HK$13,443,000 which are allocated to the CGUs of money lending
business, regulated financial services business, electronics products
and property development and management segments for annual
impairment assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BETIRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of licenses and goodwiill
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”)
(Continued)

The Company’s directors have concluded that there was reversal
of impairment loss on licenses amounted to HK$1,329,000 (2021:
impairment loss on licenses amounted to HK$1,329,000 and
impairment loss on goodwill amounted to HK$3,481,000). This
conclusion was based on the impairment testing carried out by the
management for these CGUs as set out in note 17. The impairment
assessment was prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies which are set out in detail in note 3 Goodwill
and note 3 Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding goodwill).
The calculation of value in use, involved significant judgement
and assumptions with respect to the determination of the pre-tax
discount rates and the estimation of the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of licenses and goodwiill of
the relevant CGUs as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and because the impairment
testing involved significant management judgement and estimates as
explained above.

Our response
Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment above included:

—  Evaluating the models used by management in the value in use
calculations and where applicable, fair value less costs to sell,

for impairment assessment;

— Assessing the reasonableness of discount rates and growth
rates applied to the impairment assessment;

— Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and industry;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budget and considering the reasonableness of the budget;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response (Continued)
—  Checking the value in use calculations;

—  Considering the overall adequacy of the disclosures in respect
of impairment assessment included in the consolidated financial
statements.

Assessment of net realisable value of properties held
for sale

(Refer to note 18 and the Group’s accounting policies set out in
note 3 Properties held for sale and critical accounting estimates and
judgements set out in note 4)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had properties held for sale of
HK$555,219,000 which in total accounted for approximately 50% of
the Group’s total assets. The carrying amounts of properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group engaged an independent external valuer to perform a
valuation of properties held for sale as at 31 December 2022 to
assess if the net realisable values of these assets were higher than
their carrying amounts.

The Group has concluded that there was no impairment loss
on properties held for sale. This conclusion was based on the
impairment testing carried out by valuer as set out in note 4.
The impairment assessment was prepared in accordance with
considerable analysis of current market price of properties of a
comparable standard and location and a forecast of future sales
based on zero growth rate of property price. The calculation of
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell, involved significant judgement and assumptions
with respect to the determination of the pre-tax discount rates and
the estimation of the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of properties held for sale
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and because the impairment testing involved
significant management judgement and estimates as explained
above.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BETIRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response
Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment above included:

—  We assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer used by management;

— Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methods
adopted with reference to market practice.

— Assessing the reasonableness of current market price by
comparing the management’s estimated selling price to the
recent average contracted selling price in prevailing market price
of comparable properties with similar type, size and location;
and;

— Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and industry;

Based on the audit procedures performed, we consider that
management’s judgements applied in impairment assessment
of properties held for sale were supported by the evidence we
obtained.

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

(Refer to note 22 and the Group’s accounting policy set out in note
3 Financial Instruments — Impairment loss on financial assets and
critical accounting estimates and judgements set out in note 4)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had loan receivables
amounting to HK$190,374,000. The Group assessed impairment
for these receivables based on expected credit losses model. Loss
allowance for expected credit losses amounting to HK$165,996,000
respectively has been made for the loan receivables as at 31
December 2022.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loan receivables (Continued)
Assessing expected credit losses on loan receivables is a subjective
area as it requires application of judgement and uses of estimates.
Judgement is applied in assessing whether the credit risk of the
loan receivables has increased significantly since initial recognition
and whether the loan receivables are credit-impaired. In this regard,
management considers factors including those relevant forward-
looking information and how it impacts the historical data. These
require significant judgement by the management.

We have identified impairment assessment of loan receivables as
a key audit matter due to considerable amount of judgement and
estimation being required in conducting impairment assessment as
mentioned in the foregoing paragraph.

Our response
Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
expected credit losses on loan receivables included:

—  Obtaining an understanding on the key controls over credit
risk assessment and how management estimates the loss
allowance for loan receivables;

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the loss allowance calculation
methodology used by the management;

— Testing the integrity of information used by management in
assessing the credit risk of individual customers, on a sample
basis, by comparing historical default rates to the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year;

— Evaluating management’s assessment of the historical
credit loss rates by sample checking inputs in respect of
the assumptions made, such as historical payment records,
correspondence on any disputes or claims with the customers
and subsequent settlement records; and
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B BETIRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response (Continued)

— Assessing the factors considered by the management for
determining whether the credit risk of the loan receivables has
increased significantly since initial recognition and whether the
trade receivables and loan receivables are credit-impaired which
include:

e  Challenging management’s consideration of other factors
including changes in repayment pattern of borrowers and
changes in value of collateral since initial recognition (if
applicable);

e  Assessing how reasonably management has incorporated
in their assessment of the forward-looking information
including expected changes in economic and financial
conditions which is expected to cause a significant change
in the customers’ ability to meet their debt obligations; and

e  (Checking subsequent settlement of the year end trade
receivables and loan receivables on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit and Risk Committee assists
the directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BETIRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continueq)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary

Practising Certificate Number: P01316

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

sRaiAm®

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_"HF+_A=t+—HIEE

2022 2021
—ZE_— s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET TAT
Revenue & 5 88,730 132,217
Cost of sales H & B A (55,414) (83,215)
Gross profit EF] 33,316 49,002
Other net gains Hhim3Ea 6 8,935 10,136
Selling and distribution costs HE RO H A (1,596) (1,406)
Administrative costs TS (54,413) (56,490)
Finance costs VDN 7 (103,881) (24,643)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) BERERR (RE)
of assets 8 1,329 (8,225)
Net impairment loss on financial assets R EHN At E 2 SRS E
at amortised cost HEEBIEFEA 8 (5,293) (85,203)
Share of results of an associate S AR 2 XS 14 25,337 (5,513)
Loss before tax PRGBS 18 8 (96,266) (122,342)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigiigse,” %) 10 940 (21,345)
Loss for the year FREIE (95,326) (143,687)
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{EE AR :
Owners of the Company PiN/NCIEZZ= N (93,426) (144,126)
Non-controlling interests JEPERGHE R (1,900) 439
(95,326) (143,687)
Loss per share SREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE GBI 12 (4.60) (7.09)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AR ER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__HF+_A=+—HIEE

2022 2021
—E-C s %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss for the year FAEEIE (95,326) (143,687)
Other comprehensive income Hth2mss
Item that may be reclassified HEAJFEEEMN T EE
subsequently to profit or [0ss: EBm B
Exchange differences arising from the ~ HAEEINEFREESE
translation of foreign operations PE R ERE (35,463) 12,257
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEmEKES
for the year, net of tax MR (35,463) 12,257
Total comprehensive income FAZEWEEEE
for the year (130,789) (131,430)
Total comprehensive income L EREmURSELEEE -
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRNBEBE A (129,561) (131,637)
Non-controlling interests JEEERG R (1,228) 207
(130,789) (131,430)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

aR e MBI RE

As at 31 December 2022
KB _&+"H=+—H

2022 2021
—E_C BT —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F&T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERKE 13 277,668 299,483
Interest in an associate R—REBE B 2 #m 14 173,311 146,313
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEREBERYIEZ
profit or loss TRBEE 15 6,049 8,720
Intangible assets mILEE 16 13,443 12,363
470,471 466,879
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 78 18 14,123 8,765
Properties held for sale BFIEREYZE 19 555,219 602,664
Trade and bills receivables FEU B Z AR FE N R 20 19,197 44,395
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE N EE M
other receivables HihpE W zr1a 21 6,803 12,379
Amount due from non-controlling FEU SEPERG e Zn =R IE
interests 26 - 295
Loan receivables EER 22 24,378 112,464
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIIRITER 23 2,994 1,890
Cash and bank balances IREMIRITAE BR 23 8,365 5,686
631,079 788,538
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade and other payables FE B Z R
HAMERIE 24 283,707 205,735
Rental received in advance FEWE & 2,432 2,395
Contract liabilities aHaE 25 593 3,200
Amount due to an associate e —RE A BRIB 14 - 68,031
Amount due to a shareholder FE— SRR RIB 26 2,093 16,723
Amount due to FESIEIER TR RIS
non-controlling interests 26 799 -
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEME™R 27 399,392 267,529
Lease liabilities HESE 28 54 52
Tax payable eI IE 26,848 32,116
715,918 595,781
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS & (&&) " &E&EFE (84,839) 192,757
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 385,632 659,636
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SaMEHIRRE

As at 31 December 2022
RIE__F+_"A=+—H

2022 2021
—=-— s
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’'000
B sE FHET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Interest-bearing borrowings ERSYER 27 87,675 231,055
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 81 135
Deferred tax liabilities FIERRIEA G 29 1,515 1,296
89,271 232,486
NET ASSETS BERE 296,361 427,150
CAPITAL AND RESERVES PR R fA
Share capital %N 30 203,257 203,257
Reserves L 31 83,146 212,707
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ERBHEEAELES
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 286,403 415,964
Non-controlling interests JEVER Em 9,958 11,186
TOTAL EQUITY R 4EEE 296,361 427,150
The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 220 were H N FE110E220E NS HBREEN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (“Directors”) on 31 March 2023 and are signed on its

behalf by:

YEUNG SO LAI
BRE
DIRECTOR
EF

B =F=R=1+—H&AREES
(TEx) g AT RETIE > BEUT

AETHRZEE

LEE CHI SHING CAESAR

FEX
DIRECTOR
EF

—/
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

o= s = ] [ oE R

SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e lEm SR

Capital Non-
Share Share Other  redemption Capital  Translation (Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses)* Total interests equity
-0
Rx  RiEE  HbEE  RERE  EdRRE 4RER  EHER B FERER [t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR TEn THn TR TER TAn THR TR AR
At1 January 2022 RIE__£-F-H 23,257 476,989 40 1,442 19870 41,680 (327,314) 415,964 11,186 421,150
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (93,426) (93,426) (1,900) (05,326)
Other comprehensive income: ~ E2E M :
Exchange diferences arising o~ EIEINERELZ
the translation of foreign operations  ERZE - - - - - (36,135) - (36,135) 672 (35,463)
Total comprehensive income ~ FAZENZHE
for the year - - - - - 36,135) (93,426) (129,561) (1,228) (130,789)
At 31 December 2022 g Jatat
+ZR=+-H 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 5545 (420,740) 286,403 9,058 296,361

*

The total reserves at 31
HK$212,707,000).

December 2022 is HK$83,146,000 (2021:
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SFaNDE2BR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

Capital Non-
Share Share Other redemption Capital Tranglation  (Accumulated controling Total
capital premium* resenve’ reserve” reserve’ reserve’ losses)" Total interests equiy
g
Br ROEE  HnEE  EEEE  EAER AREE  (RHER B ERER Eaan
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn Thn Tn Thn Thn Tin T T Thn
At1 January 2021 RZEZ-F-F-H 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 29,191 (183,188 547,601 10979 558,580
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (144,126) (144,126) 439 (143687)
Other comprehensive income: ~ Ef 2E M :
Exchange diferences arising fom ~ EEINERESZ
the translation of foreign operations  ERZE = - - - - 12489 - 12,489 (232) 12,051
Total comprehensive income ~ FAZENELE
for the year - - - - S 12,489 (144,126) (131,637) 207 (131,430)
At 31 December 2021 RIEI-%
+ZBA=+-H 203,257 476,989 (| 1,442 19,870 41,680 (327,314) 415,964 11,186 427,150
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EaRSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_HF+_A=+—HIFEE

2022 2021
- - 3 “ET %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities: K& FEBEEZHERSE .
Loss before tax BRI2 A SR (96,266) (122,342)
Adjustment for: TEIEE 2%
Interest income ] 2 WA (15) (15)
Interest on bank borrowings and IRITB R BT MU E Ath
overdrafts and other borrowings B ZHE 103,875 24,634
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBEZAE 6 9
Share of results of an associate R E N B 2 24E& (25,337) 5,513
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of BE (RERR) RE
assets (1,329) 8,225
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BAREREBERIIKRZ
at fair value through profit or loss ETMEENLQAE
B8 W= 2,671 (1,700)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BERKZEZINE
equipment 23,071 22,607
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERREBZ KR
plant and equipment (29) =
Net impairment loss on financial assets BEHEN A EZEHEE
at amortised cost AR 5,293 85,203
Exchange differences ERERR ©) 5
Operating cash flows before CESTEFAIZRERE
movements in working capital ME 11,931 22,139
Increase in inventories FEEM (6,048) (3,011)
Decrease in loan receivables W ETUR D 84,496 27,512
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEUW B 5 BR AR H At FE UK
other receivables IR, (8 25,812 (17,792)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FE(T B Z AR H A ET
other payables IE G 1 (74,738) 24,561
Increase/(decrease) in rental received AWM ESIEM, Chl)
in advance 226 (15,197)
Decrease in contract liabilities BREERD (2,355) (572)
Net cash generated from EBREECEEZIREREE
operations 39,324 37,640
Income tax paid BPER (1,620) (3,079)
Net cash generated from REFHEEEZREFE
operating activities 37,704 34,561
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SFARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
T F —E_—F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT TAET
Cash flows from investing activities: RETHEEZHRERE .
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE#)% KRB &% (2,650) (4,601)
Interest received BUWHE 15 15
Increase in restricted bank deposits ZIREIIRITERUE A (1,104) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WE KR EETIE
plant and equipment 53 =
Net cash used in investing activities KREESSTRAZHAEFEE (3,686) (4,586)
Cash flows from financing activities: @FEEFBELEZHESHE !
Proceeds from interest-bearing SEEREERIE
borrowings 13,135 18,000
Repayments of interest-bearing BEFTEMEXR
borrowings (23,704) (18,397)
Interest paid on interest-bearing FERERZENHE
borrowings (6,760) (15,025)
Repayments of principal portion of BEREaBEIAETID
lease liabilities (52) (276)
Payments of interest portion of THHEEEREZFEED
lease liabilities (6) 9)
Repayment to a shareholder —SREZEMNR (14,630) (16,923)
Advance from/(repayment to) JEERER B B
non-controlling interests 1,071 (2,894)
Net cash used in financing activities MEZEERZIREFEE (30,946) (35,524)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERRELEEY
cash equivalents 1, GrioL) 358 3,072 (5,549)
Effect of foreign exchange rates INEPE R R (393) (363)
Cash and cash equivalents FH2RBERIREEEY
at the beginning of the year 5,686 11,598
Cash and cash equivalents FRZNEKXIAEEEY
at the end of the year 8,365 5,686
Analysis of balances of cash and HERFEEBMERDIN .
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances RE R IBITEERR 8,365 5,686

-.-—-/
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of its business is Room 1510,
15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In the opinion of the Directors, at 31 December 2022, Super
Fame Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is the immediate holding company and Ms.
Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar are the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company.

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Each entity in the
Group maintains its books and records in its own functional
currency.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collectively include all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value. The
measurement bases are fully described in accounting policies
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_HF+_A=+—HIFEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$93,426,000 and as at
the same date its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$8,365,000. In addition, as at 31 December
2022, the principal amount and the interest of bond payables of
approximately HK$367,268,000 were not repaid in accordance
with the terms of agreements. Such default entitled the
bondholder a right to demand immediate repayment from the
Group.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that might cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore the Group may be
unable to realise the Group’s asset and discharge the Group’s
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future, after taking
into consideration of the followings:

()  The Group will continue to negotiate with the Group’s
bondholder with a view to extend the repayment terms of
the Group’s bond payables as they fall due;

(i)  For the amount due to a shareholder of HK$2,093,000 at
31 December 2022, the shareholder has undertaken that
will not demand for repayment after maturity until all other
liabilities of the Group have been satisfied;

(i)  The Group will also seek additional financing including but
not limited to borrow loans, issuing additional equity or
debt securities; and

(iv) The directors of the Company will continue to implement
measures aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including close monitoring of general
administrative expenses and operating costs.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

—REH @)
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B EE#993,426,0005% 75 MR E B »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

120

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed
review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve
months from the reporting date taking into account the impact
of above measures, the directors of the Company believe that
the Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months from the reporting date
and, accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amount, to provide for future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities to current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of amended HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concession beyond
30 June 2021

The adoption of the above amendments did not have
any significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods. The Group has not
early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments!
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of

and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current
and related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting

Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies'

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single

Transaction’
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The Directors of the Group anticipate that the application
of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Group made up to 31 December each year.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

3.

FETHEERBEE @)

EHEHRGEERE &

MBERE BUIRNE RS HR
RIFHARE B HEHERER
EBHEMRBERRFMAE K-

W B I BB A B B R F5 T AU A A
R WBESENRANIREEZRE
ERNWBEEHRNARAE FTELEE
BERAER (ERUWEEAN) FrETH
BNt E - SWER A #E A
BEKFAZEEREEIEHWERDN
AREFE -FEBLRFAFARN
WREBANRDRIZWEBIRAR
BEME MREERERINE
MR AEE T BERERR S
IS REER A A EREEE AR
#AFEENRILAMBSAERE
BRINMBASNERBEmAIF
TR o FRIFE BRI B IR EER]
REABABEMSTEER FIAEH
thIEERBEDELURAREFE R
FRE W B IRAERE AT HETT
KREATEAMEEBRARDBRAH
bR BRIFTEE A BB -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continueq)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition-date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are investees over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

In the note to the consolidated financial statements that
discloses the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not
control or joint control over these policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amounts are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except that
losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss
on the acquisition-date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment assessment, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
assessed for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less
costs to sell (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

@i

(ii)

(iii)

Electronic products

Customers obtain control of the electronic products when
the goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised when the customers accept
the electronic products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable within
120 days.

Nursery education services/properties management
Revenue is recognised over time as those services are
provided. Payments received from customers are generally
paid in advance prior to the rendering of services. In
accordance with HKFRS 15, if there are obligations to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration from customer, an entity should
recognise contract liabilities.

Money lending

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Regulated financial services
Revenue from asset management services is recognised
over time as those services are provided. Invoices for
regulated financial services are issued on a semi-annual
basis and are usually payable within 60 days.

(v) Other income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
the dividend is established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining unexpired term of the
lease or five years, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 10%—33"/5%

Motor vehicles 10%—25%

Plant and machinery 10%—33"/5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of
the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the profit or loss during the financial year in which
they are incurred.

Properties held for sale

Properties for future sale in the ordinary course of business are
included in current assets at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises the consideration for development
expenditure (which includes cost of land use rights, construction
costs and capitalised interest) directly attributable to the
development of the properties.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There is one measurement
category into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. All other equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation of
the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more
than 120 days past due.

In respect of loan receivables, credit risk arises from a
customer’s inability and unwillingness to meet its financial
obligations to make timely payments under the loans the Group
provided. The Group has taken measures to identify credit
risks arising from loan business. The Group manages credit
risk through review and credit approval and post-transaction
monitoring processes which is performed by management. The
Group also demands certain borrowers to place collateral at the
time the loan agreement is entered into as securities of loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the Group
performs credit evaluations on customers periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay.

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loan receivables
and interest receivables according to 3 different stages under
the ECL model:

Stage 1:

Loan receivables and interest receivables have not experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment recognised on the basis of 12-month expected
credit losses (12-month ECLSs).

Stage 2:

Loan receivables and interest receivables have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment is recognised on the basis of lifetime expected credit
losses (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3:

Loan receivables and interest receivables that are in default and
considered credit-impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit-impaired).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The loan receivables are moveable between stages. For
instance, loan receivables originally classified at stage 1 should
be downgraded to stage 2 if events occur such as a significant
increase in credit risk. Loan receivables at stage 2 could be
upgraded to stage 1 if credit risk decreases and the criteria for
the determination of “a significant increase in credit risk” are no
longer met.

The Group recognises a loss allowance to different loan
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month or lifetime
expected credit loss based on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and whether the financial
instrument is credit-impaired. ECL is the result of discounted
product of the weighted average of “probability of default (PD)”,

“loss given default (LGD)”, “exposure at default (EAD)” under the
three scenarios, which are defined as follows:

Probability of default (PD) is the probability of default occurring
of a client and its assets in a given period of time in the future.

Loss given default (LGD) represents the percentage of amount
of loss to be incurred in the event of default to the total risk
exposure. It is expressed as the loss percentage per unit of
exposure which typically varies by nature of debtor, type and
seniority of claim and the availability of collaterals or other credit
enhancements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Exposure at default (EAD) represents the total amount of on
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposure at the time of
default by debtor, reflecting the total amount of possible losses
likely to be incurred. In general, this includes the utilised credit
limit, interest receivable, the anticipated usage of unused credit
facilities as well as the related expenses to be incurred.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loan receivables are set out
in notes 22 and 38.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. All the Group’s
financial liabilities are at amortised cost and are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZ
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned
on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where
the effect is material.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under the Group’s accounting policy. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZ
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Income Taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in the profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at that date, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average monthly exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of other comprehensive income (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 have been
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated in Hong Kong dollars at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of whether they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability; (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the right-to-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

3.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

FEGHEREBME @)

IV

AR-ZZRF—H—ARZBIK
BRIMNETZMEEZBERARE
HABERBIINEBZEERER
RE G TERRSHGRFRES
B -FTELEREZENREFE
kR

HE

PREMRE FaRaElaamEN
B) ARMBIRRRENCRERRE
BEEMBEGR HERAEZELS
B ARAb()E F2HRTE E A & K SR (i)
HEAEERBEEENEEN TSI
R-AEBOCEEIUBEEEK
R AR O 12EANES
BAEREEERHEERR M
SHERFNEEMRERERA
REREEN-

ERERE

EREEERRAFER LK E
& (EEaENEStERE (i)
REwEREZAFENERES
ARG R B WS EE ; (i) &8
AEERE R B A A K (iv) &
BARBRAE SRR AR RERSE
N HRBRERE ERREE
BB A A BRIFRAF AT ELE
BEEGFS TEBRASREEM
Rt ERERERESEER
BREE UERNEERREN
BFHHEE-

FHEEEBAMRATE | 20228

145



146

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments arising
from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

License acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of license acquired in a business combination is its
fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are assessed for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use are assessed
for impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are
assessed for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts. The accounting policy as set
out in “Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding goodwill)”
is adopted for impairment assessment of intangible assets with
finite and indefinite useful lives.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plans are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered services
entitling them to contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Related parties

(8) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Group’s
executive Director.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results might differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The key accounting judgement is as follows:

Classification of properties held for sale

The Group has temporarily leased out its properties held
for sale (shop premises) but has decided not to treat these
shop premises as investment properties because it is not the
Group’s intention to hold these shop premises in the long-term
for capital appreciation or rental income. Accordingly, these
properties are still treated as properties held for sale.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The management of the Group reviews the carrying
amount of the inventories at the end of each reporting period,
and makes allowance for any inventory items identified to be
carried at a recoverable value that is lower than cost through
estimation of the expected selling prices less estimated cost of
sale under current market conditions.

Impairment of properties held for sale

Management assessed the recoverability of the carrying
amount based on professional valuation of the fair value of the
underlying properties which involves, inter-alia, considerable
analysis of current market price of properties of a comparable
standard and location and a forecast of future sales based on
zero growth rate of property price. If the actual net realisable
values of the underlying properties are more or less than
expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted costs of resale, material
reversal of or provision for impairment losses may result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZ

S S = St = = F 2 5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill)

Management periodically reviews each asset for possible
impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. If such assets are
considered by management to be impaired or impairment
recognised is no longer required, the impairment required or
reversal of impairment previously recognised is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds
or exceeded by the estimated recoverable amount of the
assets respectively. In determining the recoverable amount, the
Group seeks professional advice or makes use of independent
professional valuations as appropriate which are based on
various assumptions and estimates.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022 was
HK$4,257,000 (2021: HK$4,506,000). Further details are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of certain of the Group’s financial
assets utilises market observable inputs and data as far as
possible. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how observable
the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

e Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

e |evel 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market
data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the below item at fair value:

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 15)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the applicable
note.

Impairment of trade and loan receivables
Management assesses the expected credit loss on trade and
loan receivables based on the lifetime ECLs and 12-month
ECLs respectively. Judgement is required in assessing
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provision may be required in future accounting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s segment information is based on regular internal
financial information reported to the Company’s executive
Directors and management, being the chief operating decision
makers, for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group’s business components and their review of these
components’ performance.

The Group currently has five reportable segments. These
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies as follows: () manufacture of electronics products;
(i) provision of nursery education service; (i) money lending
business; (iv) property development and management business;
and (v) regulated financial services business.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group’s reportable segments:
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2022 2021
—E-= o
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Revenue from contracts with SARAMBREENF15R
customers within the scope of HERNRKERELEOZWE -
HKFRS 15:
Electronics products — manufacturing & FZEfm—
and sale of electronics products YERBEETFER 66,763 89,969
Nursery education — providing MRHE—
nursery education for children ARERENEHE - 672
Property management — providing MEEIE—
management services for RETREFIEHEEERS
landlords and tenants 5,740 12,641
Regulated financial services — providing =& & fARFE —
asset management services REBEEBIER 5,610 6,930
78,113 110,212
Revenue scoped out of HKFRS 15: BB B ELERE155%
& [E DUSMI IR ER -
Money lending & 10,617 22,005
88,730 132,217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

The total presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciles to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

WmkDEEN @)

FEBKEDEFMEZREAELRE
ERGaMBREANERZEEM
BEURHARINT ¢

Property
development Regulated
Electronics Nursery Money and financial
products education lending management services Total
MERR ZHE
BfEm hRHE B NER SRR b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TR TER
2022 ZECCE
Segment revenue NENE 66,763 - 10,617 5,740 5,610 88,730
Inter-segment revenue NERKE o o - - - -
Reportable segment revenue HRESENE 66,763 - 10,617 5,740 5,610 88,730
Segment profit/(lss) DR/ (558 (4,595)* (877) (689) 502 9,445 4,286
Other information: Hitrgh
Additions to segment non-current assets 7B 2 HEFRBEE 2,650 - - - 2,650
Net finance (credit)/charge RE (B%) /EFE 438 - ©) - 436
Depreciation of property, plant and NE BERRBEZINE
equipment 2,343 - 343 1,950 2 4,638
Income tax (credit)/expense FriEH (B%) /S (16) - - (1,027) 103 (940)
Net (reversal of impairment loss)/ SREE (REFBRED) /
impairment loss on financial assets HEFEFE 8,416 - 3,590 265 (6,978) 5,93
Reversal of impairment of assets BEAERD - - - - (1,329) (1,329)
2021 —EZ-&
Segment revenue papligs 89,969 672 22,005 12,641 6,930 132,217
Inter-segment revenue NEENE - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue RENENE 89,969 672 22,005 12,641 6,930 132,217
Segment profit/(loss) PEEN/ (558 1,314 (509) (64,418) 871 (6,571) (69,306)
Other information: Hitgw
Additions to segment non-current assets R E 2 HEEFEREEE 5,968 - - - - 5,968
Net finance (credit)/charge RE (8% /BFE 386 = 5 (12) - 379
Depreciation of property, plant and NE- -BERREZINE
equipment 2,997 - 343 2,127 31 5,498
Income tax expense/(credit) Frisims/ (%) - = = 21,347 @ 21,345
Net impairment loss on financial assets ~ &HEEHBEEFE 182 - 78,532 2,542 3,047 85,203
Impairment of assets BERE - - - - 4810 4,810

*  Segment loss incurred in eletronic products segment included impairment
of other receivable of HK$6,451,000.

* BYEMOBEENEGEBEREM
& WL RRIE R (86,451,000 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. hmRDEER &)

(Continued)

2022 2021
ool B
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAET
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RSN EERN, (B8 4,286 (69,306)
Impairment of assets BERE — (3,415)
Share of results of an associate EE—RERE RN B 2 28 25,337 (5,513)
Other net (loss)/gains Hith (8538) UK =F %8 (2,093) 1,700
Unallocated corporate costs (note) KoBoEMA (5 (20,357) (21,559)
Unallocated corporate net finance cost R EC{E 2B E B 455 58 (103,439) (24,249)
Loss before tax PRI ATES R (96,266) (122,342)

Note: BE -

RO EXEMATREAESTRAE (BEES
M) ERABEER ERER - TER
WMAERE GFHAER)

The unallocated corporate costs mainly comprise staff cost (including Directors’
remuneration), legal and professional fee, exchange differences, depreciation
and office rental (short term lease).

2022 2021
—E-C “E- %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TFAT
Segment assets DEEE
Electronics products BEFESR 51,875 67,411
Nursery education MRHE 131 158
Money lending & 25,046 113,475
Property development and MEREBNMEIE
management 566,483 617,923
Regulated financial services SHRE SRR 10,360 17,205
Total reportable segment assets ARENEEERE 653,895 816,172
Unallocated corporate assets ROEEEEE
Interest in an associate R—EBE B 2 Em 173,311 146,313
Financial assets at fair value through A AERERYIRZ
profit or loss THEE 6,049 8,720
Property, plant and equipment (note () #1% ~ Bi = K& (15E0) 262,099 280,361
Prepayments, deposits and other FANRE-EE K
receivables HhEWRIE 242 267
Others (note (ii)) H i (B EE(i) 5,954 3,584
Total assets EEHEE 1,101,550 1,255,417
Notes: Mok -
()  This mainly represents office buildings which are used as corporate head () WEFEEREATERER A
office. Kigo
(i)  The balance mainly represents cash and bank balances retained at iy ZEFFEAREBNLXEEENIERS

corporate level. T iRITAE R ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

WmkDEEN @)

(Continued)
2022 2021
—s-= s
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT TFAT
Segment liabilities nEaRE
Electronics products EFER 37,106 46,550
Nursery education NREE 3,201 3,056
Money lending BE&E 623 623
Property development and management 4 3£ 58 25 71 & 12 160,233 179,916
Regulated financial services THRE SR 2,085 2,048
Total reportable segment liabilities AR ED BB EREE 203,248 232,193
Unallocated corporate liabilities b AN =L
Bond payable I &S 250,000 250,000
Other interest-bearing borrowings Hh s BEmR 227,312 236,548
Interest payable FEF] 8 117,887 20,772
Fund contribution payable R E MR - 68,031
Others (note) Hih (g5 6,742 20,723
Total liabilities B &858 805,189 828,267
Note: Mk -
The balance mainly represents amount due to a shareholder and accrued ERETERARN R RERNIERES R
corporate expenses. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- SRS MBHERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The following provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical market, irrespective of the
origin of the goods and information about its non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location as detailed
below:

5.

WmkDEEN &

e &l
TREHEAEBZMETHE D (F
B Z KR FRBIINEE R Z I
m AR REIEREE EE RS
@255 -

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets

IMERE B

2022
—E-CF
HK$'000
FHT

The People’s Republic of China ~ FZE AR HHE (ThE))

FRBEE
2021 2022 2021

“BT-F ka2 T -fF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT TAT

(PRC)
Mainland China FREIAME 72,503 103,282 15,038 18247
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &8 GEftE) 16,227 28,935 455,433 448,632
88,730 132,217 470,471 466,879
Information about major customers BRAFERFRHNEN

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from three
customers (2021: three customers) (all in the manufacture of
electronics products segment) with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year as detailed

BE_T__HF#+°-_A=+—HL
FE VREBFEREENEZ
=R%ER (CE—F:Z4%R)
WS R mBBAERFAWRm

below: 10% EE1BE0 T
2022 2021
g B —F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Customer A ZHAA 18,016 18,690
Customer B ZAB 16,350 26,105
Customer C EZFAC 13,605 28,167
47,971 72,962
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Property development

Electronics products Nursery education

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

5. WmkDEEMN #)

Wiz 2o e 520 By

Regulated financial

and management services

BETER
2022 2021
ZEICE el
HK$'000 VO]
TR FET

2021
3T -F

HK$'000
TEm

Timing of revenue recogniton I RESR

NERENER

“ET-F
HK$'000

R G R
2021
BTk
HK$ 000
ThER

2021
B &

HK$'000
FAT

2021

TER

At a point in time RE—FREE 66,763 89,969 - - - = - > 66,763 89,969
Over time REBs e - - - 672 5,740 12,641 5,610 6,930 11,350 20,243
66,763 89,969 - 672 5,740 12,641 5610 6,930 78,113 110,212

The following table provides information about trade and
bills receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

TRESEMEE S SHNEKE
SRR EUERRSHAENE
Kto

Notes

FE U & 5 BRI FE I R 4
GHaR

Trade and bills receivables
Contract liabilities

2022 2021

—T_C B —F
HK$°000 HK$’000

B 5 FH&T FET
20 19,197 44,395
25 593 3,200

The contract liabilities mainly related to the advance
consideration received from customers. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its
contracts for sale of goods and services and therefore the
above information does not include information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sale of goods
and services which had an original expected duration of one
year or less.

GNEEIEZERBRERRER
e xEBERBBMBRSER
F1EBI2IRZ A TR E R AR
ARHEBEEmKRRFEX M E
AERNAEEEREERRERR
SR A —FHAURZHES R
RBRBENFTENEERR AR
EHEZWEHER
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 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

6. OTHER NET GAINS 6. Hthfz= F %8
2022 2021
—E__"HF B —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest on bank deposit and IRITTERRGERFRZH B
balances 15 15
Rental income HEWA 3,211 5,082
Government grant (note) B #aeh (95 6,925 2,392
Exchange differences ERER 9 (%)
Forfeiture of deposits from tenants TH B FFERIZS 664 =
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial AR EREZHSIERZ
assets at FVTPL ETMEBEEZRNE
(&518) @ (2,671) 1,700
Others Hith 782 952
8,935 10,136
Note: BIeE -
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received government BE_Z__F+°"A=+—HLEFE &K
funding support of HK$464,000 from the Employment Support Scheme under ERRIEBEREBEFEHBENEES
the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR Government. The BT MRS ZE ) 5T 8RBT & & 2 £§464,000%
Group does not have any unfulfiled obligation related to this subsidy as at 31 Lo RIBE I ZF+ZR=+—H FEATL
December 2022. mEZ B AN EAREITEE
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMBRAE

2022 2021
—E—= BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TFAT

Interest on bank borrowings and bank  R1TEFRIRITEZ UK

overdrafts and other borrowings HihEHzHE 103,875 24,634
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGEZHE 6 9
103,881 24,643
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8.

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

BRI A0 K5 18
PRIRAIE BT IR, GEA) UT
BIRBEN

2022 2021
—E-C s
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT TAET
Staff costs including Directors’ BTHRA (BEEEMD) !
emoluments:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) EEME (T:39) 569 610
Staff salaries, allowance and welfare & T3 ~ 285 KR EF| 31,726 31,878
Retirement benefit scheme IRIRTER A H R
contributions 3,380 3,455
Total staff costs BT A4E%E 35,675 35,943
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENEN = 1,400 1,300
Cost of inventories recognised WRAZHZTFERRK
as expenses 49,523 74,736
Depreciation of property, ME-BERKREBEZITE
plant and equipment (note 13) (MF5E13) 23,701 22,607
Exchange differences ERER (9) 5
Short term leases expenses FOHATEER X - 60
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment £ & E (Hi{EE51E#[0])
loss on intangible assets (note 16) AEEE (F5E16) (1,329) 4,810
Impairment loss on interest in R—EEE B 2w
an associate (note 14) BEEE (TsE14) - 3,415
(Reversal of impairment)/ BE CRERR) RE
impairment of assets (1,329) 8,225
Net (reversal of impairment loss)/ FEUNE Z e CRiE RS 18
impairment loss on trade receivables  #&[8]) /H{EE1E 358
(note 38) (BHF5E38) (5,860) 4,515
Net impairment loss on HAthFEWGRIE R E B 183 58
other receivables 7,563 2,156
Net impairment loss on loan receivables & & TR B E518 7528 3,590 78,532
Net impairment loss on financial assets XN AT 22 SREE
at amortised cost ERIE T RE 5,293 85,203

_—./
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEREEMSE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors are as ENHENSESZMES0OT :
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ET-_—_F+-H=+—HL
FE

Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and Benefits scheme
Fees allowances Bonuses inkind contributions Total

YN BicEH
ik R R RMER AR a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Ti#En TR TERT TERT TERT

Executive Directors: BEE!
Ms. Yeung So Lai REBUT - - - - - -
M. Lee Chi Shing Caesar TEMEE - - - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors: BUEHTEE !
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (retired on 1 June 2022) WAL (R 28
~NA—BRA) 104 - - - - 104

Mr. Tse Ting Kiwan WELLE (R 28

(appointed on 1 June 2022) ~E—HZR) 105 - - - - 105
M. Chow Wai Leung William BRREE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Leung Man Man R2ERRE 180 - - - - 180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEKREEME @)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_ZE - —F+“HA=+—HL

FE
Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and Benefits scheme
Fees allowances Bonuses inkind  contributions Total
EXe R
ik KR a7 BYER BE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR ThR TAR ThR

Executive Directors: BTES:

Ms. Yeung So Lai REBUT - - - - - -

M. Lee Chi Shing Caesar EmkE - - - - - -

Independent non-executive Directors: BUFRTES !

Ms. Hu Gin Ing fEayt 250 . . . . 250

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William BRR%E 180 = = = = 180

M. Leung Man Man RER%E 180 - - - - 180
610 - - - - 610

Note: Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the executive ek : ENRENRTESZHS ZWHK

HiERBE A MRS ALy EE
FATRENBADEBHRES H
HBRTS = FE o

directors are generally emoluments in respect of those persons’ other
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Yeung
So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar have waived part
of their emoluments in the amount of HK$6,600,000 and
HK$5,400,000 respectively (2021: HK$6,600,000 and
HK$5,400,000 respectively).

Save as aforesaid, no Directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: nil).

For the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none of them were directors of the Group (2021:
nil), details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the five (2021: five) highest individuals are as
follows:

9. EENEEM=E @)

BE_ZE”-_F+H=+—H
LtEE BEBL I REEMLE
ERERESIMNE SBIHE
6,600,0007 7T 525,400,0007 7t (=
T~ % 535]%6,600,00078 7T K&
5,400,000 7T) ©

B EXFESN  BESS

—E-—f+ZHA=+—Bit&
B BREERRAFERRER
B o

BE_ZE - -_F+°“HB=+—HL
FECAEBUEAZEESZTHM
YEAR A S E MDA A & B Ry gy 82
BB E (CE _—F  H#) o

FEBNERRSHMA THLIF
FEFBEE(CE—F .8  AH
MEFBEHRNLEX -1 (CT-—
F 0% ReHMATZBEHS)
LI

2022 2021

= B —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Salaries and other benefits e RHMER] 3,995 3,780
Contributions to retirement benefit RIARBHEH B HRR

schemes 96 90

4,071 3,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EFEKEEME (&
EMOLUMENTS (Continueq)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMED A TR

Number of individuals

AE

Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00058 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 E 1,500,000 75 1 1

5 5
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENHEMNSHREERBRE ZME
management were within the following bands: DR AR

Number of individuals

A

Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007% 7T 5 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

The income tax credit/(expense) for the year comprises:

10.FRBME R~ (F %)
FEEMERES (%) 0IF

2022 2021
S - s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FHET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax BIER#RIE— & B 15
Charged for the year F kR (88) (217)
Over provision in respect of BEFEEBREEE
prior years 204 -
116 (217)
Current tax — PRC tax BPERFRIE — PRI IE
Charged for the year F bR (29) (10,530)
Over/(under) provision BEEEBREEES
in respect of prior years BELD 1,072 (10,817)
1,043 (21,347)
1,159 (21,564)
Deferred tax RIEFR IR
(Charged)/credited for the year FER R 5t 29 (219) 219
(219) 219
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigiigse,” X 940 (21,345)

PRC enterprise income tax has been provided on estimated
assessable profits of the subsidiaries’ operations in the PRC at
25% (2021: 25%).

PRC Land Appreciation Tax is levied at progressive rates from
30% to 60% (2021: 30% to 60%) on the estimated appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditure including land costs, borrowings costs
and all property development expenditures.
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R ARFRINI25% (CEZ—F !
25%) stE PRI EFISHR o

FR R - 3 (E R TH 2 BB 30% 2 60%
(ZEBEZ—5F :30%F60%) WEE
3 IR i 51 1 Hh 1 {E BB A AN L h 1
ER o fEst Lt ILEEAHEYE
WA AT R0 H > B 3E Lt Bl A
ERRAURFTBEYEERR A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)

In accordance with the new two-tiered profits tax rates regime

with effect from the year of assessment 2018/19, Hong Kong MZHMRFFERE > HFEE

profits tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable T TH+"HA=+—HLEE &

profits for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 16.5%), BRERIR GEERREFN16.5%

except for the first HK$2,000,000 of the qualified entity’s AR (CEZ—F 116.5%) S

assessable profit which is calculated at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%). BB 2 H2,000,0008 TEER
AR #8.25% 5 (ZEZ—4 .
8.25%) °

10.FiEiER ~ (FAx) (@
RER-B—N/— h%ﬁif%

FEEMERER, X GiRse
Eﬁizﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂé“ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ? :

The income tax credit/(expense) for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as follows:

2022 2021
—_=F__ =BT —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Loss before tax PRI ATES R (96,266) (122,342)
Tax thereon at domestic rates REREAEGZBERNIESR
applicable to profits or losses ZEMMEFEZINE
in the jurisdictions concerned 19,849 18,811
Tax effect of expenses not Aol 2 MFE L
deductible for tax purposes (15,154) (24,867)
Tax effect of income not BEFRBAZRBEE
assessable for tax purposes 77 -
Tax effect of tax losses not FERMEBEHEZMBEE
recognised (5,601) (3,981)
Tax effect of temporary differences FETERERENBEE
not recognised (378) (700)
Utilisation of tax losses previously FAMUERERZRIBEIE
not recognised 783 44
Over/(under) provision in respect of BEFEEBREEE S BEIR
prior years 1,276 (10,817)
Effect of special tax exemption BHRIBER MR E 88 165
Income tax credit/(expense) for the year FERFFEMIER, (B 940 (21,345)

_—./
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$93,426,000 (2021: HK$144,126,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,032,571,385 ordinary shares.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during each of the
respective years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

13.ME -BER=RE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plant and Right-
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles machinery  of use asset
il RE
T RIEF HEEE K& RE  BERE®  RREEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR AT T TR AT T
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—5-F-H 347,663 19,802 6,586 2,141 2,710 1,976 380,878
Additions HE o o = - 4,601 - 4,601
Currency realignment EQHE - 425 127 ki 74 4 709
At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ-%+ZA=1+-BEk
1 January 2022 “%2-°5-fF-H 347,663 20,227 6,713 2,178 7,385 2,022 386,188
Additions HE - - - 156 2,494 - 2,650
Disposal HE - - - (101) - - (101)
Currency realignment ERER - (1,258) (874) (110) (581) (139) (2,462)
At 31 December 2022 RZE_ZE+ZR=+-A 347,663 18,969 6,339 2,128 9,208 1,883 386,275
Accumulated depreciationand ~ BHTERE(E
impairment
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-5-B-H 52,037 5420 2,075 1,756 1,044 1,527 63,859
Depreciation il 17,383 2,985 1505 176 291 73 22,607
Currency realignment ERHE - 11 34 % 8 41 239
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_-F+”A=+-Ak
1 January 2022 ZEIZ5-F-H 69,420 8,516 3,614 1,952 1,362 1,841 86,705
Depreciation ik 17,383 2,831 1,323 88 1,387 53 23,071
Disposal e - - - (17) - = (17)
Currency realignment ERREE - (526) (190) (80) (146) (138) (1,092)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZE+ZA=+-A 88,803 10,827 4141 1,817 2,603 1,756 108,607
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZE+ZA=+-A 260,860 8,142 1,598 246 6,695 127 277,668
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%#+-A=1-H 278,243 1,711 3,099 26 6,023 181 299,483

$R1TE 220,483,000 T (=2
——4%F 1 230,547,00057T) FASEE E
2 IR IE TR

Bank borrowings of HK$220,483,000 (2021: HK$230,547,000)
are secured on the Group’s land and buildings.
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0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE 14 R—HBERTD 2R e

TO AN ASSOCIATE T—HEBEATRIE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had an interest RNIBEZZFRZIZEZ—F+2A
in the following associate: =+—H XxEBRUTHERF
R
Proportion of
Proportion voting rights
Principal of capital held by the
Form of business  Place of place of Total capital  contributed by Group as
Name of entity structure incorporation operation HK$'000 the Group general partner Principal activities
g3
fERER
mEx FEERH I
ERRBIR BRI TEEEHE THET EA&LLH QRIS FERH
T City Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong 255,250 60% 28.57% T properties
partnership investment
BRABA HEES Y TERE
2022 2021
g —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHT
Movements of interest in H—REgE AT
an associate are as follows: 1 1 B @JQD—F :
At 1 January R—B— 146,313 153,580
Capital contribution to associate EE =N T AE 1,661 1,661
Impairment (note 8) BB (f5E8) - (3,415)
Share of results of an associate Eh—REHE AT 2 28 25,337 (5,513)
At 31 December R+—-H=+—H 173,311 146,313
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE
TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Note:

0

On 2 May 2018, the Group entered into the limited partnership agreement
in relation to the operation of IT City Development Fund LP (“IT City”)
and two subscription agreements in relation to the application to
subscribe for an interest in IT City with a committed capital contribution
of HK$51,000,000 in the capacity as general partner (through an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“GP1") and HK$100,000,000
in the capacity as limited partner (through a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) respectively. The principal purpose of IT
City is to invest in properties that can consolidate and promote the
development of IT industry and its related supporting facilities. According
to the limited partnership agreement, the management, policies and
control of IT City shall be vested exclusively in the general partners who,
acting unanimously, may make such investment decisions as they shall
determine, having given consideration to the investment objective and
investment strategy of IT City and the advice of the investment committee
of IT City (the “Investment Committee”). GP1 shall be entitled to appoint
two members to the Investment Committee, which demonstrates its
significant influence over IT City.

On 20 December 2022, IT City entered a subscription agreement with
Sino Ocean Ventures Limited (“Sino Ocean”) to subscribe to a 1-year
convertible bond at a rate of 10% per annum with the principal amount
of HK$302,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds
could be converted into shares of Sino Ocean at a conversion price of
HK$18,000,000 per share. According to the subscription agreement,
the Convertible Bonds are transferable and the subscription price was
satisfied by way of set-off the amount due from Sino Ocean Ventures to IT
City.

Sino Ocean has entered a sale and purchase agreement and conditionally
agree to acquire the entire equity shares of an independent third party
which held lots of land in Fanling aggregated at approximately 590,000m?
for development (the “Transaction”).

Depending on whether the Convertible Bonds have been converted, IT
City could (i) transfer the Convertible Bonds, or share of Sino Ocen if the
Convertible Bonds are converted, to an independent third party and then
refund to its subscribers; (i) directly refund the subscribers the Convertible
Bonds or share of Sino Ocen if the Convertible Bonds converted. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Convertible Bonds have yet to be
converted.

14. 7% —
Tt —

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

BB EAR 2w B
[ Bk = A B RRIE (4

B E -

)

(i

RIE—NFERAZH &AEETIL
—EEREB AR NEBRKET
City Development Fund LP (T'T City )
EMIERE R NE BB EDET
City# @ & ¢E7¥<‘”§}E'JﬁLZK’&T
F'aﬁ&%éwﬂ:’ﬁ\jl—/(aﬁ BA(TE

BE%A—1) 517 H1E561,000,000% 7T
REBARAFIERZEZENBREIUE
R& 8 A F 15 HE100,000,0007 5T © IT
CityWEZEMERERENENES RHE
FTITEREBREEERNIYE R
BEREBARE T CitylWE 12~ BUR
REGIREEREBTE RSB A B
It ZBEEBA U—FIT817H) IR
ZEIT CityNIREBE B R RIEE R UK
IT CityzREZ8g ((REZEF) W
RRERHEEEMFUEREERE -&
BEBPA—EERZAREZESE
RS BRERIT CityREARF
270

RIZEZ-FE+"HAZ+HIT Cityf&d
ERAIKRARAT (MTEHAIK)) 25T
REE R E > B AR £%4802,000,00078
THEFHENER10% 2 AR R ES
(Tl &) AR ESIZES
%18,000,0007 TR B A
BB (5 o IRIB AT ES 2 B
o R ES AR EE RN BB E
BRI EMIT CityB IR IELUEH A=
fifo

ERAIKRBI I EE WS B4R
BB R 4A & £ 49590,000°F
FARBEREN T HNBIE ="K
2ERE (X Z]) °

RBETMRESEE 2T Citys]
()P ARN T RRESFHEDRIRZ
fefp AT R ESF IR BB TS
YE=7 RBRBREFRBATHRBEA S
(NEEmRBAREARRESHE
BRI Z RN WAHRRESEBRR) o
BEAFRNE D T IRRESFHEARE

e

___-—/ :
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DTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE 14 R—HBERTD 2R e

TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continueq) t—RBEABTHRIE (&)
The summarised financial information in respect of IT City is set BRAT Cityz B E R T ©
out below:

2022 2021

—E__"HF B —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FET

Current assets MENEE 320,689 227,802

Total assets MEE 320,689 227,802

Current liabilities FENEE (21,914) (20,995)

Total liabilities =L (21,914) (20,995)

Net assets EEFE 280,775 206,807

Share of an associate’s net assets EiE—EBE AR 2 EEFE 173,311 146,313

Revenue & 13,459 12,200

Total comprehensive income 2HE WA AERE 62,617 (36,300)
Share of results of an associate EE—RERE RN B 2 28

(net of tax) (OBRIRIB) 25,337 (5,513)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE 14— HBERTD 2R FE

TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued) t—E=E ATMIE (&
2022 2022
- g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
Net assets/Total comprehensive BEFE/2EWNEEEE
income 280,775 62,617
Proportion of capital contributed KEBHBE LG
by the Group 60% 60%
Share of net assets/total FEEEEFE/2EEE
comprehensive income 4878 168,465 37,570
Adjustment on effective share of —EBE AR CEEFE
net assets/results of an associate HXEERDREZ A 4,846 (16,279)
Adjustment on share of other REEDBEMER ZHE
expenses by the Group (2,085)
Adjustment on share of KEBDBHEMUA Z %
other income by the Group 6,131

Share of an associate’s net assets/ [EiE—EBE N2 EE
results of an associate (net of tax) FBE 2 EE (ORRIE) 173,311 25,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE 14. R —RHBELAT 2R FE
xx
=

TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continueq) T—RBEABTHRIE (&)
2021 2021
B B
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET TAET
Net assets/Total comprehensive BESE/2EREAEEE
income 206,807 (86,300)
Proportion of capital contributed NEEHRAE AL
by the Group 60% 60%
Share of net assets/total FEEEEFE/ 2EWmiEEE
comprehensive income 124,084 (21,780)
Adjustment on effective share of —BBE AR ZEEFE
net assets/results of an associate XEEBHREZRAE 22,229 9,438
Adjustment on share of other AEBDEBEMBER AR
expenses by the Group (1,381)
Adjustment on share of other REEDBHEMIA 2 HE
income by the Group 8,210
Share of an associate’s net assets/ EhE—EHBHE AR ZEE
results of an associate (net of tax) BE 2 EE (NRIRIE) 146,313 (5,513)
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and FEfT — B Bt ' A Bl R & KR -
repayable on demand. RERBRERBEEER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

16.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Unlisted equity investment

THEE
-JFLEHRERE

BRAosERERTIRZ

BAREREDY R &AM
BE
2021
—E-C s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
6,049 8,720

The unlisted equity investment represents 18% equity interest
in ORBiz International Limited which was established for
provision of real-time kinematic solution. The equity of Link
Complex Limited, which owns this unlisted equity investment
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company was pledged
to secure the Group’s bond issued as detailed in notes 27(vi) to

(viil).

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 has been arrived at
on the basis of an valuation carried out on the respective dates
by Asset Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional
valuer net connected to the Group.

JE A E SR ORBIz International
Limited8918% Ik # (B iR E R E)
REFROR TS B A IL) o QAMFsE27 (vi)
Z(viii)FraEal 0 B IEIE E R AN
ERFAEAREKABZZENB AR
Link Complex Limitedf % # 2
BIRUAREBREETHNESFE
fRo

W_B--&4+-A=+—AK=
2 —F+ZHB=+—HWIELH
BREAKEARBELERFHEEE
SHEREMA R A B A% E I R
ENEIL G BREEAER) P8R
HEREITRHEREE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BB &E
License Goodwill Total
L Gk fast
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Bk TERT TAET AT
At 1 January 2021 w2 _—F—A—H 9,186 7,901 17,087
Impairment HE 8 (1,329 (3,481) (4,810)
Currency realignment ERAE - 86 86

At 31 December 2021 and R-E-—F+-A=+—HK

1 January 2022 —E_"_f%—-A—H 7,857 4,506 12,363
Reversal of impairment HER[D 8 1,329 - 1,329
Currency realignment ERAE - (249) (249)
At 31 December 2022 RZIEZ”_F+”A=+—H 9,186 4,257 13,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The intangible assets comprise licenses and goodwill from
business combinations. License mainly represent the Type
4, Type 5, Type 6 and Type 9 regulated activities licenses
as defined under Securities and Futures Ordinance (‘SFQO”)
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong. These licenses were
considered to have indefinite useful lives and will be assessed
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
it may be impaired. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
impairment loss of HK$3,481,000 was recognised on goodwill
relating to acquisition of subsidiaries engaged in regulated
financial services and the related goodwill was fully impaired on
31 December 2021.

The Directors assessed the impairment of licenses under the
regulated financial services business segments at the CGU
level. Based on the results of the assessments, impairment of
HK$1,329,000 was reversed on licenses under the regulated
financial services business segment as at 31 December 2022
(2021 impairment loss of HK$1,329,000).

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES
AND GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment assessment, licenses and
goodwill are allocated to the CGUs of money lending business,
regulated financial services business, electronic products and
property development and management as set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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16.

17.

BEEE (&)

B BEEORESSHELNER
KB fRREEIEEBIEGIEST1
E(EHRIAEHRG) (I(EH R
E%B)) BTRRAEZH4EF
SR FOHENFIORTHRETIME
B-ZEHMBRERABRRAER
FHH O HRSFEREBENRERA
BE 3R R (B R 1T R E AT M o IO B
ECE_—F+"HA=+—HILE
E EMERKBLESREER
RE 2B AR ZEERIBAES
183,481,000 0> U KRR ZE = —
F+ZA=+—HEHRBEEXRH
PERERS

EERNcELBUBETHSR
ELRRBER BB TRRBZRE
Bo-REBEAHER KT
+ZB=+—H ' AREMTHE
SRR EFE DB T R E IR
181,329,000 T (CE - —F | BE
E5481,329,00058 7T) ©

MR R g 2 R E
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o E NGRS R F5 ¥R R MY S 16FT &
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BFEMKRMERENERZHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES

AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Regulated financial services business

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined from
value in use calculations based on cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a five-year period of 2023
— 2027 (2021: 2022 — 2026). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%), which does not exceed the long-
term growth rate for the financial advisory industry in Hong
Kong.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

17.8 B REEZRENE &

ZHRETRIRTEER
HeEESX B2 ORERHRE
EFEAXMEREZ2 S =FFE"F
_tfli (CEZ—F T2 °FF
TEORSF BEREENCRER
FHRE) RAERABESEMEE
HBEhFHABcRERELRE
EEHEEIIERER2% (T2 —
F2%)HE BREREEXFTBES
B BBAITERRBIERE

Discount rate BRI
Management fee growth rate mﬁ%i EX

Advisory fee growth rate ABHEE R
Costs growth rate AR AN g R &

2021

B

17.30% 17.90%
2% 2%

0% 0%

2% - 5% 2% - 5%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

FFF 4 F = B 35 SR T B A1 3 I BRAE
MBS ELEL ABAK-

ReELEUZAWROEERTER
REZEHEEREAFERZ R
REMERAZ A RREHIEHE
R U DB/ RAEEBRS
M- RABEH BT HUBEEZ
MiEFHERp AT IR HIREME

TEo

/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

17. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES 17. 8RB EZRENG &

178

AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Regulated financial services business (Continued)

In view of the combined book value of the non-current assets
under the CGU being higher than the recoverable amount of
this CGU determined based on value in use, management
estimated that the fair value less cost to sell of this CGU should
not be materially different from its value in use since the existing
use of the subject non-current assets under the CGU represent
their highest and best use. Accordingly, based on value in use
calculation, an impairment of HK$1,329,000 against license has
been reversed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: impairment loss of
HK$1,329,000 and HK$3,481,000 against license and goodwill
has been recognised).

Property management services

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined from
value in use calculations based on cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a five-year period of 2023
— 2027 (2021: 2022 - 2026). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%), which does not exceed the long-
term growth rate for property management in the PRC.

RRECHRBES @
ERNRTELBMUETNERBEE
WEHREESNZREELEEN
REBEEREEEENAWOIEEE
EEEMLAZREELEEMUNLR
BERHENAEEECREETLE
BRERE WHHERREEELE
BENRIERBEENRERERSH
Rek&ERGE -EIL REERE
B8 RRIB{ER1,329,000 7T

BERBE_Z - "F+"A=1—
HIEFEZFEEBRmEERAERLD(CE
T—FERRAEEREBEER
73 511%%1,329,0007% 7t 53,481,000/
720

MEEIBIRF
ReELBUZAIREEELIRE
HERFHA S _FE"ZT"+
FCEI—F .22 2FEZF
TARE)NER M EEEMEES
RemneRBil RAEHEESHE
UEBE AEHANBZIRERE
KA NEFEEERERI% (TF
T 2%) #E > ZILEEHAE
BPEYESENRBIERER

2021

TET %

Discount rate ARIRR 16.46% 16.46%
Management fee growth rate EEBRERX 10% 10%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The management fees within the five-year period were
determined based on past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES

AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Property management services (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

As the recoverable amount of the CGU of the property
management services exceeded the combined value of the
non-current assets under this CGU, the directors are of the
opinion that there was no impairment on goodwill as at 31
December 2022.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The management believes that a reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which management has based
its determination of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs of
regulated financial services business and property management
services would not cause the carrying amount of the respective
CGU to exceed the respective recoverable amount.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

17. 8B REE 2 RETE @)

MEESERT @

ReELEUZAWROEERTER
REZEHEER]EAERZRE
RERERAZ A RRTIZHE
R U DB/ RAEERS
ke ARENHETEHEEEZ
MiEFHERp AT R HIBEME

TEo

HRMEBERBREEEEMNZ
AW El & B H I IRE EE BB
TIERBEEZEER WESR
AEER_E__F+-"A=1+—
B 3 % H IR (B ©

BRREHHNHRNE
EEBREEERBMRBUEER
RETMMBREFZ YD EEERS
ReELBEUTREEZENEZR
RNEEEEH I TERNZRE
EEBUNKREEBRSBENRI
[O]& %8

-.-—-/

FHEEEBAMRATE | 20228

179



180

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

18. INVENTORIES

19.

18.1% &

2022 2021
—E-= &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Raw materials 5 12,678 5,101
Work in progress FEG 214 1,456
Finished goods Sl 1,231 2,208
14,123 8,765

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 19.F1FHEME
2022 2021
e - —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Properties held for sale BIrEHEYE 555,219 602,664

The properties are located at the underground of Minzhu
Road and Fuhui Road, Lijiang City, Yunan Province, the PRC.
The gross floor area of the underground walkway project is
approximately 36,583 square metre (“sg. m.”) comprising a civil
air defence work structure of approximately 13,730 sqg. m., 741
units of the saleable shop premises with a total gross floor area
of approximately 19,923 sg. m., a non-saleable property utility
room of approximately 15 sg. m. and a commercial function
room of approximately 2,915 sqg. m.. Properties held for sale
which are expected to be recovered more than twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets as it is expected to be realised in the normal operating
cycle of the Group.

The Group engaged Knight Fank Petty Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group to
perform valuation on properties held for sale at 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021 using income approach-term and
reversion method and further adjusted the cost to sell by the
Group to assess the net realisable value. No impairment was
provided for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

20 BB BRRKEKRERE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAT FET

Trade receivables EUWRE 5 IRFX 20,797 54,290
Less: impairment provision R E RS (3,259) (11,530)
Trade receivables — net EWE SR —$ %8 17,538 42,760
Bills receivables R 1,659 1,635
19,197 44 395

At the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables before impairment, based on invoice date, is as

REZHE  BUWEZRRKRE
W CRERD RS B Z kiR

follows: DIWTF -
2022 2021
—E- i S
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
0 - 60 days ZE60H 14,836 33,971
61 — 90 days 61290H 865 1,343
91 - 120 days 91&E120H 218 1,126
Over 120 days 1208 A 6,537 19,485
22,456 55,925

The Group allows credit periods ranging from O to 120 days
(2021: 0 to 120 days) to its trade customers depending on
their credit status and geographical location. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
approximate to their fair values.

rEERFHESERZEERR
BB BEMATHEENF0E120
H(CE_-—%:0&F120H) 2E8
H-EERA BB SRS ER
EREEERAEAAEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

21.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

FENRE - R EMEK

2022 2021

—E__"HF B —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE N EER
other receivables =Rl A E | 6,775 11,575
Other tax recoverable HalwERE 28 804
6,303 12,379
22. LOAN RECEIVABLES 22. R E &

2022 2021

g B —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FAET

Loan receivables EWER 190,374 274,870
Less: impairment provision BB RS (165,996) (162,406)
Loan receivables — net B E R — $%8 24,378 112,464

As at 31 December 2022, loan receivables with aggregate

— = — —

—e— e

F+-BA=+—H>=&

gross principal amount of HK$164,300,000 and gross
interest receivables of HK$26,074,000 (2021: gross principal
amount of HK$247,300,000 and gross interest receivables
of HK$27,570,000) were due from ten (2021: thirteen)
independent third parties. The interest rates of the loan
receivables range from 6% to 15% per annum (2021: 6% to
15% per annum.) Two (2021: three) of the loan receivables
are secured by share charges of the borrowers, and ten
(2021: twelve) of the loan receivables are secured by individual
guarantee. The Group does not have the right to sell or
re-pledge the shares held as collateral in the absence of default
by the borrowers. All loan receivables which were repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period were

classified as current assets at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23.

Provision of impairment loss on loans receivables:

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

22. RN E X (&)

FEW SRRV R E R R

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—IEER B BMEER At

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

AT AT AT BT

As at 1 Janauary 2021 RZE-_—5—F—H 23,824 60,050 - 83,874
Provision for ECL for the year E£RNTEEIEEEERE - 84,090 - 84,090
Recoveries I qEIEE (5,558) - - (5,558)
Transfer to stage 2 BREETIR (12,939) 12,939 - -

As at 31 December 2021 and RZZE-_—F+"A=1+—HK
1 Janauary 2022 “E-"#—-RF—H 5,327 157,079 - 162,406
Provision for ECL for the year ERTBEIEEEEEE - 27,435 16,097 43532
Recoveries I qEIEE (1,416) (38,526) = (39,942)
Transfer to stage 1 EBREEIER 1,886 (1,886) = =
Transfer to stage 3 BREE (LR (5,327) (89,889) 95,216 =
As at 31 December 2022 RIBZZF+-A=1+—H 470 54,213 111,313 165,996
= 7= xhH

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND 23.ZRHEIMITER HEKRR

BANK BALANCES

17 45 8%

Restricted bank deposits SIREIIRITER

2021

B

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
2,994 1,890

As at 31 December 2022, a bank deposit of approximately
HK$2,994,000 (2021: HK$1,890,000) was pledged for
banking borrowing amounting to HK$82,609,000 (2021:
HK$86,109,000) granted to the Group (note 27(i)).

As at 31 December 2022, bank and cash balances of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$5,337,000 (2021:
approximately HK$4,465,000) were denominated in RMB.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations. These regulations imposed restrictions
on exporting capital from PRC, other than through normal
dividend payment.

RZZT__H+-B=+—QH" iR
1T1EE 492,994,000 7T (ZE = —
£ 11,890,000 7T) ERtIR T AE
E RVIR1TE 82,609,000 7T (=
— —4F 1 86,109,00078 7T) 1EHE R (Bt
2E27()) °

A B ZF+ZR=+—H =R
EEIRTTRIRE4E /74 %5,337,000
Bt (B —5F : #494,465,0008
70 MARESHE ARERINEE
Bl (INEE BRI RAE S
ERCHINEETERTE) c Z2F 58
HEPHGEHEARFEMNRS > EE

& B FPRIM o

W
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ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B3 E 5 R K H fth F& 4=

15
2021
B4
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT TFAT
Trade payables FET B Z 8RR 23,512 25,865
Accruals and other payables FEST & i A E A e TRIB 260,195 179,870
283,707 205,735

At the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade payables,

based on invoice date, is as follows:

REZHH BOEZRANR
SEMZERESROT

2021

B —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T FET

0 - 60 days 0E60H 8,813 13,624
61 — 90 days 61ZE90H 2,520 1,506
Over 90 days 0R MU E 12,179 10,735
23,512 25,865

At the reporting date, the accruals and other payables is as

follows:

RE|BEEH Bt ERREMEN

MIEYE

2022 2021

—E__HF B —F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FAT FET

Consideration payable ERRE 64,952 70,502
Interest payable FETF] B 117,887 20,772
Other tax payables HihpENiRI1E 15,072 20,819
Other accruals and payables HifEST & R & ENRIE 62,284 67,777
260,195 179,870

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate to their fair values.
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26.

25. 84981

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

2022 2021
—E-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Contract liabilities arising from: TAEHEL ZEHNEE
Provision of properties management 12 Y ¥ SRR
services 421 1,360
Manufacturing of electronic products £ EEFEm 172 1,840
593 3,200
Revenue recognised in relation to contract MENaEREZzZWE
liabilities
2022 2021
TR S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Balance as at 1 January N—B—HZ#Ek 3,200 3,672
Decrease in contract liabilities as REEEBEDA
a result of recognising revenue during SHEBEZINHEREL
the year that was included in
the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (3,200) (8,672)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result U EXFET FRIEE 2K
of advanced payments received BHaEEM 593 3,200
Balance as at 31 December R+_B=+—Hx*# 593 3,200

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO A SHAREHOLDER/
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts due from/to a shareholder/non-controlling
interests are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

26.FElr FEfTRRR T IEIERR 1B
IR
FEU,FE(T AR R IR I AR HE s RO
HERR RERAREZREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 27.:t B fa ™
2022 2021
== s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current: e -
Bank loans and other borrowings  $R{TE MR H SR
Secured term loans BIRIREHEM
(note (i), (v) and (ix)) (HEEE() ~ (V)R () 141,374 10,065
Unsecured borrowing EIRIRER
(note (i), (v) and (ix)) (i) ~ (V)2 () 4,538 5,914
Guaranteed revolving loan BEFRBIRER
(note (iii), (v) and (ix)) (B 2 i) ~ (V) B2 (X)) 2,704 -
Guaranteed term loan BEFRTEHEM
(note (iv), (v) and (ix)) (B EE(v) ~ (V) R2(iX)) 776 1,550
Bond payable (note (vi) to (ix)) FES &S (B sE Vi) ZE (X)) 250,000 250,000
399,392 267,529
Non-current: JETED -
Bank loans and other borrowings  $RITE MR HME R
Secured term loans BIRREHEMR
(note (i), (v) and (ix)) (M EEG) ~ (v) Rz (ix)) 79,109 220,482
Guaranteed revolving loan BEEFRBERER
(note (iii), (v) and (ix)) (M &R (i) ~ (V) (X)) 3,666 =
Guaranteed term loan BEREHER
(note (iv), (v) and () (M () ~ (V)R () 4,900 10,573
87,675 231,055
Total wast 487,067 498,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

U)

(i)

Loans amounted to HK$220,483,000 (2021:

HK$230,547,000) are secured by certain land and
buildings held by the Group of which HK$82,609,000
are further secured by bank deposits of HK$2,994,000.
As at 31 December 2022, term loans of approximately
HK$220,483,000 (2021: HK$230,547,000) carried floating
interest rate which ranged from 1.4% to 2% per annum
(2021: same) over one-month HIBOR or the lending bank’s
cost of funds, whichever is higher. HK$141,374,000 and
HK$79,109,000 are repayable within 1 year and 2 to 3 years
respectively.

Loan amounted to HK$4,538,000 (2021: HK$5,914,000)
is unsecured, carried fixed interest rate which ranged from
3.90% to 15.00% (2021: 4.25% to 8.48%) per annum and
repayable within 1 year.

As at 31 December 2022, loan amounted to HK$1,576,000 is
secured by corporate guarantee, carried fixed interest rate of
4.97% per annum and repayable within 1 year.

Loan amounted to HK$4,794,000 is secured by personal
guarantee of a director of a subsidiary and corporate
guarantee of certain subsidiaries, and carried floating interest
rate of 5 basis points over Loan Prime Rate. HK$1,128,000
and HK$3,666,000 are repayable within 1 year and 1 to 2
years respectively.

Loan amounted to HK$5,676,000 (2021: HK$6,000,000) is
secured by personal guarantee of directors and carried fixed
interest rate of 2.75% per annum. HK$776,000, HK$810,000,
HK$2,600,000 and HK$1,490,000 (2021: HK$325,000,
HK$798,000, HK$3,417,000 and HK$1,460,000) are
repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years, 2 to 5 years and more
than five years respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, Loan amounted to HK$6,123,000
is secured by personal guarantee of a director of a subsidiary
and corporate guarantee of certain subsidiaries, and carried
floating interest rate of 5 basis points over Loan Prime
Rate. HK$1,225,000, HK$1,225,000 and HK$3,673,000
are repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years
respectively.

27.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

%H- I%\ =] :A (/%)

U

(i)

B#220,483,0005 T (ZE - —
£ 1 230,547,000 70) HAER
FrigMaE T LM RIEFEIRE
H 182,609,000 & — & H iR
1T1ERR2,994,0008 TofEHE# ;2
B FE+"HA=+—H'F
HAE =R 49220,483,0008 7T (Z &
——% 1 230,547,000 7T) & —
BARTREEREMEF1.4%
F2% (ZEZ—% [ HRE) BNFE
XY ERIRITESR AKX
BE&E 58 141,374,000 7T &
79,109,000 7T 73 B A1 FE A K2
E3ERBEEE-

B 4,538,000 (ZE - —
5,914,000/ 70) AEKIF > 7S
F3.90%F15.00% (ZE_—4F :
4.25%%E8.48%) HEEF X5t B
B ERER

A B _F+_"HA=+—H">
E71,576,00078 7o (B R E
R IR EE4.97 %M E EFI X
SR RAEMENERE

B 4,794,000 cHMT B AR —
LEENEAEREE THBR
BN EERERE WiREGF
ERMIZHRENENMSEEEN
FEIFIR S ©1,128,0005 7T &
3,666, OOO%_’\E'JBJEEE’U ZF2
EEW/E\{E =0

BE#%5,676,0008C (Z&E=—
£ 1 6,000,000/ 7T) HESRE
AERIEIRIT > LI EFE2.75%
RIEEF X8 776,000 7
810,000 7T ~ 2,600,000 7T &
1,490,000 7 (& —_—&F
325,000 75 ~ 798,000 7t ©
3,417,0007 7T K& 1,460,0007 7T)
AR ENE2ERN 2E5FE R
FEEM FEERE

R-EZ—F+ZRA=+—8>
E3%6,123,0008cHMT B AT —
LEENEAERRE THEBA
BN ERERERE IEEF
ERmBRENEISEEDN
FEF 5T B 21,225,000 7T
1,225,000/%75&3,673,0007%75
DA ENMNE2FEARR2ESER
BER

-__"__f_..
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

V)

(vil)

All the loans do not contain repayment on demand clause but
are subject to the fulflment of covenants. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the loans would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
their covenants and there was no breach during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

In 2018, the Group issued bond with principal amount of
HK$300,000,000 to an independent third party. The bond
bears interest at 8% per annum and matured in December
2019. The interest is repayable quarterly in arrears by the
Group. On 23 July 2018, the Group partially repaid the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000. The bond payable was
secured by pledge of share equity of certain subsidiaries
including () Chengdu One Two Three Aozhong Education
Investment Company Limited, the immediate holding company
of operating company of the provision of nursery education
services in PRC; (i) Superactive Financial Group Company
Limited (“Superactive Financial Group”), the operating
company of the provision of regulated financial services in
Hong Kong; (iii) Link Complex Limited, a company which held
18% equity in ORBIz International Limited; and (iv) Shenzhen
Jiaxin Enterprise Management Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Jiaxin”).

On 24 December 2019, the Group partially repaid the principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 and the bondholder granted an
extension of the maturity date for the remaining outstanding
principal amount of HK$260,000,000 from December 2019 to
28 December 2020.

Upon extension of the maturity date, the bond payable
was secured by additional pledge of share equity of certain
subsidiaries including (i) Edisoft Investment Limited, (i) Joint
Faith Enterprise Limited, (i) Shenzhen City Qianhai Wanke
Financial Services Company Limited and (iv) Lijang Hua Ou
Real Estate Company Limited, the operating company which
is engaged in property development in PRC.
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27.

B
)

(vi)

(vii)

{5 R (42)

R R R R WA
BRI A EEERR
B BRAREREEFEE
ERERAREARER TR
-SR-S —Ft=
B=+—HLFELRERR

St

54 °
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ORBiz International Limited 18%

RERN LT ; Kiv)ERYITNE
eEEEFRAT (TRYINMED)
EAZETWERERIREFR
o

RZE—-—AE+ZB -+ X
H AEEBEEBEBD A
20,000,000 7t BHFAE AR
Her R BB 4$260,000,000%8
TR TS S HR-E—N
FE+_RIEE_E"ETE+_H
—+NH-°

FRIEERIEEH % > B ES LU
SNEIREIFE() Edisoft Investment
Limited; (i) Joint Faith Enterprise
Limited; (iii) 5 Il 1 B /8 58 %5 & #l
REAERAT ; RIVEBEIERE
WMEEBXRERADT RPENKE
MEERENEBAR) ERZE
TFHI B~ B B IR RE VIR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)
(viil On 28 December 2020, the Group partially redeemed

()

the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which have been
subsequently settled on 7 January 2021. The bondholder
further granted an extension of the maturity date for the
remaining outstanding principal amount of HK$250,000,000
and the bond interest rate was increased from 8% to 10% per
annum. According to the Third Supplemental Deed, the Group
should redeem a bond with a principal of HK$10,000,000 on
28 December 2020; On or before 28 June 2021, together
with the aggregate principal amount for the redemptions made
after 28 December 2020, the Group shall redeem not less
than principal of HK$20,000,000; On or before 28 December
2021, together with the aggregate principal amount for the
redemptions made after 28 December 2020, the Group shall
redeem not less than HK$160,000,000. On or before 28
June 2022, the Group shall redeem all remaining outstanding
principal amount of the bonds.

Upon extension of the maturity date, the bond payable
was secured by additional pledge of share equity of certain
subsidiaries including (i) Joint Faith Enterprise Management
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, (i) Shenzhen Baike Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd., the immediate holding company of
Lijiang Shunjin Business Administration and Management
Company and (i) Next Milions Limited, immediate holding
company of Superactive Finance Company Limited.

As at 31 December 2022, the principal amount and the
interest of bond payables of approximately HK$367,268,000
were not repaid in accordance with the terms of agreements.
The bond interest rate was increased from 10% to 25% per
annum.

Except for loans with outstanding principal amount of
RMB8,647,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,755,000)
(2021: RMB9,829,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,036,000)), all interest-bearing borrowings are
denominated in HKS.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

27-|:|+:|_.\ ETI*_T’A-' 35)
i) R =FZ2E+ "B+ N\

H AEBFDERL AL
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.PNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f R AMBIERRMEE
F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. 5t BfEM (&)

At 31 December, total current and non-current borrowings were R+ZA=+—H sE8lEENR
scheduled to be repaid as follows: B IEREERRARERL T ¢
2022 2021
ZETH —E—
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Within one year —FR 399,392 267,529
More than one year, but not —F UL ERBBME
exceeding two years 7,977 143,396
More than two years, but not MENU EBRBBRAEE
exceeding five years 78,208 86,199
More than five years EEME 1,490 1,460
487,067 498,584
28. LEASES 28.fHE&
(a) Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as (a) AEESME UEABAE
lessee) 1)
The Group leases a number of properties with a fixed REEREBRTHKERES
periodic rent over the lease term in Hong Kong and IR AN TR EREMR
Mainland China. The lease term of properties are from 1 S E-YPEBBENF—F
year to 5 years. EhHfFe
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28. LEASES

(b) Lease liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

28.fHE

(b) HERE

HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January 2021 A —E_—F—F—H 460
Interest expense (note 7) MEZE WE7) 9
Lease payments HENR (285)
Currency realignment % 3
As at 31 December 2021 and R_E2_—F+_RH=+—HBkK
1 January 2022 &2 _F—-F—H 187
Interest expense (note 7) MEZE WE7) 6
Lease payments GEN=ANEN (58)
As at 31 December 2022 A B ZF+Z“A=+—H 135
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0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

28. LEASES (Continueqd) 28.fH 8 (#)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HEEE @
Future lease payments are due as follows: RRBEENHEEBEROT

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEAE AR )= RE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022
—ECCE —ECCE —ECF
+ZBA=+—H +=ZB=+—-H +=ZB=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT THT THET
Not later than one year TER—F 58 @) 54
Later than one year and BN —FEFAEBRWE
not later than two years 59 (2) 57
Later than two years and not B M EB BN LE
later than five years 25 (1) 24
142 (7) 135
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28. LEASES (Continueq)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continuea)

28.1H 8 (#)

(b) HEEE @

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIBFEEAR FE HE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2021 2021
S & T TR
+-A=+—H +ZA=+—H +ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
Not later than one year 58 6) 52
Later than one year and ~ ER—FBFAERME
not later than two years 59 (4) 55
Later than two years and not B MEE BN EE
later than five years 83 3) 80
200 (13) 187

The present value of future lease payments are analysed

as:

AEBEEMRZRES TN
I

2022 2021

—E_"HF —ET—4F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FET

Current liabilities 54 52
Non-current liabilities EREEE 81 135
135 187
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DTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 20 RERMIBEE (B E)
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and movements KEERBFFERRDZIELERE
thereon during the current year and prior year: BE/ (88 KREREE

Intangible

asset

BREE

HK$’000

FTET

At 1 January 2021 R-B-—&£—B—H (1515)

Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 10) ER BBt A (#izE10) 219

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE_—F+"A=+—HK

B _#—H—H (1,296)
Charged to profit or loss for the year (note 10) FE R 1Bk (F3E10) (219)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZH+ZA=+—H (1,515)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the following:

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

9O.RIERMEBEE  (BR) &

REDIEEREE ENT :

REAKIARE

Unused tax losses

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
260,287 209,473

The Group recognises deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses only where there is a reasonable expectation that these
tax losses will be utilised in the foreseeable future. Based on
forecast income streams and having considered potential future
earnings volatility, the Group does not anticipate the utilisation
of any significant portion of these unrecognised tax losses in the
foreseeable future.

The tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in PRC amounted to
HK$30,807,000 (2021: HK$10,676,000) can be carried forward
for five years from the year of incurrence of such loss under the
current tax legislation. Tax losses of HK$229,480,000 (2021:
HK$198,797,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
The Group is therefore liable to 10% withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

FERER T SEARRBERER
RERREEESAZ1BR TR
BREERIZE E - RIFFR AW A
ML E BEBERREN Z KB
B AEERPRAIRRRL G
FRARSAREDBRNEBRZERNE
REBLR ©

BREBERTRBEM ROEEEZ
Bﬁ}:‘/\ﬂzﬁhlﬁféﬂﬁso,sozooo%

T (ZE=—4% 10,676,000 7T)
HELFRBEZFEREED
£ - FIEE518229,480,00078 70 (— &
——%F 1 198,797,000/ 7t) A f& FRHA
ihEEo

RIFPEEZERISRZE > RPER
VYZHECERIEREETIRZ
REBHMNI0%ENR -ZRER
“EEINF—A—HEBER LE

RIEZ+FE+"A=+—H%
2B P EEAINEKEERE
ElARE& T I MIBIFEA > BRI AR
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196

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EAMEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. In the opinion of Directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute their earnings
accrued after 1 January 2008 in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2021, the unrecognised deferred tax liability that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$4,964,000 (2021:
HK$6,195,000).

9. RIERMEBEE (AR &

RIEZZFR-E-—F+2A4
=+—B> UERARQTRPEMNK
Y2 HBABENZRERRBFFT
EEZENRERRLEREBE -EF
RA ZENBRABENR A BRKRE
rERRPMEN _SBENE—R
—BEBERZEBA RIEZ—
+ZA=+—H #BUXEBENNB
NEWKREERF)Z (TR RER IR
IEFR TE B B 49 %4,964,00058 70 (Z
T —4F  6,195,00058 7T) ©

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30.fg 7
2022 2021
—E-C R
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
RHEE mfE D= HfE
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Authorised: A
Ordinary shares of HK30.10  &REE010ETT
(2021: HK$0.1) each (ZBEZ—&:010%7T)
NEBER 15,000,000,000 1,500,000,000  15,000,000,000 1,500,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETRERE 2,032,571,385 203,257,139 2,032,571,385 203,257,139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for both the current year and prior year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 114
and 115 of the consolidated financial statements.

Share Premium

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

31.(#E

FEBFBEBRRENREFEERB
TEEZEHR2INGEHHBERE
BHARIBBEZ IRERmEF K-

Bz {5 i B

2022 2021

—E-— —E-

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

At 31 December ®B+-—B=+—H 476,989 476,989
Other Reserve Hih{#E

The other reserve represents the net gain on the disposal of the
treasury shares.

Capital Reserve
The capital reserve represents the capital reserve arising on the
Group reorganisation carried out in 1994,

Translation Reserve

The translation reserve comprises the exchange differences
arising on the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

Hith#EFmIEHEEFER N 2 WmF
e

B
BEXEBEAERR-—ANNFE
TZEBHELEZERRFHE-

mEHE
hEREEEREBINEF M
BREEZERERR-

ST EERMARAT | 202255

197



198

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EAMEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

M

123 China Education Development Limited, a 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests. Summarised financial information in relation
to the non-controlling interests of 123 China Education
Development Limited and its subsidiaries before intra-

group eliminations is presented below:

2. JFiERED
() TRABEROREDZZMMER
123 B ERBERAHF
BEEARIFERED -AR/123
TEASERERARAREN
BARNERERNEHIBIIFE
REGMBERBEZZ25/WM

T
2022 2021
- 3 BT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Current assets MENEE 67 92
Current liabilities MEIN=Ki= (58,043) 61,162)
Non-controlling interests JEVER = (8,610) (9,229)
Revenue Wz - 672
Loss for the year FREE (352) (481)
Total comprehensive income FARENTLERE
for the year 1,371 (1,101)
Loss attributable to the JEER R (L SR
non-controlling interests (70) (96)
Other comprehensive income JERERG R B
attributable to the Hha2mElE
non-controlling interests 689 (248)
Total comprehensive income JEEERRRE R ARG
attributable to the PHENTAERE
non-controlling interests 619 (344)
Dividends paid to BEIIEERERR S
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from REEHEE
operating activities RERHFEE (64) (48)
Net cash outflow from KREEBELXZ
investing activities RE ML BB - S
Net cash inflow from MEEMELZ
financing activities REMAFBEE - S
Net cash outflow RE M FEE (64) (48)
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Shenzhen Dowis Electronics Company Limited (“Shenzhen

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dowis”) and Guangdong Dowis Electronic Technology
Company Limited (“Guangdong Dowis”), 60% owned
subsidiaries of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests. Summarised financial information in relation
to the non-controlling interests of Shenzhen Dowis and
Guangdong Dowis before intra-group eliminations is

presented below:

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

32.3F #”" it m (#)
(i)

R HEEHFEFARAT
( RYNTBHERT)) R BRI AE

BEFHXARAT (U?f%?w’ﬁ
H) (BERBHEAC0%E o
Bt & A =) %E%k%’ﬂ%ﬂ%%
1 o 5 R R 3111 A B e R ER AR
MR EE A HRTRYIFIER
BEMHENMEZ250TF

2022 2021
—g-= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Current assets MENEE 38,743 52,974
Non-current assets JEmBIEE 15,232 17,145
Current liabilities mEEE (50,336) (60,432)
Non-current liabilities JERENEE (3,666) (4,898)
Non-controlling interests JEFERR S (9) (1,854)
Revenue &t 66,763 89,969
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (BB aF (4,567) 1,343
Total comprehensive income FREmINmAEEE
for the year (4,614) 1,398
(Loss)/profit attributable to the FEERRERE(L (B518) a A
non-controlling interests (1,827) 581
Other comprehensive income PR TR e
attributable to the Hihe2mElaE
non-controlling interests (18) 17
Total comprehensive income JEVE R N
attributable to the EHE W R AERE
non-controlling interests (1,845) 554
Dividends paid to B IEIERERRKRE
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEHEEZ
operating activities BERA (OR) F28 7,661 (4,135)
Net cash outflow from KRETHESEZ
investing activities REMHFEE (2,548) (5,968)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from MEEHEL
financing activities RE (R /FAPEE (2,929) 10,601
Net cash inflow BERAFEE 2,184 498

—/
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S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

o A =] 2
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B.ZEHRERERMETE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: MEESEECBEHK
Interest Amounts
Amount payables due to/(from)
due to includedin Interest-bearing  non-controlling Lease
a shareholder other payables borrowings interests liabilities
stAEA FEft/ (FEuk)
fEft—% Bz El2201
BRRAE EfFIE SHEER HEETE HEaR
(note 26) (note 27) (note 26) (note 28)
(Htz£26) (izk2) (Hfz£26) (Hiz£28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2021 RZE_-%5—-A-H 33,646 11,163 498,952 2,530 460
Changes from cash flows: Renegs .
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings SHEESMENE - - 18,000 = =
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings BB EER - - (18,397) - -
Repayment to a shareholder BREER (16,923) = = = =
Repayment to non-controling interests BIFEREREN - - - (2,894) -
Interest paid on interest-bearing borrowings HEBRZEATIE - (15,025) = = =
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabilities BB E&E 2 A& - S = = (276)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilties X fIAE&EZF 854S - = = - ()
Total changes from financing cash flows: ~ BERERELEHEE (16,923) (15,025) (397) (2,894) (285)
Exchange adjustments BRBE - - 29 69 3
Other changes: Hitgd)
Interest on bank borrowings and RIBRREZUREMER
overdrafts and other liabilities ZHE - 24,634 = = 9
At 31 December 2021 RZE2Z-£+ZR=1+-H 16,723 20,772 498,584 (295) 187
Changes from cash flows: REnsss
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings S EBRAERE - - 13,135 - -
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings BRI EER - - (23,704) - -
Repayment to a shareholder BREER (14,630) - - - -
Advance from non-controling interests BIEREREREN - - - 1,071 -
Interest paid on interest-bearing borrowings SEEFZEMTE - (6,760) - - -
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabiiies {EiE 8 & & &2 A& - - = = (52)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities YREaRZAESS - - - = (6)
Total changes from financing cash flows: ~ HERETELEHMEE (14,630) (6,760) (10,569) 1,07 (58)
Exchange adjustments ERHEE - - (948) 23 -
Other changes: Hitgg)
Interest on bank borrowings and RERREIURAMEE
overdrafts and other liabiities ZFIE - 103,875 - - 6
At 31 December 2022 RZZ2-ZF+-B=+-H 2,093 117,887 487,067 799 135
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have

35.

any significant contingent liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

Operating commitments
As Lessor

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating

leases are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

34.HARAE

NCEC TERCE

—&+=A

=t+—HB AEETEEMNERK

2NN
35.7K &

RS R
EAHEA

BB

TEHHEERERTHRERYK

2022 2021

—E-= g

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FHT FAET

Not later than one year AiBE—F 6,903 13,768
Later than one year and BiR—FENBRME

not later than two years 920 3,523
Later than two years and BiEmEENBREE

not later than five years - 527

6,993 17,818

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the
Group for certain of its shop premises. The leases run for an
initial period of 1-2 years (2021: 1-2 years). The shop premises
would be sold when potential buyers are located. None of the

leases contain contingent rentals.

ER R ERE

REHERENENEERERT
BERWR A - BAOZYP £
BIEE (CEZ—F 1E2F) off
TERRHE - &
BHAZTERAEE

ST EERMARAT | 202255

201



202

DTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

35. COMMITMENTS (Continuea) 35. 7K & (&)
Capital commitments BT
At the reporting date, the Group had capital commitments RREB AEBEMMERER
in respect of property development and property, plant and ME- -BERZEZERFEWT :

equipment as follows:

2022 2021

B E T

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FHET FET

Contracted but not provided for BT AR EE - 6,119

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.AAEALRZ
The remuneration of the key management during the year is as KEEFBEEBZMENOT !
follows:

2022 2021
—E-— B4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FETT

Basic salaries and allowances, bonuses E i 4 K iEEE TEAL K

and benefits in kind (note 9) EYFm (HIF9) 569 610
Mandatory provident fund contributions 38 &M ATE S HR (FfEE9)

(note 9) = =

569 610

Balances with related parties are disclosed in notes 14 and 26 HREANT ZEGIKBEN GRS
to the consolidated financial statements. RRM 1452260
Other than the disclosures above, the Group has not entered BRI EIREEIN AEBKRBTL
into any other related party transactions. R EMBEAEA LR o

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND RISK

The Group’s objectives are: to provide returns for shareholders;
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
so that it continues to provide returns and benefits for its
stakeholders; to support the Group’s stability and growth; and
to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group’s
risk management capability.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders and issue new shares to reduce its debt
level.

Consistent with other industries, the Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total interest-
bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

37.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

BEXAEERRRERE
FEBZERS  BRREMHER;
REAEEZFEKLE S LU
BARFHERMORRF G ; F
FEBZREMERER Ez?%ﬁifﬁ
ELUBRAEE AR EEET -

PHERUFABEEARE 5B N
EREINTFRRZRESE B
BEATRERBEITHRUEER
BREKTF

HEMTE-—R AEEERER
BRIEREEER - RERREH
BEGUBRBESE R P
ZEt BERBERARERIREEE
W5t 8 o AR & B 5K &= P8
™ BERBEIEEREE

%

REBEMARZEFBEERNT ¢

2022 2021

T T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET FET

Total net debt FETRARRE 478,702 492,898
Total capital B4R Tﬁ 296,361 427,150
Gearing ratio BARBEEX 161.53% 115.39%

W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZ

38.

S S = St = = F 2 5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: including
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses on
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by key management under
the policies approved by the Board. The Group does not
have written risk management policies. However, the Board
meets regularly and co-operates closely with key management
to identify and evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to
manage financial risks.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Group’s operating activities.

The Group’s financial assets are primarily denominated in HK$
and RMB. The currencies to which the Group had significant
exposure on its monetary financial assets and liabilities included
RMB. At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the net exposure
expressed in HK$ is as follows:

38.MFZREMEERIHE

FEEBAERZAIABEZHHR
b BEINE R FIXREREEE
Bk mEhE s Rk NEE B
EREEEERN /TS ZRE
BtER  LERF[|EREBEHAE
EMBRRZEBEAEE - AR
EERTEEEERESESEEHE
ZHERBIT - AEEL EERRRE
EEBR -AM EXFHTEEE
J& € HA & E I 2 S 1 LA Bl A 5T

Rk X HIEEEMHRR R
B o

S =L B

SNERBASHTREZ ARES R
KIFE 7 S EINE E RSB MR E
2R REBPTAIEIIEEXE
FrRETFERMIAERZLER
&fj o

ZK%IZAEEQEIELX%T_E&}\
BB AEBSREEEER
ﬁ&?ﬁ’z%ﬁﬁ’]ikﬂﬁ Z2ERE
BREARB - RZZ2ZHK-ZF
T H+ZA=+—H ' UEBTE
MZERBAT

Assets

BE
2022 2021
— g — — _:<__ﬂ5

—_——_ e

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET

RMB NG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
in response to reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 9% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss
where the relevant currencies strengthen 9% against the HK$.
For a 9% weakening of the relevant currencies against the HK$,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss and
the balances below would be negative.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

3B.MBEBEERREE (&)

ShEE LB (%)
TRETAEBREAEERKRS
HARAZERARBZIIEEXSIE
AEEEMEHZBE_S =
B —F+-"HB=+—HILE
EBEBEZHBNEEH BXELTE
EHRRBEZIINEFEERES
IR INETE R 2 9% B BN T H N
FKZMBEHBARE  TRPZIEH
BB S R AT HEI%RE
BZROEE HEREERET
ZE% BiEFEERERFRZ
LEREE M N2 EREAa e

2022 2021
T T
Increase in Effect on Increase in

exchange loss for the exchange Effect on loss
rate year rate for the year
HERNEBE HENEE
BESRIE N HEE FE=IE N2
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
F#ET FHT

RMB AR 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates for variable rate
bank borrowings, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
loss) by approximately HK$2,294,000 (2021: HK$2,305,000).

The analysis is prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease in
interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and loan receivables. The Group has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group is exposed to concentration risk as a significant
portion of its business is derived from its largest customers.
As at 31 December 2022, trade and bills receivables of
66.9% (2021: 72.6%) and loan receivables of 63.1% (2021:
54.6%) were contributed by the top five customers. In order
to minimise any credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to be responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt on a regular basis to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for irrecoverable amounts.
Management does not expect any significant losses of trade
receivables that have not been provided for by way of an
allowance.

In respect of loan receivables, all borrowers who obtain loans
from the Group are subject to management review. The Group
also demands certain borrowers to place collateral at the time
the agreement is entered into as securities of loans.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparts are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B#E_Z__H+_A=+—HILFE

S.MFRAIMERBREEK (&

$$IZE 3 = 22 R R 1 P L
E%%ﬂ&ﬁwaﬂo¢$@5ﬁ
EEEHE AEEARSAEE
Bz

AEBGTEBEEHRRRE HTEHE
EBFEHMEBERATLFA
R-R B _F+ZHA=+—8"
FEU B 5 BR T K FE WL 2 #E #966.9%
(CE-——F:72.6%) REKER
B63.1% (B —14 : 54.6%) 3K B
AARBEFR ARBERBEAGEER

po AEBEEEELZKEKAE
ETEERHE -EESHRHEMES
PR U RIRER T E IR B8
HER LN AEBEHHBERSE
B BBz WEI£EE  UERRT
Aol ol L EE1EH B RE R B R 18 o
EIRETARAE W E Z R AP I A
RAIEREBEMNEABIELERE -

MEWERMS B RAEER
RERZERALDEKEEES
Rl RERITERE TERARE]
i ERREIRERD LEREM
ZHERe

RPETZEERBAR HAR

SHFABBEETREER TS
EEFTRZIRITC
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S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3B.HHEREAMBEERKE &)
POLICIES (Continuea)
Credit risk (Continued) EERKE @)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TEREHI RN EB TR E 2R
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables: FENER EERMRKEREERS
BZEN:

Gross
Lifetime carrying Lifetime  Net carrying
ECL rate amount ECL amount

2HITEH 2HATER
EEBEER FREAR(E EEEE FRERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FTER FTERT

At 31 December 2022 RZTEZZ

+=ZB=+—H
Current BNHA 0.1% 14,819 14 14,805
1 - 60 days past due #HA1 - 60H 1% 894 9 885
61 -90 days past due ~ #iHA61 — 90H 5% 291 14 277
91 - 120 days past due ~ #iHA91 — 1208 25% 16 4 12
Over 120 days past due  #IHF120H MU & 50% 6,436 3,218 3,218
Total HeEt 22,456 3,259 19,197

At 31 December 2021 RZE_—%F

+ZA=+—H
Current BN &R 0.1% 30,564 31 30,533
1 - 60 days past due #HA1 - 60H 1% 2,036 20 2,016
61-90 days past due  #1HA61 - 90H 5% 255 12 243
91 - 120 days past due  #IEA91 - 1208 5% 270 67 203
Over 120 days past due ~ #iHA120H M+ 50% 22,800 11,400 11,400
Total 15t 55,925 11,530 44,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

ECL rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 3
years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

3B.MBEBEERREE (&)

FERE @
BEEEREREARNBERIFEZE
REEER ZEFLEREEHEL
[z Bk FEE S 88 4 W B HA PR 2 AT RO
ZR BRI RUKREERHER
FIRTASHFIZ QBERRNER

RWEBZERTRERE ZEFU
S G

2022 2021

—E-C BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January w—B—H 11,530 6,901
Impairment loss recognised ERERRERE 1,106 4,524
Impairment loss reversed B ELREEE (6,966) 9)
Write off g (2,194) -
Currency realignment E R AEEE (217) 114
At 31 December ®+ZB=+—H 3,259 11,530
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B.HBERABEERKE &
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERKE @)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TRIEHBERAAEERKRERZE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan receivables: BERREEHREEHRBZER !

Non-credit impaired Credit impaired
FEERHE FERE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
F—PEER EMRE FPRE

12{8 A R 2HITEH 2HITEH
FEBER EEBRE FEBR

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 31 December 2022 RZBZ-Z
+ZR=t+-H
Loan receivables EIER 1,176 77,885 111,313 190,374
Impairment allowance HEERE (470) (54,213) (111,313) (165,996)
Net of impairment allowance MR ERE 706 23,672 = 24,378
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—fF
+-B=+—H
Loan receivables FEWERR 21,837 253,033 = 274,870
Impairment allowance HERE (5,327) (157,079) = (162,400)
Net of impairment allowance MR ERE 16,510 95,954 = 112,464
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure that adequate funds are
available to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring
short term and long term cash outflows on a regular basis. The
Group mainly utilises cash to meet its liquidity requirements for
periods up to 30 days. Funding for long term liquidity needs will
be considered when liquidity requirements in the long term are
identified.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The contractual maturity analysis below is based
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

3B.MBEBEERREE (&)

BN E & EL
NEBZEEZARFREENE ST
HYAUENRESREEEM
Yo

rEEZBEHBREEERAIRE
HREALUEERARHESTE
KeAEBETENAREWMEHRN
REZSOHHIBRZ RBETIF -
ERERPABEZMER > RH
RBEEBRNFAFESRTUZE
o

TRAAERRPEAEEE R
AR EREBHMEESHNEE
ARLEZREGRMREzEMEEzD
e UATHRBEEZMEMEZ KRR
RERBEHZANIAA DN

2022 - —
More thanone  More than two Total
Within one year year but less years but less More than undiscounted Carrying
orondemand thantwoyears  than five years five years amount amount
—FR% Ba—F BRmE
BEXE BORmE BOREE BBLE  AMRALH IRE{E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TFET
Non-derivative financial liabilties: Firtemas:
Trade and other payables (note 24) GRS EC e
(Hi5E04) 283,707 - - - 283,707 283,707
Amount due to a shareholder R —aRRTE 2,093 - = = 2,098 2,093
Amount due to non-controling interest (Y FEEREZFIA 799 - - - 799 799
Interest-bearing borrowings (note 27) SHEBR (M7 405,128 82,625 2,821 1,598 492,172 487,067
Lease liabilfies (note 26) HESE (Hzk28) 58 59 25 - 142 135
691,785 82,684 2,846 1,598 778,913 773,801
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SMEERRME

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

3B.HEEBEERREE (&)

RBEERE @)

2021 B
More than one More than two Total
Within one year year but less years but less More than undiscounted Carrying
or on demand than two years than five years five years amount amount
—FRg Be—F BEmE
BERE BORME BUREE BELE  AEROLE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TR TR TER TR
Non-derivative financial fiabilties: Firtemas:
Trade and other payables (note 24) EES RN EMENTE
(Myz24) 203,735 - - - 205,735 205,73
Amount due to an associate Ef—BHERTRE 68,031 - - - 68,031 68,031
Amount due to a shareholder Ef—BRAHE 16,723 - - - 16,723 16,723
Interest-bearing borrowings (note 27) SHEB (M) 287,715 144,129 87,926 1,564 521,334 498,584
Lease liabilties (note 28) THE&ME (H:H8) 58 59 83 - 200 187
576,262 144,188 88,009 1,664 810,023 789,260

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position relates to the

following categories:

Financial assets:

3B.MBEBEERREE (&)

THEERERISEHE

MHERRKRPEINZERME

TREE

EkaFEREERNTERNERH !

2022 2021
St - 3 T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FAET FAET
Financial assets ERMEE

At amortised cost: R A s E -
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIREEEY 8,365 5,686
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIIRITER 2,994 1,890
Trade and bills receivables B E 5 IR E N E 1R 19,197 44,395
Loan receivables FEWE ™R 24,378 112,464
Deposits and other receivables ¥ K Hfh FE U RRIE 4,484 11,363
At fair value through profit or loss &2 A EREETIER 6,049 8,720
65,467 184,518

ST EERMARAT | 202255
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

3. BREIREEKREEK (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)
Financial liabilities:

THMEERERIEHRE @

2022 2021
—E_C TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR

Financial liabilities measured at RBERAHEZEMAME !
amortised cost:
Trade and other payables [EfT B SR U E A
FEATFRIE 283,707 205,735
Amount due to an associate e —RIEtE AR - 68,031
Amount due to a shareholder et — %R FIE 2,093 16,723
Amount due to non-controlling e JEHERR M 2 =R IE
interests 799 -
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEMEM 487,067 498,584
Lease liabilities HEaE| 135 187
773,801 789,260

The carrying values of the financial assets included above
approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.

The carrying values of the financial liabilities (including current
portion of interest-bearing borrowings) included above
approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for borrowings
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was assessed
to be insignificant. The carrying values of the non-current
portion of interest-bearing borrowings also approximate their fair
values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_ T _F+_A=t—HILtEE

3.MBHREIEEERBEK (&)

THMEERERSEHME @

TREIIRBADEFRIZANE
SRR ERM T B2 9

B4R

H24K

B3R

HEEENBRIEED
B2 HRE CRERE) ;

PREt A SR Z RESN > 7]
MEESNREERE BE
%) B (BlR B B%R)
BRFBSZBALE, &

W IFRBAIBEETIHH
BRNEENERZBAE
(REJEREBAE) o

—/
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SMERRMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T _HF+A=t+—HItFE

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value BARERER
through profit or loss SRz SRBE
— Unlisted equity -ELmRATIA

instrument (note 15) (Kfzk15)

Fair value
hierarchy

AREER

Level 3

B3

B.MFERGEEREE (&

Significant

Valuation  unobservable

technique(s) input(s)

EXTH

{EERHE BREAR

Discount rate
at 15.37%
(2021: 21.12%)

Discounted
cash flows

Long term
revenue
growth rate
ranged from
47.70% to
224.07%
(2021: 103.66%
t0 130.12%)
RRER
16.37%
(C3=-fF:
21.12%)

i
i

BHRRER

Rl
BREA
47.70%%
224.07%
(CB--&:
103.66%%
130.12%)

Relationship of
unobservable
input(s) to

fair value
FAHRR
BAER
AREHRR

The higher the
discount rate,
the lower the
fair value

The higher the
long term
revenue
growth rate,
the higher the
fair value

BREHE
DB

REWE
BREYE
AEES

THEERERIEME @&

Fair value
ARE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
- Jonben ZET-&
TERT TERT
6,049 8,720
6,049 8,720
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

There was no change in valuation technique between the two
years.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair values of unlisted equity
instrument has been determined by an independent firm of
professional valuer which holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification.

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Unlisted equity investment

SEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

3.UHRMEEREEK (#)

THEEREBRIEHRE @

BERMIEWERRT -

RIEBZ"HF+"HA=+—H"3F
EHRATEZ AREBEER—EF
BRI REHEEERZBIER
HEMITERE

BRAnEIRZEMIEAREEX
TR HREAE B3R 2 HIRHS
L

FEmIRAFRE

Financial assets at FVTPL

BARERBERIIRZEMEE
2022 2021

- S TE T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT

At 1 January »—A—H 8,720 7,020
Total (loss)/gain: (#518) Wzi4E%E
Fair value change during the year FRRADEESD (2,671) 1,700
At 31 December W+-B=+—H 6,049 8,720

Sensitivity analysis

For the purpose of valuation of the unlisted equity investment,
discounted cash flows method has been adopted. As at 31
December 2022, the key unobservable input used was the
expected revenue growth rate of the unlisted equity investment.
The expected revenue growth rate adopted ranged from
47.70% to 224.07%. A reasonably possible 5% decrease/
increase in the expected revenue growth rate would result in
increase/decrease in loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 and decrease/increase in equity of the Group by
HK$1,709,000 as at 31 December 2022.

BRE DR
MFELTRAREZEHEMS 2
EXRMEIRBEREZ - NS
—_HF+"R=+—H MEAN
FERTRERBOABERIFELTR
AELENTERAWARIERE - FRERA
NIRBNHIEREN F47.70% 2
224.07% - TREAR A B REAI S
BRL ENs%RERHEECS
i E&EﬁZE’;‘
B/EM RO RAERR S22
F+ZHA=+—HBz#=mml g
701,709,000 7T °

__—/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 9. RFHBRARKEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 5]
2021
—ET—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FAT FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN G4 - 2
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKE 21,628 21,628
21,628 21,630
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Prepayments, deposits and other BIB9S K&
receivables Hfh fE W ZIE 64 82
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EYNCIE O] 689,300 731,189
Restricted bank deposits ZPREIIEITENR 2,994 1,890
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTAEER 2,337 242
694,695 733,403
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREAE
Accruals and other payables FEsT & B E’ZET&T ™18 121,795 23,822
Amount due to a shareholder FE — S BRERRR 954 16,711
Interest-bearing borrowings T EER 254,654 253,500
377,403 294,033
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 317,292 439,370
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & & E RN & &
LIABILITIES 338,920 461,000
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ JEfEh&fE
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEME™R 79,109 82,609
79,109 82,609
NET ASSETS BEERE 259,811 378,391
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 R (A
Share capital PRI 30 203,257 203,257
Reserves 1%1% 56,554 175,134
TOTAL EQUITY R 4R %R 259,811 378,391
The statement of financial position of the Company was ERBNMBRATEERN S ==
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on F-A=+—RHEE=gH#Ht /&EZ&
31 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: T > WHUA T ALTREREE !
YEUNG SO LAI LEE CHI SHING CAESAR
ZE - FE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EBEFE EZx
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBIERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ S+ H=-t+—HIEE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 9. RFHBRARKRHEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY g (&
(Continued)
Capital
Share Other redemption Contributed  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
AR 1E Hitifks EXRERE BAER REti5E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THERT FTET TET TET
(note)
((i5f=3)
At 1 January 2021 ®ZEZ—F—F—H 476,989 54 1,442 70,911 (258,217) 291,179
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRASER2EKELEE
income for the year - - - - (116,045) (116,045)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE-_-f+”-A=+-A
1 January 2022 R-—E-__£-F—H 476,989 54 1,442 70,911 (374,262) 175,134
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRASER2EKELEE
income for the year - - - - (118,580) (118,580)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_ZF+-B=+—-H 476,989 54 1,442 70,911 (492,842) 56,554
Note: Bk -

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the book values of
the underlying assets of the Company’s former subsidiaries, Pantronics Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries, at the date on which the shares of these companies
were acquired, and the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company under a Group reorganisation in 1994.

In addition to retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the contributed surplus account of a company is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot pay or declare a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if: it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

BABRERIEAR AT AIMI B A FPantronics
Holdings Limitedsz E i B A B 2 A8 B ER
ZERNBZRHEREZ B2 REERAER
BRBEAREER — AN NEETEHARET
ZRAEBZERE-

BRARDEEMN RBERE-NAN—FR
BliE —RABZBABRFIRIF A DK A
M HAADEERNIRBBEEEERE
el REEEZ AIZREERIERER
HeRABETRERRMDEERZEH
AERBF RN HE IR S o E AR
EH DK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z_ £+ A=+—HILFE

40. TEMEQF]
TEMBEBADZHBEOT

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company
FATMSRAREZZEAL

Name of company

e

Place of incorporation or
registration/operation

Bl AT YAk

Issued and fully paid share
capital/registered capital

BRTRBRRE/ HRES

Directly Indirectly Principal activities

B# Mg IEEH

Superactive Financial Group Company Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$12,500,000 - 100%  Provision of regulated financial
services activities

FREHMERERAT BH/ 5% E18K12,500,000% 7T REZRESRBHED

Lijiang Hua Ou Real Estate Company Limited PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
(note) RMB5,000,000

BIEREHEBLERAR (WD) E/HE FHRE AR K #5,000,0007 ESE

Lijiang Shunjing Business Administration and PRC*/PRC Registered capital S 100%  Property management
Management Limited (note) RMBS,000,000

BIEERELEERERAT (5 FE/HE A\ K 85,000,007 NEER

Superactive Finance Company Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$15,000 - 100% Money lending

FRBBERAT B/ BE E1BR15,000ET &

Shenzhen Dowis Electronic Company Limited PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 60% Manufacturing of electronic products
(note) RMB1,000,000

R BESETARAR () &/ HE & AR AR #1,000,0007 REETER

Guangdong Dowis Electronic Technology Company ~ PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 60% Manufacturing of electronic products
Limited (note) RMB20,000,000

FREBEREFRRERAS (3D FE/HE FHRE A\ K 120,000,007 NEBFEM

* These are companies with limited liabilities in the PRC

Note: The English name of the subsidiary represents the best effort by the
Company’s management to translate from its Chinese name as this

subsidiary has no official English name.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of all the other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
31 December 2022 or at any time during the year (year ended

31 December 2021: nil).
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